
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP HALL 
3040 N. PROSPECT, SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP, MI  48198 

FEBRUARY 20, 2024 
7:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
6. PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARING

a. OHM – Geddes Road Pathway Tree Removals

7. CONSENT AGENDA
A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES TAB 1

1. January 16, 2024

B. REPORTS TAB 2

1. Supervisor
2. Liaison Report on Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting – Trustee Lindke
3. Community Center Advisory Committee Update – Clerk Findley
4. Departmental Reports: Building Department, Fire Department, Ordinance 

Officer, Parks Commission Minutes, Sheriff’s Report, Planning and Zoning 
Report, Utility Department’s Report, Assessing Report

5. Controller’s Report
6. Monthly Financial Reports, December and January
7. Quarterly Financial Report, Period Ending 12/31/23.
8. Treasurer’s Investment Report

C. COMMUNICATIONS TAB 3
1. C2PST
2. Complaint Against Supervisor

8. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS TAB 4

A. Video Equipment Repairs
B. Resolution 2023-74, Resolution to Approve Middle Huron Partnership Contract 

(HRWC)
C. LaSalle Lawsuit Update
D. Escrow Audit Update
E. Rock Property Programming



F. Human Resources Director Update
G. Updates of Utilities Fraud Case from Washtenaw County Sheriff's Department

(WCSD)
H. Fireman’s Park Upgrades Funding
I. Update on Stephens Dr. Speed Bumps

10. NEW BUSINESS TAB 5
A. Resolution 2023-04, Hire Clerks Office Administrative Assistant, Kristina Rankin
B. Resolution 2024-05, Hire Utility Field Service Technician, Raymond Wilson
C. Resolution 2023-07, Subrecipient Agreement for MacArthur Pathway
D. Resolution 2023-08, Award bid for MacArthur Pathway
E. Resolution 2023-09, Award Bid for Plymouth Pathway
F. Resolution 2024-10, Approve Plymouth Rd Pathway CA/CE Proposal from OHM
G. Resolution 2024-11, Approve PLC Upgrade for Pump Station
H. Motion to Reappoint Members to Boards and Commissions
I. Approve Remaining Payment of $13,000.00 to “Three Brothers”
J. Township Controller Complaints Against Trustee
K. Township Attorney, Fred Lucas, Scope of Work and Fees
L. Charter Township of Superior Clean Up Day
M. Charter Township of Superior Property Review
N. Financial Controls: Escrow Accounts/ Pre-Audit Policy/ General Financial Policies 

and Procedures

11. BILLS FOR PAYMENT AND RECORD OF DISBURSEMENTS TAB 6
12. PLEAS AND PETITIONS
13. ADJOURNMENT

Lynette Findley, Clerk, Superior Township, 3040 N. Prospect, Superior Township, MI 48198 
Telephone: 734-482-6099; Email:lynettefindley@superior-twp.org 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 1 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

The regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board was called to 
order by the Supervisor Ken Schwartz at 7:02 p.m. on January 16, 2024, at the 
Superior Charter Township Hall, 3040 North Prospect, Superior Charter 
Township, Michigan. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Supervisor Schwartz led the assembly in the pledge of allegiance to the flag. 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
The members present were Supervisor Ken Schwartz, Clerk Lynette Findley, 
Treasurer Lisa Lewis, Trustee Nancy Caviston, Trustee Bernice Lindke, 
Trustee Rhonda McGill, and Trustee Bill Secrest. 
Absent: None 
 

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

It was moved by Clerk Findley supported by Trustee Lindke, to adopt the 
agenda with the following amendments: 
 

1. Add Discuss Farming of Rock Property to New Business 
2. Add Relabeling of GFL Bins to Unfinished Business 
3. Add Discuss Status of Sexual Harassment Investigation to New Business 
4. Move Closed Session to Agenda Item 12 (After New Business) 

 
The motion carried by unanimous vote. 

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 

A. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

• Carolyn Stuart, Former Clerk’s Office Employee, spoke about her negative 
experience working for Clerk Findley and requested for her resignation letter(s) be 
added to the record.  

• Brenda Baker, Ashton Ct., spoke on behalf of the Committee to Promote Superior 
Township. 

• Jerry Clifton, Stephens Dr., spoke about speed bumps he would like on Stephens 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 

Dr. 
• Irma Golden, Township Deputy Supervisor, spoke on current issues that were 

raised by residents that she has spoken with and dispersed a handout.  
 

All documents given at the table are at the end of these minutes. 
 

• Tom Brennan, Sheffield Dr., spoke about speed bumps he would like on Stephens 
Dr.  

• Ramona Parker-Hayden-Muhammad, Stamford Rd., spoke about her concerns with 
the financial status of the Township and requested copies of past Township audit 
management letters.  

• Dana Greene Jr, Stamford Rd., declared his candidacy for Board of Trustees for 
2024. 

• Clerk Findley requested that Closed Session Item “A” be done in Open Session 
and requested it be moved up in the meeting so that the public can hear her 
remarks.  

• Samuel Hayes, Zoom, said he is the young man who wrecked his tire on the 
pothole, and it cost him $270.00 

• Supervisor Schwartz addressed concerns raised by Irma Golden. 
• Clerk Findley reiterated her concerns with the order of the meeting and requested 

that Closed Session Item “A” be moved up in the meeting so that the public can 
hear her remarks.  

• Supervisor Schwartz suggested it go into New Business Items “A” and “B” and 
every other item be dropped down accordingly.  
 

It was moved by Trustee Lindke and supported by Trustee Secrest to amend the agenda 
to remove the following from the proposed Closed Session and move it to New Business 
Items “A” and “B”: 

A. Discuss Letter from Employee to Clerk 
B. Discuss Email from Clerk regarding Supervisor’s interference. 

All other documents were given at the table for the Board. 
 

           The motion passed unanimously.  

• Brian Clark, Barrington Dr., suggested altering the website to include potential 
community service opportunities.  

• Trustee Lindke said the Parks and Recreation Commission suggested a 
Community Day.  

• Trustee McGill said a “Clean Up Day” can be set up pretty easily.  
 

 
6. PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARING 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 

 
A. WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION (WCRC) 

 
Matt McDonnell, Managing Director of the WCRC, gave a presentation on the desired 
Stephens Dr. speed bumps and the Tanglewood subdivision speed study. He gave his 
card to those who would like to follow up with him and dispersed a handout.  

Mr. McDonnell said the following: 

a. “Speed humps” is one of the outcomes of the WCRC Neighborhood Traffic 
Program Management (NTPM).  

b. NTPM is intended for local subdivision roadways with speed limits of 25 miles an 
hour.  

c. NTPM is initiated by residents through submitting a petition and the WCRC will 
do an engineering study.   
 

• Ms. Golden asked if there is a certain time of year that the evaluation is completed.  
• Mr. McDonnell said due to winter maintenance it is generally not a good time to 

evaluate in the winter.  
• Ms. Golden asked if Stephens Dr. was counted in December.  
• Mr. McDonnell answered that Stephens Dr. was recounted in December.  
• Ms. Golden said the problems are in the summer months when everybody is out.  
• Trustee McGill interjected saying the problem is year-round. 

 
Mr. McDonnell continued in his report:  

d. WCRC has been to Stephens Dr. three times.  
e. Stephens Dr. falls short of meeting the criteria for approving speed humps or other 

traffic slowing solutions.  
f. There is a point system that is used in the evaluation.  

 
• Supervisor Schwartz asked who sets the criteria.  
• Mr. McDonnell said the criteria is created internally.  
• Trustee Lindke asked if the renters had any voice or are homeowner’s voices only 

considered.  
• Mr. McDonnell said that is why the WCRC revisited the petition threshold and lowered it 

from 75% to 51%. 
• Jerry Clifton said the Washtenaw County Sheriff did a good job regulating the traffic 

coming out of the townhouses to MacArthur Blvd., but it made the traffic come down 
Stephens Dr.  

• Mr. Clifton said he received false communications from different parties. He said 
Supervisor Schwartz told him to contact the WCRC. After a conversation with the 
WCRC he was told the issue was with Superior Township.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 

• Mr. Clifton stressed the perceived disparities within municipalities Washtenaw County 
and how Superior Township has been overlooked.  

• Clerk Findley said, “Help me understand how an area with ‘those people’ that live ‘over 
there’ can’t get speed bumps for safety”. She asked what we as a Board can do to make 
that happen.  

• Mr. McDonnell recommended submitting a petition showing the desire for the speed 
bumps noting the names that are renters.  

• Trustee McGill said the Township has already done that.  
• Mr. McDonnell said the only petition that was received was to do an evaluation. He 

reiterated that there should be a petition in favor of speed bumps with the commitment by 
the Township to pay for it.  

• Clerk Findley asked if the resolution approved by the Township did anything. She added 
that those who are fighting for this shouldn’t have to go back and forth on this for so 
long.  

• Mr. Clifton said he has done extensive research on this process, and it looked “ugly”.  
• Trustee Linke raised her concern that wealthier neighborhoods have an advantage 

because of the higher percentage of home ownership versus renters. She questioned how 
to get that changed.  

• Mr. McDonnell said that is the current policy and procedure and he will take that 
feedback and consider it in future revisions.  

• Trustee Secrest said, for those who want to continue this discussion, the WCRC has 
meetings every Wednesday at noon that are public for viewing and participation. 
 

Mr. McDonnell continued in his report:  

g. There are two roadways that qualify for traffic management devices (speed 
humps). Oakbrook east of Tanglewood and Creekside.  

h. The next step in the process would be a petition for the installation of these 
devices. 

i. Once the signatures are verified, there would need to be a funding agreement with 
the Township.  
 

• Supervisor Schwartz asked if the WCRC has considered a pilot project with plastic 
removable speed tables.  

• Mr. McDonnell said they have not.  
• Supervisor Schwartz reiterated that cities are able to add speed bumps at their own 

discretion and Townships are under the jurisdiction of the WCRC.  
• Brian Clark asked how many subdivisions have actually met the petition criteria.  
• Mr. McDonnell said numerous subdivisions have met the petition criteria. 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 5 
 

It was moved by Trustee McGill supported by Trustee Lewis to approve the Consent 
Agenda removing the following items:  

1. Controller’s Report  
2. Planning and Zoning Report 

 The motion passed unanimously. 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• December 18, 2023, Regular Meeting 
 

B. REPORTS 

• Supervisor (No Report) 
• Liaison Report on Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting – Trustee 

Lindke 
• Community Center Advisory Committee Update – Clerk Findley (No Report) 
• Departmental Reports: Building Department, Fire Department, 

Ordinance Officer, Parks Commission Minutes, Sheriff’s Report, 
Planning and Zoning Report, Utility Department’s Report, Assessing 
Report 

• Controller’s Report 
• Monthly Financial Reports, November and December 

 
C. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
a. C2PST 
b. Hope Clinic 

8. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

A. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT  
 

• Trustee Lindke said the Planning and Zoning report did not have the mistaken 
$100,000.00 payment to Infinity Homes LLC. She added that this was from two 
years ago when the amount was requested by Infinity and was paid from the 
“DG” escrow account. 

• Trustee Lindke questioned why this was not in either the Planning and Zoning 
report nor the Controller’s report.  

• Supervisor Schwartz said when it was brought to his attention, he asked Laura 
Bennett, Planning and Zoning Administrator to inform Treasurer Lewis and Clerk 
Findley of what happened.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 6 
 

• Mrs. Bennett disagreed and said she was not asked to talk to either of them. 
• Supervisor Schwartz said Ms. Bennett told him that she talked to Clerk Findley.  
• Mrs. Bennett clarified that it was not on the same day, but she eventually did.  
• Trustee Lindke stressed her concerns that this was a large amount to be released 

from an escrow without the Board being informed. 
• Supervisor Schwartz said he has nothing to do with the bonds and he does not 

handle the bonds.  
• Clerk Findley said the one who does handle the bonds reports to the Supervisor.  
• Trustee Lindke asked how Ms. Bennett knew to go to Clerk Findley and Treasurer 

Lewis or was she asked about it.  
• Mrs. Bennett said she was asked about it.  
• Trustee Lindke said in the future something like this should be in the reports. 

B. CONTROLLER’S REPORT  

See above 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. STEPHENS DRIVE SPEED BUMPS 

Supervisor Schwartz explained this was addressed in the Presentations portion of 
the meeting.  

 
B. BID FOR SEPTIC TANK SERVICES 

 
1. BOLTON SEPTIC LLC 
2. JIM KOVALAK EXCAVATING & SEPTIC TANK SERVICE, INC. 

 
• Supervisor Schwartz explained the difference between the two bids.  
• Treasurer Lewis asked if there should be a presentation.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said if the Board wanted one then there could, but he is 

skeptical of the ability of Bolton Septic LLC. to complete this project at such a 
low cost.  

• Trustee McGill asked if the Board has checked references for the presented bids.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said Kovalak has completed the septic tank at the Fire 

Station and at Township Hall.  
 

It was moved by Trustee Secrest supported by Trustee McGill to accept the 
submitted bid for septic tank services from Jim Kovalak Excavating and Septic 
Tank Service, Inc. 

Roll Call  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 7 
 

  Ayes: Clerk Findley   
             Trustee Lindke  
   Trustee McGill  
   Trustee Secrest  
   Supervisor Schwartz 

 
  Nays: Trustee Caviston 
             Treasurer Lewis  
 
The motion passes by the majority.  

C. LASALLE INC. 
 

 Fred Lucas, Township Attorney, gave the following update: 
 

a. There is going to be a facilitation meeting.  
b. The Board should appoint members to appear with Mr. Deneweth at the 

facilitation. 
c. It needs to be clear that individuals appearing on behalf of the Board 

have no ability to “bind” the Board.  
d. It is a private facilitation.  
e. It is not arbitration.  
f. It should be two or three members of the Board. 
g. Keith Brooks is the facilitator.  
h. Facilitation is scheduled for February 22, 2024, at 9:00 a.m.  
i. George Tsakoff will be in attendance.  

 
• Trustee Lindke said she would like to volunteer herself to attend the facilitation.  
• Treasurer Lewis asked if there should be a member of the Superior Township 

Utilities Department.  
• Attorney Lucas said that it would not be a problem.  
• Clerk Findley said it should be Rickey Harding, Utilities Superintendent, or 

Mary Burton, Utilities Director.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said, and the Board agreed, for the members present should 

be the Supervisor, Trustee Lindke, and a member of the Utility Department.  
 

D. UPDATE ON EASEMENT ON “DIXBORO PROJECT” PROPERTY 
 

• Supervisor Schwartz said that Sava, the owner of the Dixboro Project, signed an 
easement and sent it to Nancy Mason but requested that it not be recorded.  

• Trustee Lindke requested information on what this is.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said Sava is giving us an easement across two properties 

and Ms. Kristen Landau is going to give us an easement. Supervisor Schwartz 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 8 
 

said he talked to Sava last week and he is getting her a letter that will reflect 
how much money she will lose donating it so it can be written off.  

• Supervisor Schwartz added that the Board bought an easement from Mr. Lawson 
and the rest are in the public right of way with the exception of Andrew Grant, 
on the corner of Plymouth and Dixboro because he is unwilling to give the 
property to the Township.  

• Supervisor Schwartz said he wants Attorney Lucas to draft a document that is 
similar to the Lawson agreement and see if it can get approved.  

 

E. RETURN OF BRENDA MCKINNEY’S, PREVIOUS TOWNSHIP 
TREASURER, LAPTOP 
 

• Clerk Findley reminded the Supervisor that he said he was going to follow-up on 
this matter. 

• Supervisor Schwartz on behalf of Brenda McKinney said she left the laptop with 
the Township.  

• Trustee Lindke asked if we take inventory of the equipment.  
• Clerk Findley said it would have been left in the Treasurer’s office.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said he believes Irma Golden received it.  
• Clerk Findley disagreed, saying Ms. Golden received the Supervisor’s laptop.  
• Supervisor Schwartz disagreed, saying he has only ever had two including the 

one he has now and the one that was destroyed.  
• Clerk Findley said the Supervisor has had another one. 

 

F. RELABELING OF GFL BINS  
 

• Supervisor Schwartz said he spoke with Sam Camaro and he was told GFL 
would begin relabeling the carts at the first of the year. The Supervisor added 
that he would reach out to follow up with him.  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. DISCUSS LETTER FROM EMPLOYEE TO CLERK 

 
Clerk Findley dispersed a handout that will be available at the end of these 

minutes. 
• Clerk Findley apologized that Carolyn Stuart had to leave the meeting early. 

She added that Carolyn was an excellent staff member who does great work. 
The Clerk added that the last several editions of the excellent Superior 
Scenes newsletter was a product of Carolyn’s expertise.   

• Clerk Findley began recalling past events in the Township and read an email 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 9 
 

that shared how she believes this series of events began. She began reading, 
saying, for the first time in November 2016, she found herself in 
disagreement with Supervisor Schwartz's recommendation. She expressed 
her hope that this dissent would not negatively impact their working 
relationship, clarifying her intention was not to challenge Schwartz's 
authority but to ensure they were making the right decisions. 

• Clerk Findley recalled the efforts back in early May 2017 to find a 
replacement for Rob Blanton. She said that although no candidates initially 
surfaced, Jeff Castro, who was planning to retire from YCUA, eventually 
expressed interest in the position to the Supervisor. 

• Clerk Findley expressed ethical concerns about the potential employment of 
Jeff Castro. She specifically questioned the appropriateness of paying Castro, 
who was in charge of YCUA and simultaneously receiving a weekly salary 
from them. She insisted that any contract with Mr. Castro should clearly 
outline his work hours and responsibilities. 

• Clerk Findley said the Controller Keith Lockie, due to ethical concerns, 
agreed that Jeff Casto should enter into a contract concerning employment. 

• Clerk Findley added that, instead of following the normal procedure of 
seeking Board approval through a resolution, Supervisor Schwartz decided to 
appoint Jeff Castro as a temporary employee.  

• Clerk Findley described facing retaliation from Township Officials after 
these developments. She reflected on her long career in higher education and 
the different political dynamics. She said that she believed if she could deal 
with the politics there that she could handle the ‘real’ politics, but they do not 
compare.  

• Clerk Findley accused Supervisor Schwartz of continuously meddling with 
office operations and staff since she revealed Jeff Castro. She highlighted 
why the Board is discussing this today with this specific incident involving a 
staff member named Carolyn putting a second letter of resignation in writing, 
describing how Schwartz's actions had adversely affected her and her 
decision to resign. 

• Clerk Findley stated that the original letter of resignation was given 
November 29, 2023. She stated that when she was given the letter, she was 
assured there were no issues and Carolyn even volunteered up front to return 
to assist during elections on the absentee voting count board. Carolyn then 
submitted her second letter only after being in the Supervisors office when 
herself and the Deputy were at a meeting with Washtenaw County.  

• Clerk Findley concluded her remarks expressing a sense of retaliation 
throughout the years against her since she did not support Jeff Castro's 
appointment. She linked this feeling to political strategies including personal 
agendas on behalf of Supervisor Schwartz which includes inviting Paula 
Jefferson, previous Township Deputy Clerk, suggesting a broader context of 
discord and division. 

• Clerk Findley said the Supervisor’s actions in regard to the hiring of Jeff 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 10 
 

Castro and the Utility Department reflect directly on what he did in Augusta 
Township and referred to an article that detailed his behavior, where he 
forced Mary Burton, Utility Director, to give special privileges to Hyundai 
which resulted in Hyundai receiving over $300,000.00. 

• Supervisor Schwartz asked Paula Jefferson to get up and express her 
concerns and support him.  

• Clerk Findley stated that Supervisor Schwartz made an announcement to his 
staff that Paula Jefferson was going to run for Clerk.  

• Clerk Findley added that she gave Paula Jefferson a letter of reprimand at 
year prior to her departure. 

• Paula Jefferson, former Township Deputy Clerk, spoke in regard to her 
negative experience working with Clerk Findley. 
Reminder: Due to an interruption by Supervisor Schwartz documents at the 

table are attached at the end of these minutes. 
 

B. DISCUSS COMPLAINT EMAIL FROM CLERK TO SUPERVISOR 
 
It was moved by Trustee Lindke supported by Trustee McGill to have a small 
committee of the Board to look into these two complaints and make a 
recommendation on how to move forward. The committee members are as 
follows: 

• Trustee McGill  
• Trustee Lindke  
• Trustee Secrest  

 
 The motion passed unanimously.  

C. RESOLUTION 2024-01, APPROVE 2024 POVERTY EXEMPTION 
GUIDELINE FOR THE BOARD OF REVIEW. 
 
The following resolution was moved by Treasurer Lewis supported by Trustee 
Secrest.  

 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2024 POVERTY EXEMPTION  

GUIDELINES FOR THE BOARD OF REVIEW 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-01 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 11 
 

DATE: JANUARY 16, 2024 

 WHEREAS the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is required of the 
Township Board; and 

     WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Board of Review determines 
by reason of poverty to be unable to contribute to the public charge, is eligible for exemption 
in whole or in part from taxation under Public Act 390 of 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and 

     WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390 of 1994, the Charter Township of Superior, 
Washtenaw County adopts the following guidelines for the Board of Review to implement. 
The guidelines shall include but not be limited to the specific income and asset levels of the 
applicant and all persons residing in the household, including any property tax credit returns, 
filed in the current or immediately preceding year; 

To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis: 

1) Be an owner of and occupy as a principal residence the property for which 
an exemption is requested. 

2) File a claim with the Board of Review, accompanied by federal and state 
income tax returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including 
any property tax credit returns filed in the immediately preceding year or in the 
current year.  

3) File a claim reporting that the combined assets of all persons do not exceed the 
current guidelines. Assets include but are not limited to, real estate other than the 
principal residence, personal property, motor vehicles, recreational vehicles and 
equipment, certificates of deposit, savings accounts, checking accounts, stocks, 
bonds, life insurance, retirement funds, etc.  

4) Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification if requested. 
5) Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the 

property for which an exemption is requested. 
6) Meet the federal poverty income guidelines published in the prior calendar year as 

defined and determined annually by the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services or alternative guidelines adopted by the governing body of the 
local assessing unit provided the alternative guidelines do not provide income 
eligibility requirements less than the federal guidelines. 

7) The application, Michigan Department of Treasury form 5737 (01-21) must be 
filed after January 1, but before the day prior to the last day of the December 
Board of Review. The filing of this claim constitutes an appearance before the 
Board of Review for the purpose of preserving the right of appeal to the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal.  

  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 12 
 

The following are the federal poverty income guidelines which are updated annually by the 
United States Department of Health and Human Services. The annual allowable income 
includes income for all persons residing in the principal residence. The Superior Township 
annual allowable income is also included for all persons residing in the principal residence.                             

Annual Allowable Income for 2024 Assessments 

      Number of Persons Residing      Federal Poverty Guideline       Superior Township 

               in the Principal Residence          Annual allowable income     Annual allowable income 

 

1 Person $14,580 $26,973 
2 Persons $19,720 $32,173 
3 Persons $24,860 $37,373 
4 Persons $30,000 $42,573 
5 Persons $35,140 $47,773 
6 Persons $40,280 $52,973 
7 Persons $45,420 $58,173 
8 Persons $50,560 $63,373 
For each additional person $5,140 per each additional 

person 
$5,200 per each 
additional person 

 

 

Asset Test 

The applicant is required to provide a list of assets for all persons residing in the residence. 

An applicant could meet the income guidelines but not the asset guidelines.  

The total assets for all persons residing in the residence excluding the value of the principal 
residence shall not exceed $25,000. 

   

Assets include but are not limited to:  

• A second home, land, vehicles 
• Recreational vehicles such as campers, motorhomes, boats, and ATV’s 
• Buildings other than the residence 
• Equipment, other personal property of value 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 13 
 

• All Bank accounts, stocks 
• Money received from the sale of property, such as, stocks, bonds, or a house or car 

(unless a person is in the specific business of selling such property) 
• Withdrawals of bank deposits and borrowed money 
• Gifts, loans, lump-sum inheritances, and one-time insurance payments 
• Food or housing received in lieu of wages 
• Federal non-cash benefits programs such as Medicare, Medicaid, food stamps and 

school lunches 
 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Review 
shall follow the above stated policy and guidelines of the local assessing unit in 
granting or denying an exemption. If a person claiming an exemption is qualified under 
the eligibility requirements the Board of review shall grant the exemption in whole or in 
part. A full exemption is equal to a 100% reduction in taxable value, a partial exemption is 
equal to a 75%, 50%, or 25% reduction. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, 
Washtenaw County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of 
Superior Board held on January 16, 2024, and that public notices of said meeting were 
given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

 
 

 
 

Roll Call  
  Ayes:  Trustee McGill  
             Trustee Caviston 
   Treasurer Lewis 
   Supervisor Schwartz  
   Clerk Findley 
   Trustee Lindke 
   Trustee Secrest 
  Nays: None.  
 
The resolution passed unanimously. 
 

D. RESOLUTION 2024-02, APPROVE PFEFFER, HANNIFORD, PALKA, 
LETTER OF ENGAGEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 

____01/16/2024____ 
     Date Certified 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 14 
 

 
The following resolution was moved by Trustee McGill supported by Treasurer 
Lewis.  

 
• Trustee Lindke said she would like the contract amount to be added to the 

resolution. Additionally, she asked about the cost for developing the annual 
financial statements broken out to be able to see how much the Township is 
charged for the service.  

 

 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-02 

DATE: JANUARY 16, 2024 

 

WHEREAS, the Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees has reviewed the audit 

engagement letter presented by Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka, Certified Public Accountants, 

detailing the scope and objectives for the audit of the financial statements of the Charter 

Township of Superior for the year ended December 31, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the audit engagement letter includes the auditing of the financial statements 

of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate 

remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial 

statements of the Charter Township of Superior; and 

WHEREAS, the engagement letter outlines the responsibilities of the auditors and the 

management, the audit procedures for internal control and compliance, the identification of 

significant risks, and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles in the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges the importance of this audit in ensuring the 

financial integrity and transparency of the Charter Township of Superior. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 15 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Superior Charter 

Township Board of Trustees approves the audit engagement letter from Pfeffer, Hanniford & 

Palka, as presented for the fee of $24,000.00. The Township Supervisor is authorized to sign the 

response section of the engagement letter, confirming the Township's understanding and 

agreement to the terms of the audit engagement. All Township officials and staff are directed to 

cooperate fully with Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka during the audit process and provide all 

necessary information and assistance as required.  

 
CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, 
Washtenaw County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of 
Superior Board held on January 16, 2024, and that public notices of said meeting were 
given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

 
 

Roll Call  

  Ayes:  Supervisor Schwartz  

             Trustee Lindke 
   Trustee Secrest 
   Treasurer Lewis  
   Clerk Findley 
   Trustee Caviston 
   Trustee McGill 
 
  Nays: None.  

 
The resolution passed unanimously. 

 

E. RESOLUTION 2024-03, APPROVE THE HIRE OF FIRE DEPARTMENT 
FIRE FIGHTER, JAMES MATTHEW GAKEN 
 
The following resolution was moved by Treasurer Lewis supported by Clerk 
Findley.  

____01/16/2024____ 
     Date Certified 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 16 
 

 
Fire Chief Vic Chevrette explained the resolution.  

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE HIRE OF FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE FIGHTER  

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-03 

DATE: JANUARY 16, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior has experienced the retirement of 

Firefighter Nick Robson, necessitating the hiring of a new firefighter; 
 

WHEREAS, on Wednesday, January 4, 2024, a selection panel including the Fire Chief, 
Fire Captains, Fire Fighters, the Township Supervisor, and Township Clerk conducted interviews 
with three applicants for the position; 
 

WHEREAS, after careful review of the interview documents and personnel applications, 
Fire Chief Victor G. Chevrette has recommended the hiring of James Matthew Gaken, based on 
his experience and qualifications; 
 

WHEREAS, James Matthew Gaken is currently employed as a firefighter with the 
Chelsea Area Fire Department, possesses 9 years of experience as a firefighter, serves as a 
member of the Washtenaw County Medical Control Board, and is a team member of the 
Washtenaw County Technical Rescue Team; 
 

WHEREAS, Fire Chief Victor G. Chevrette has attested to the suitability of James 
Matthew Gaken to be an asset to the Superior Township Fire Department; 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Gaken has met all the requirements of the hiring process, pending the 
completion of medical and psychological exams as well as a background check; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustees hereby hires James Matthew Gaken as a Firefighter for the Superior Township Fire 
Department, effective at the discretion of the Fire Chief, subject to the completion of all relevant 
hiring procedures and subject to all the provisions of the labor agreement with Fire fighters 
Union Local 3292, International Association of Fire fighters. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 17 
 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, 
Washtenaw County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of 
Superior Board held on January 16, 2024, and that public notices of said meeting were 
given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

 

 

 
 

Roll Call  

  Ayes:  Clerk Findley  
             Trustee Caviston 
   Treasurer Lewis 
   Trustee McGill  
   Trustee Lindke 
   Trustee Secrest 
   Supervisor Schwartz 

 
  Nays: None.  
 
The resolution passed unanimously. 

 
F. REVIEW ESCROW ACCOUNTS: INFINITY, DG, HYUNDAI, MCTAVISH 

AND SELECTIVE GROUP 
 

• Trustee Lindke raised the following concerns regarding Infinity Homes: 
a. They never had an escrow account.  
b. They asked for a payment, that they received, of $100,000.00. 
c. They knew the “DG” account was open when they asked for it.  

• Trustee Lindke said that “DG” desires their money back.  
• Trustee Lindke asked if the Township ever released Hyundai’s funds back to 

them because we were supposed to send them back $211,000.00.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said the Township sent back $184,000.00 and he said he 

requested Hyundai to potentially donate the remaining funds.  
• Trustee Lindke questioned why that is the case and what would prompt 

Hyundai to donate funds.  
• Trustee Lindke questioned why the Township is holding on to McTavish’s 

funds.  

____01/16/2024____ 
     Date Certified 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 18 
 

• Supervisor Schwartz said that McTavish went to prison.  
• Trustee Lindke was concerned that the Township holds on to money that 

does not belong to them.  
• Attorney Lucas said that the total amount of the escrow for DG was 

$184,000.00, which was initially deposited. 
• Attorney Lucas explained that DG had provided an assignment of $40,000.00 

to McTavish. Therefore, when DG requested the return of the $184,000.00, 
he indicated that the full amount would not be released due to this 
assignment. 

• Attorney Lucas clarified that the assignment sheet showed an amount of 
$41,000.00 assigned to McTavish, emphasizing that any amount beyond that 
would not belong to McTavish as it was the only amount assigned to him. 

• Attorney Lucas continued, stating that this assignment reduced the amount 
DG was entitled to, bringing it down to approximately $140,000.00. 

• Attorney Lucas mentioned that they contacted OHM to determine the cost of 
repairs or completion that DG would have to undertake. From this inquiry, 
they received an estimated cost of $25,000.00. 

• Attorney Lucas said he spoke to asset management and informed them of the 
decision to hold back $30,000.00 from the escrow. This was to ensure there 
was enough to cover all necessary expenses. 

• Attorney Lucas concluded by explaining how they arrived at the final 
number of $113,000.00. This figure was determined by subtracting the 
amount assigned to McTavish and the estimated cost for repairs and 
completion from the original escrow amount. 

• Trustee Lindke said she wants to assure that the Utility Department receives 
back the $13,000.00 that was approved.  

• Trustee Lindke said she saw communication between the Board and the 
Infinity lawyer. The lawyer had stated they did not want to return the entire 
$100,000, preferring instead to issue invoices against it. She expressed strong 
disbelief and frustration over this approach. 

• Trustee Lindke emphasized that the Board had already given Infinity 
$100,000 and insisted that this amount should be returned first. Following 
this, she suggested that the escrow account should be replenished with an 
additional $140,000. 

• Trustee Lindke acknowledged her uncertainty about the specific issues at 
hand but firmly stated that whatever was happening needed to be addressed 
and corrected promptly. 

• Trustee Lindke questioned the Bank of Ann Arbor document that has a stated 
line of credit.  

• Supervisor Schwartz said he is not sure what it is.  
  

It was moved by Trustee Lindke supported by Trustee McGill to perform an 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 19 
 

audit (Ken Palka) of the escrow accounts to effectively allocate funds to the 
appropriate parties.  

Roll Call  

  Ayes:  Clerk Findley  
             Trustee Secrest 
   Trustee Caviston  
   Treasurer Lewis 
   Trustee Lindke  
   Supervisor Schwartz  
   Trustee McGill 

 
  Nays: None.  
 
The resolution passed unanimously. 
 
Clerk Findley thanked Mrs. Bennett for standing up and owning her role in 
this situation.  

 
G. MOTION TO APPROVE “DG” AGREEMENT FOR FULL AND FINAL 

RELEASE OF CLAIMS 
 
 It was moved by Trustee McGill supported by Clerk Findley to table pending an 
audit.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

H. DISCUSS PROCESS TO SELL TOWNSHIP PROPERTY 
 

• Trustee Lindke said that last month, Ken reported about a man interested in 
buying a property off Plymouth Road, approximately 1.71 acres, for $65,000. 
She recalled Ken's plan to talk to the property owner about making a formal 
purchase offer, followed by an appraisal and negotiation. 

• Trustee Lindke mentioned that she visited the property before the holidays and 
noted its desirable location on Plymouth Road. She compared it to nearby 
properties in Mystic Forest, where homes are valued at around $1.2 million. 

• Trustee Lindke observed that similar properties in the area, like those in 
Tanglewood and Glengary, were priced much higher, around $340,000 to 
$350,000. She expressed concern that the $65,000 offer was significantly lower 
than these figures. 

• Trustee Lindke suggested that the Board should first decide whether they want to 
sell that property or any other property they own in the Charter Township of 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 20 
 

Superior. She proposed reviewing the list of properties the township holds to 
determine if there are any they no longer wish to keep. 

• Trustee Lindke raised a question about the origins of the land, recalling Ken's 
email that mentioned the property was donated during the development of 
Mystic Forest. She wondered about the reasons behind this donation and if there 
were any planning and zoning considerations involved. 

• Trustee Lindke proposed that in a future meeting, the Board should review all 
township-owned properties to decide if any should be sold. She mentioned 
potential projects like the Dixboro Green, speed bumps, and playground 
equipment that could benefit from repurposing the funds from such sales. 

• Trustee Lindke concluded by emphasizing the need for a clear process before 
proceeding with any property sales, ensuring that the township's interests and 
potential uses for the funds are thoroughly considered. 

• Attorney Lucas assured the Board that although anyone is able to present an 
offer, the Board is obligated to do an appraisal prior to any sale and subsequent 
Board approval.  

• The Board agreed that before any sale happens that there must be an appraisal.  
 

I. DISCUSS PROCESS TO REVIEW CONTRACTS: LEGAL, 
ENGINEERING, AUDITING, IT AND CONTROLLER 

 
• Trustee Lindke said that there is a need to re-bid contracts, specifically 

mentioning IT contracts. She recalled sending examples of IT bidding 
documents to Supervisor Schwartz but noted that there was no follow-
up action taken. 

• Trustee Lindke expressed a desire to audit the current service providers, 
acknowledging that while they may end up with the same contractors, it 
is important to review their performance due to the long duration of 
their engagement.  

• Trustee Lindke highlighted that they have had Ken Palka's firm for the 
current year, but she emphasized the need to open up the bidding 
process for a thorough evaluation. She noted that the firm in question 
has been providing services for about 20 years, underlining the 
importance of this audit and potential rebid. 

• Supervisor Schwartz clarified from the new business item that the 
Controller, Keith Lockie was not under a contract.  

• Trustee Lindke said, in regard to Keith Lockie, that there was an attempt 
to resign which was later rescinded. However, she believes that the 
time has come for a change, particularly in light of various issues 
related to accounting and auditing.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 21 
 

• Trustee Lindke expressed concern that having someone on-site could 
have provided better oversight and might have helped in identifying 
ongoing issues. She mentioned that the current situation poses a 
liability and risk, which is even noted in the management letter. 

• Trustee Lindke stated that it's problematic to have a key role filled by 
someone who lives in Florida, apologizing to Keith for the comment. 
She concluded by emphasizing the need for an in-house controller, 
indicating a shift towards having more direct and local oversight of 
financial matters. 

• Supervisor Schwartz said he thinks somebody in-house would be 
helpful but past audits have supported the accounting.  

• Trustee Lindke said that the assertion about past audits was incorrect 
according to the management letter’s contents. She clarified that there 
is a recurring material weakness noted in the management letter, 
stemming from the fact that the financial statements have to be 
prepared by external parties at the end of each period. 

• Trustee Lindke pointed out the impracticality of having a key financial 
role occupied by someone who resides in Florida. She argued that there 
are many local professionals capable of fulfilling this role. 

• Trustee Lindke expressed her strong opinion that it is essential to have 
someone local for this position. She mentioned the significant expense 
of over $100,000 paid to the current individual, plus additional costs for 
travel and for Palka's firm to prepare the financial statements. 

• Trustee Lindke concluded by emphasizing the financial feasibility of 
hiring a full-time, local professional given the amount of money 
currently being spent. 
 
Trustee Lindke moved to start looking into talking to Keith about 
stepping back and getting someone on Board for the Township that is 
local.  

Supervisor Schwartz said that the motion is too vague.  

Trustee Lindke moved to discuss terminating Keith Lockie’s 
employment and hiring a Controller or CPA on site.  

Supervisor Schwartz asked to table this until the next meeting saying 
that he believes her action is premature.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 22 
 

The motion died for lack of support.  

 
J. UPDATES FROM THE COMMITTEE TO REVIEW THE DESIRED 

LANGUAGE FOR THE JOB POSTING TO HIRE A PART TIME 
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR. 

 

• Trustee Lindke said that she and Trustee McGill, along with Nancy Mason, 
collaborated to draft a document. She mentioned that they referred to other 
townships for guidance, specifically looking at the roles and responsibilities of 
human resources directors to inform their draft. 

• Trustee Lindke acknowledged that while they have developed this draft, they had 
not yet assigned any budget or funds to the proposed position or plan. 

• Trustee McGill said this should potentially be considered for a full-time role.  
• Supervisor Schwartz and Clerk Findley agreed that the committee should propose 

an appropriate salary assessment and it will be voted on and posted in February.  
 
11. BILLS FOR PAYMENT AND RECORD OF DISBURSEMENTS 

 
It was moved by Trustee McGill supported by Trustee Lindke to approve the Bills for 
Payment and Record of Disbursements  
 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
12. PLEAS AND PETITIONS 

 
• Irma Golden asked if Board members receive additional compensation for the activities 

they are assigned.  
• Supervisor Schwartz said additional compensation can be considered but he generally 

considers this part of the job as an elected official.  
• Trustee Lindke asked that before any discussion on farming the “Rock Property” is 

considered, that it is open to the public and asked for it to be added to New Business in 
the February 2024 meeting.  

• Ramona Parker-Hayden-Muhamad asked why the Board does not meet more than once a 
month.  

• Samuel Haynes asked for the pothole that damaged his car to be fixed.  
• “SO” said they would like to see all communications mentioned on the agenda included 

in the Board packet.  
• Debby Mitchell Covington asked for the Township to upgrade the hybrid meeting 

experience.  
• “Resident” asked how the Board follows up on the citizens comments.  
• “Resident” asked about the audit process.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 16, 2024 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 23 
 

• “Resident” asked if the Board found a company to salt and plow.  
• “Resident” asked how can bids be accepted without the Board reviewing.  
• “SO” asked why the elected officials not have protective software on their equipment.  
• “Resident” asked does the Board have procedures to accept reports from Township 

employees in regard to treatment by elected officials.  
• “Resident” said the Township should have mandatory sexual harassment training for all 

employees and officials.  
• “Resident” said abuse allegations concerning elected officials should be investigated by 

outside parties.  
• “Resident” asked if the comment regarding the Clerk being on her 6th deputy true.  
• “SO” asked if a representation of the Sheriff’s Office present.  
• “Resident” asked who authorized the payment of the $100,000.00. 
• “Resident” said when reviewing land that the Township should review all assets.  
• Clerk Findley said, on behalf of the Sherriff’s Department, there has been representation 

in the meeting.  
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
It was moved by Trustee Lindke supported by Trustee McGill that the meeting be 
adjourned.  The motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 10:47 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Lynette Findley, Clerk        Kenneth Schwartz, Supervisor 
 



macdonellm
Polygonal Line

macdonellm
Callout
Residents in petition area



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

1. 
 

      

2.       

3.       

4. 
 

      

5. 
 

      

6. 
 

      

7. 
 

      

8. 
 

      

9. 
 

      

10. 
 

      

 



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

11. 
 

      

12.       

13.       

14. 
 

      

15. 
 

      

16. 
 

      

17. 
 

      

18. 
 

      

19. 
 

      

20. 
 

      

 



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

21. 
 

      

22.       

23.       

24. 
 

      

25. 
 

      

26. 
 

      

27. 
 

      

28. 
 

      

29. 
 

      

30. 
 

      

 



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

31. 
 

      

32.       

33.       

34. 
 

      

35. 
 

      

36. 
 

      

37. 
 

      

38. 
 

      

39. 
 

      

40. 
 

      

 



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

41. 
 

      

42.       

43.       

44. 
 

      

45. 
 

      

46. 
 

      

47. 
 

      

48. 
 

      

49. 
 

      

50. 
 

      

 



Washtenaw County Road Commission 
Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION PETITION 
We, the undersigned, indicate our support or opposition to the installation of speed humps on Stephens Drive between Nottingham Drive and 
Stamford Road. Seven (7) speed humps are proposed at the locations identified on the attached plan.  The intent of the speed humps is to reduce 
vehicle speeds and cut through traffic, providing a safer traffic environment within our neighborhood.  In order for the speed humps to be installed, a 
minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the residents affected by the project must support the installation of the speed humps.  If this petition is 
successful with at least 51 percent approval, the issue of funding will still need to be resolved with the township. 
 

Printed Name Address Email &  
Telephone Number 

Signature Date Please Check One 
Support Oppose 

51. 
 

      

52.       

53.       

54. 
 

      

55. 
 

      

56. 
 

      

57. 
 

      

58. 
 

      

59. 
 

      

60. 
 

      

 



0 150.00

3,600

NOTE: Parcels may not be to scale.

1:

600.0
The information contained in this cadastral map is used 
to locate, identify and inventory parcels of land in 
Washtenaw County for appraisal and taxing  purposes 
only and is not to be construed as a "survey description". 
The information is provided with the understanding that 
the conclusions drawn from such  information are solely 
the responsibility of the user. Any assumption of legal 
status of this data is hereby disclaimed.

© 2013 Washtenaw County
THIS MAP REPRESENTS PARCELS ATTHE TIME OF PRINTING.  THE OFFICIAL PARCEL TAX MAPS ARE MAINTAINED SOLELY BY THE WASHTENAW COUNTY
EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT AND CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING THAT OFFICE AT 734-222-6662.

300.0

Feet

1/18/2024

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Proposed speed 
humps on  
Stephens Dr





































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 



 
Superior Charter Township Regular Board Mee�ng  

February 20, 2024 
Parks and Recrea�on Commission Liaison Report 

 
 

For Parks and Recrea�on Commission Mee�ng on January 16, 2024 
 
The following is a synopsis of the above mee�ng. 
 
Reports 
 

• Chair Sanii-Yahyai repeated her wish to have a Clean Up Day for Superior Township and 
suggested that it be held close to Earth Day, which is April 22, 2024.  Irma Golden was 
asked for input on this idea, and she provided encouragement. 

 

• Director Bradford reported the following: 
o Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation will not be hosting a Summer 

Playground Camp at Christian Love Church this year.  They will hold the camp at 
Covenant Church and Grace Fellowship Church in Ypsilanti. 

o OHM is completing the architectural drawing and specifications for the staff 
restroom adjacent to Fireman’s Park.  Once completed, the project will be bid 
and, hopefully, completed in the spring. 

o The Commission was asked to support annual educational pay incentives for 
professional certifications related to park work which are held by staff.  

o Juan continues to meet with the Willow Run Acres staff to assist them with their 
plans for the Clay Hill Community Farm and Garden project. 

 
Old Business 
 

• Juan Bradford provided renderings of the Fireman’s Park play structure. He also 
discussed the need for more funding to close the gap of $212,000 for drainage mitigation 
and the play structure. 

 
New Business 

• The 2024 Events Calendar was reviewed. 
 
 
Submited by: 

Bernice Lindke, Trustee and Liaison 
February 13, 2024 



Building Department Report 

 
12 February 2024 

 

Permit ac�vity has started to pick up since my last report. 

1) Site work con�nues at Prospect Pointe West. Construc�on has begun for the “Sales 
Model”. 
 

2) As for the “Huron Dental Office” project at 5387 Plymouth rd. We are ready to issue 
permits as soon as they submit their “Performance Bond”. 

 
3) No changes to report regarding 4745 Napier ct. 
 
4) There has been an ongoing issue at 1629 Ridge, where the owner has created new, 

living spaces on the property. None of this was permited or inspected. It could not 
have been permited anyway, as it exceeds the sep�c system capacity. I have 
instructed him to vacate ALL structure other than the house proper.                                                                       

5) We have a few new custom homes that have been approved but have not yet 
started. 



02/01/2024

Building

Permit # Contractor Job Address Fee Total Const. Value

PB24-0009 MOON SARAH K & STEPHANIE L8539 BARRINGTON DR $1,325.00 $203,842

Work Description: Fire and smoke repair. Replace vinyl windows as needed. Separate electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits
required. Interconnected smoke alarms to current code required. Replace kitchen cabinets. Replace insulation and
drywall as needed. Reframe fire damaged walls & ceilings.

PB24-0008 FEAR DALBERT & AUSUM MARY 3706 CREEKSIDE CT $2,868.00 $441,176

Work Description: Remove existing sunroom & part of wall. Rebuild new solarium area w/ new windows & skylights.
Re-model mudroom, bathroom, pantry and kitchen. Create lower level study w/ tray ceiling.
Smoke alarms and CO detectors to be brought to current code.

PB24-0002 MCBAIN RUSSELL & ROSEANN 9563 FORD RD $3,250.00 $500,000

Work Description: New 1 story, 3 bedroom SFD on unfinished basement. No attached garage. This permit includes the demolition of the
existing house on the property. Open hole inspection required. C of O will not be issued for the new house until
demo is complete.

PB24-0007 HORNING CAITLIN A TRUSTEE 3887 GOTFREDSON RD $9,391.00 $1,444,825

Work Description: New 2 story SFD on finished basement with 4 car attached garage

PB24-0011 WILSON GREGORY J & SHEENA E2411 HICKMAN RD $1,300.00 $200,000

Work Description: 42'x64'x14' pole barn
Separate electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits required if applicable

PB24-0005 INFINITY ACQUISITIONS LLC 1670 MAPLE LEAF LN $1,802.00 $277,309

Work Description: 2 story SFD on unfinished basement w/ attached 2 car garage - Enclave Model - Elevation 'A'

PB24-0003 INFINITY ACQUISITIONS LLC 1706 MAPLE LEAF LN $1,802.00 $277,309

Work Description: 2 story SFD on unfinished basement w/ attached 2 car garage - Enclave Model - Elevation 'A'

PB24-0004 INFINITY ACQUISITIONS LLC 1718 MAPLE LEAF LN $1,954.00 $300,555

Work Description: 2 story SFD on unfinished basement w/ attached 2 car garage - Townsend Model - Elevation 'A'

PB24-0010 DAVIS LARRY & SHERRY 1143 STAMFORD RD $100.00 $9,250

Work Description: 61 ft of basement gutter & wall seal, 20 ft of drain tile tying into existing sump

PB24-0006 INFINITY ACQUISITIONS LLC 1491 WEEPING WILLOW CT $1,823.00 $280,520

Work Description: 2 story SFD on unfinished basement w/ attached 2 car garage - Madison II Model - Elevation 'C'

PB24-0001 DAVIS SHARON TRUSTEE 3334 WOODHILL CIR $311.00 $47,874

Work Description: Bath remodel. R&R all fixtures and finishes. No structural changes. Electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits
required.

Total Permits For Type: 11

Total Fees For Type: $25,926.00



Total Const. Value For Type: $3,982,660

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $25,926.00

Grand Total Permits: 11

Grand Total Const. Value: $3,982,660

Permit.PermitType  =  Building
AND
Permit.DateIssued  in  <Previous
month> [01/01/24 - 01/31/24]



SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP BUILDING DEPARTMENTPrinted: 02/01/2024

MONTH-END REPORT
January 2024

Number of PermitsCategory Estimated Cost Permit Fee

Electrical $0.00 $6,935.00 33

Mechanical $0.00 $5,805.00 41

Plumbing $0.00 $1,950.00 10

Res-Additions (Inc. Garages) $200,000.00 $1,300.00 1

Res-New Building $3,080,518.00 $20,022.00 6

Res-Other Building $9,250.00 $100.00 1

Res-Renovations $692,892.00 $4,504.00 3

Totals $40,616.00 95$3,982,660.00



2024January              To Date

Page: SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP BUILDING DEPARTMENT1

YEAR-TO-DATE REPORTPrinted: 02/01/24

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

Electrical $0.00 $6,935.00 33

Mechanical $0.00 $5,805.00 41

Plumbing $0.00 $1,950.00 10

Res-Additions (Inc. Garages) $200,000.00 $1,300.00 1

Res-New Building $3,080,518.00 $20,022.00 6

Res-Other Building $9,250.00 $100.00 1

Res-Renovations $692,892.00 $4,504.00 3

Totals $3,982,660.00 $40,616.00 95



MBv10 

To: Ken Schwartz, Lynette Findley, Lisa Lewis 

CC: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Vic Chevrette, Fire Chief 

2/5/2024 

Fire Chief/Fire Marshal Activity Report January 2024 

The following is the January 2024 activity report for the Fire Chief and Fire Marshal. 

FOIA Request: 2 

Meetings Attended: Washtenaw Area Mutual Aid Association, Hazmat Authority Board Meeting, 
Active Shooter Training Meeting at St. Joseph Hospital, Road Commission Meeting ref. damage to 
Utility Truck, OHM meeting ref Station 2 bathroom for Recreation Dept.; Meet with insurance ref 
damage to Ull-1.

Training: EMS annual ceu's. 

Fire Prevention/Public Education: no report 

Other: Fire fighter interviews, background investigations, review medical condition in ref to FF 
Clark and Workmens Comp. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Victor G. Chevrette, Fire Chief 



The following is the January 2024 activity report for the Fire Marshal 

Fire Suppression Plan Reviews Zoom Conference: 3 

Fire Suppression Inspections: 

Fire Protection Inspections: 1 

Fire Department Access inspection: l 

Fire Pump Flow Tests: 

Hydrant Flow Test: 

Plan Review: 2 

Building Inspection: 2 

Business Inspection: 1 

Site Inspections: 

Training Burn Code Research: 

Consultation, Fire Protection: 

Fire Alarm Plan Review: 

Fire Alarm Inspection: 

Fire Investigation: 1 

Fire Investigations follow up: 

Fire Code Enforcement: 

ESO training: 1 

Burning Complaint: 

Burn Permits issued: 

Food Truck Inspection Class: 1 

HlN ACO Class: 1 

Meetings: 2 

Mechanical / Suppression Class: 

Michigan Fire Inspectors Class: 

Knox Box Installation: 

Fire Department interviews: 1 

Planning Commission Board Meeting: 1 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dan Kimball, Fire Marshal 



Fire - Incident Types 
Date: Thursday, February 1, 2024 
Time: 11:34:44 AM 

Fire Incident Type Breakdo wn

Incident Type Group 

100 - Fire B 

300 - EMS 82 

400 - HAZMAT 10 

500 - Service Call 14 

600 - Serles 37 

700 - False Alarm 19 

170 

Page 1. 

































































































































Superior Township Monthly Report 
January/February 2024 

 
Resident Complaints/ Debris: 
6980 Stommel Ct. - Mattress & Debris on extension 
9843 High Meadow - Pods Container in yard - (Letter Sent to Resident) 
1717 Dover Ct. - 2-4 Uhal Containers in yard - (Letter Sent to Resident) 
8653 Nottingham Ct .- Debris by garage - (Tagged for Removal) 
 
Vehicle Complaints:  
9625 Geddes - Pick-up truck on side of road broke down 
9889 High Meadow - Large box truck parked on street - (Letter Sent to Resident) 
 
 Illegal Dumping: 
Between Geddes & Vreeland on Gotfredson - 5 spots of debris & junk have been 
dumped on side of road 



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/22/2024 

1 
 

Superior Charter Township Park Commission 
Regular Mee�ng 

December 18, 2023 
 

Approved Minutes 
 

1. Call to Order 
The mee�ng was called to order by Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai at 6:00 pm. 

 
2. Roll Call 

Park Commissioners present: Nahid Sanii-Yahyai, Greg Vessels, Riley Schofield, Cur�s Freeman, Jack Smiley, 
Guy Con�, Martha Kern-Boprie 
 
Park Commissioners absent 
 
Others present: Trustee Bernice Lindke; Juan Bradford, Park Director, Commissioner Crystal Lyte, Jan Piert 

 
3. Flag Salute 

Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai led those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

4. Agenda Approval 
It was moved by Riley Schofield and supported by Jack Smiley to approve the agenda with the addi�on of 
New Business D. Rock Property Resolu�on and New Business E. Compensa�on for Cer�fica�ons.  The 
mo�on carried. 

 
5. Prior Mee�ng Minutes Approval 

A. November 27, 2023 
It was moved by Riley Schofield and supported by Guy Con� to approve the minutes of 11/27/2023 as 
dra�ed.  The mo�on carried. 

 
6. Ci�zen Par�cipa�on 

Jan Piert spoke in objec�on to approving the conserva�on easement for the Rock Property without first 
seeking ci�zen input on the issue. 
Crystal Lyte also spoke, and requested further public discussion before approving the conserva�on 
easement for the Rock Property. 

 
7. Reports 

A. Chairperson 
Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai noted the Christmas Tree Ligh�ng event was great.  She would like beter 
access to the Old Twp Hall for this event.  Nahid also asked that the writen Board Liaison Report be 
provided to the Park Commissioners in advance of the Park Commission mee�ng, so there is an 
opportunity to review it before the mee�ng.  

 
B. Director 

Juan Bradford submited a writen report.  He added to the report that the Christmas Tree Ligh�ng 
event was great. 

 
C. Board Liaison 

Trustee Bernice Lindke stated the Township Board has not met since the last Park Commission 
mee�ng, so she does not have anything to report on.  The Township Board will meet tonight at 7:00 
am. 

 
D. Board Atendee 



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/22/2024 

2 
 

The Township Board has not met since the last Park Commission mee�ng, so the Board Atendee has 
not had a mee�ng to atend. 

E. Park Steward 
No report. 

 
F. Safety 

No accidents or injuries in the past month.  Addi�onal safety gear has been purchased for park staff 
members. 

 
8. Communica�ons 

A. Community Center Advisory Commitee leter to Ypsilan� Community School Board 
B. Clerk Lynete Findley to Ypsilan� Community School Board 
 
It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Guy Con� to receive the Communica�ons.  The 
mo�on carried. 

 
9. Old Business 

A. Community Center Advisory Commitee (CCAC) Update 
Minutes of the CCAC 11/02/2023 mee�ng were provided.  County Commissioner Crystal Lyte was 
present, and informed the Park Commission that the Ypsilan� Community School Board gave the 
Superintendent authority to enter final nego�a�ons with the Washtenaw County Board of 
Commissioners and Administrator for sale of the Cheney school property to the county. 

 
B. Use of Ypsilan� Township Recrea�on Facili�es by Superior Township residents 

Juan Bradford sent another email to Ypsilan� Township officials and staff about the request to permit 
Superior Township residents to use Ypsilan� Township recrea�on facili�es at the same fee as Ypsilan� 
Township residents.  Guy Con� offered to join a mee�ng with Juan and Ypsilan� Township 
representa�ves. 

 
10. New Business 

A. 2024 Park & Recrea�on Commission mee�ng dates 
It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Nahid Sanii-Yahyai to set the 2024 mee�ng 
dates and �mes of the Superior Charter Township Park Commission as follows: 
January 22  Monday 6:30 pm 
February 26  Monday 6:30 pm 
March 25  Monday 6:30 pm 
April 22  Monday 6:30 pm 
May 28  Tuesday 6:30 pm mee�ng held on Tuesday due to Memorial Day holiday 
June 24  Monday 6:30 pm 
July 22  Monday 6:30 pm 
August 26  Monday 6:30 pm 
September 23 Monday 6:30 pm 
October 28  Monday 6:30 pm 
November 25 Monday 6:30 pm 
December 16 Monday 6:00 pm Mee�ng held on 3rd Monday due to Christmas holiday 
 
The mo�on carried. 

 
B. Township Board Mee�ng Atendees 

Park Commissioners volunteered to atend 2024 Township Board mee�ngs as noted below. 
January 16  Nahid Sanii-Yahyai 
February 20  Greg Vessels 
March 18  Guy Con� 



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/22/2024 

3 
 

April 15  Guy Con� 
May 20  Martha Kern-Boprie 
June 17  Jack Smiley 
July 15  Riley Schofield 
August 19  Riley Schofield 
September 16 Cur�s Freeman 
October 21  Nahid Sanii-Yahyai 
November 18 Greg Vessels 
December 16 Martha Kern-Boprie 

 
C. 2023 Park Fund Budget Amendments 

It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Guy Con� to recommend approval to the 
Township Board of 2023 Park Fund Budget Amendments dated 12/18/2023 and detailed in the 
amendment worksheet.  The mo�on carried. 

 
D. Rock Property Conserva�on Easement Resolu�on 

It was moved by Jack Smiley and supported by Guy Con� to approve the following resolu�on: 
 
WHEREAS, protec�on of the ”Rock Pproperty” is in keeping with the Township’s master plan and with 
the Superior Township Parks, Recrea�on & Open Space Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, placing a conserva�on easement on the property is essen�al in order to protect the 
conserva�on values of the land in perpetuity for the benefit of Superior Township residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, land conserva�on efforts in Superior Township have relied on valuable partnerships with 
Washtenaw County Parks & Recrea�on Commission, City of Ann Arbor, Southeast Michigan Land 
Conservancy and numerous other nonprofit organiza�ons; and 
 
WHEREAS, Washtenaw County Parks & Recrea�on Commission has been a par�cularly strong partner 
and has contributed over $10 million to land conserva�on within the Township, which far exceeds the 
amount invested by Superior Charter Township, and 
 
WHEREAS, Washtenaw County Parks & Recrea�on Commission has agreed to hold the conserva�on 
easement on the “Rock” property and will likely assist with both programming and stewardship of the 
property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Superior Township Parks and Recrea�on Commission 
strongly urges the Board of Trustees to move forward, without delay, with its commitment to protect 
the “Rock” property in perpetuity by establishing a conserva�on easement on the property, which is 
acceptable with the Superior Township Parks & Recrea�on Commission, to be held by the Washtenaw 
County Parks and Recrea�on Commission. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superior Township Parks and Recrea�on Commission encourages 
the Board of Trustees to transfer jurisdic�on over the “Rock” property to the Superior Township Parks 
and Recrea�on Commission so that we may begin the important task of planning how to best u�lize 
the “Rock” property to meet the recrea�onal and open space needs of the Township. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Nahid Sanii-Yahyai  Yes 
Cur�s Freeman  Yes 
Riley Schofield  Yes 
Guy Con�   Yes 
Greg Vessels   Yes 



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/22/2024 

4 
 

Jack Smiley   Yes 
Martha Kern-Boprie  Yes 
The resolu�on was adopted. 

 
E. Cer�fica�on Compensa�on 

Juan Bradford informed park commissioners that the Township Board provides addi�onal 
compensa�on to township employees in other departments as they obtain other professional 
cer�fica�ons.  These are not college degrees, but cer�fica�ons that specific skills and capaci�es have 
been achieved.  Juan is seeking similar compensa�on for park department staff.  The park commission 
does not have to take ac�on on this.  Juan is bringing it before the Township Board. 

 
11. Bills for Payment 

It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Guy Con� to approve payment of the bills totaling 
$23,773.96 at 12/18/2023.  The mo�on carried. 

 
12. Financial Statements 

It was moved by Riley Schofield and supported by Guy Con� to receive the November 2023 financial 
statements.  The mo�on carried. 

 
13. Pleas and Pe��ons – none 
 
14. Adjournment 

It was moved by Guy Con� and supported by Greg Vessels to adjourn at 6:55 pm.  The mo�on carried. 
 
Submited by, 
Martha Kern-Boprie, Park Commissioner and Secretary 
  



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 

 

Public Safety – Quality Service – Strong Communities 
Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

February 12, 2024 
 
To: Kenneth Schwartz, Superior Township Supervisor 
From: John Cratsenburg, Lieutenant 
Through: Keith Flores, Police Services Commander 
Re: January 2024 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
Monthly Numbers: 
Calls for Service: 964 
Traffic Stops:  276 
OWI/OUID:  1 
Traffic Crashes: 42 
Animal Complaints: 4 
Citations:  82 
 
Significant Incidents: 
24-2430  1515 Ridge    Death Investigation 

82-year-old male with long history of health trouble and cardiac issues.  
No signs of foul play and turned over to ME Office. 
 

24-4109  7900 Block of Hallie Dr Death Investigation  
82-year-old female with long medical history.   No signs of foul play and 
MEI responded and released the subject to the family’s funeral home.     

 
24-5460  Prospect/Park   Fatal Hit and Run Traffic Crash 

Deputies were dispatched to a subject laying on the side of the roadway.   
After arriving, Deputies found the subject deceased with signs of a motor 
vehicle crash.   Traffic Services was requested and conducted an 
investigation.  Deputies were able to establish a suspect vehicle and 
suspect driver.   Both the vehicle and driver were located at a later time 
and the driver was arrested.   This is still an active investigation.   
 

24-6880 1200 Block of Stamford Ct Aggravated Domestic Assault and False 
Imprisonment 
Victim was assaulted several times by her boyfriend.  He took her and 
forced her to leave the house with the children left inside.  He then 
forced her to walk with him around the MacArthur Blvd, keeping her 
phone and refusing to let her leave his side.  Subject fled when police 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 
 

Public Safety – Quality Service – Strong Communities 
Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

 
 

presence was noticed in the area by the suspect.   Suspect has not been 
located at this time and a warrant request was submitted.    
 

In/Out of Area Time: 
Into Area Time: 690   
Out of Area Time: 630 



SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP MONTHLY POLICE SERVICES DATA

January 2024

Traffic Stops 276 387 -29% 276 387 -29%

Citations 82 73 12% 82 73 12%

Drunk Driving (OWI) 1 3 -67% 1 3 -67%

Drugged Driving (OUID) 0 0 - 0 0 -

Calls for Service Total 964 990 -3% 964 990 -3%

Calls for Service                  
(Traffic stops and non-response 

medicals removed)

564 504 12% 564 504 12%

Robberies 0 0 - 0 0 -

Assaultive Crimes 17 13 31% 17 13 31%

Home Invasions 3 2 50% 3 2 50%

Breaking and Entering’s 0 0 - 0 0 -

Larcenies 5 10 -50% 5 10 -50%

Vehicle Thefts 5 1 400% 5 1 400%

Traffic Crashes 42 27 56% 42 27 56%

Medical Assists 7 12 -42% 7 12 -42%

Animal Complaints           (ACO 

Response)
4 12 -67% 4 12 -67%

In/Out of Area Time Month 
(minutes)

YTD 
(minutes)

Into Area Time 690 690

Out of Area Time 630 630

Investigative Ops (DB) 14445 14445

Secondary Road Patrol 5870 5870

County Wide 55 55

Banked Hours
Hours 

Accum.

Previous 

Balance

Hours 

Used
Balance

January Collab

+ = Positive Change                                                    

- = Negative Change

Incidents
Month 

2023

YTD       

2024

YTD       

2023

%    

Change

Month 

2024

%    

Change



 Incident Count by Incident Type For Agency WD
For 1/1/2024 12:00:00 AM Thru 1/31/2024 11:59:59 PM

For  City Code(s) - YOT

City Incident Address / Location Incident Call Date Location
YOT 240000872 10440 RIDGELINE DR 01/04/2024 08:28:21 RESD

YOT 1

Total: 1

Alarm Report by Area2/1/24 9:50 AM 1/1



 Incident Count by Incident Type For Agency WD
For 1/1/2024 12:00:00 AM Thru 1/31/2024 11:59:59 PM

For  City Code(s) - YOT
For  Incident Type(s) - 

Incident Call Date Alarms Incident Address / Location City Location

01/04/2024 08:28:21 C3999 - ALARMS ALL OTHER 240000872 10440 RIDGELINE DR YOT RESD

C3999 - ALARMS ALL OTHER Total: 1  

Sum: 1

Alarm Report by Area2/1/24 9:50 AM 1/1







MEMO 

TO:  Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees 
FROM: Laura Bennett, Planning & Zoning Administrator 
RE:  Planning & Zoning Department Report 
DATE:  February 12, 2024 
 
Brookwood of Superior 

Brookwood of Superior presented a revised Area Plan to the Planning Commission on January 24, 
2024. The Planning Commission directed staff to draft a Resolution of Approval for STPC 23-05 
Brookwood Superior Area Plan Amendment. This Resolution of Approval will be voted on at the 
February 28, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. The Area Plan will be placed on the March 18, 
2024 Board of Trustees agenda for public hearing and final determination.  

Draft Master Plan 

At their meeting on November 15, 2023, the Planning Commission released the Draft 
Comprehensive Master Plan for a 63-day review period.  A link to the Plan was mailed to all 
surrounding jurisdictions and placed on the Township’s website.   

A public hearing with the Planning Commission will be scheduled for February 28, 2024, at 7:00pm 
to receive comments from the public. 

Garrett’s Space 

At their meeting on January 24, 2024, the Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Site Plan 
for Garrett’s Space with the following conditions: 

1. Clarify timing of the phases. Combine parcels.    
2. Submit a conservation easement with legal description for Township review. 
3. Confirm if an EGLE permit is required.  If required, obtain permit prior to final site 

plan approval. 
4. Indicate any location where new development, grading, or other activity is proposed 

within a steep slope area as defined in the ordinance. 
5. Confirm access and any necessary road improvements from the Road Commission.  
6. Submit a lighting and photometric plan.      
7. Submit a landscaping plan.  
8. Provide a detailed narrative of the architectural concept for the site including 

materials details.   
9. Address all items in the Township Engineers January 11, 2024 review. 
10. Address all items in the Fire Marshal’s December 18, 2023 review.  

Kinsley 

The Kinsley Development Final Site Plan, consisting of 21 single family homes, on Plymouth-Ann 
Arbor Road has received approval from the Road Commission and EGLE (Environment, Great 
Lakes, and Energy).  This Final Site Plan is on track to be placed on the February 28, 2024 Planning 
Commission agenda.  



      
 

 

 

 

Utility Department Memorandum 

To:      Superior Township Board of Trustees 
From:   Mary Burton 
Date  February 20, 2024     
Re:        Utility Department Report 
 

• Meter replacement plans have been made for the Hyundai Technical 
Center master meter. The job will be completed by the end of this month. 
 

• Trinity Health/St. Joseph Hospital will need to replace10 of its meters at 
several buildings on the campus.  We are working with their building 
maintenance department and expect to have the meters replaced this 
Spring.  

 
• An updated quote is being prepared by the contractor, Sole` 

Construction for the Stamford Rd. water main replacement project. The 
plan for the original size of the water main has been changed from an 8 
inch to 12 inch main.  This is needed since the original quote is from last 
year. 
 

• A quote was received for a much needed upgrade to our PLC/HMI 
system at the booster pump station. We are working with the original 
contractor, Engineered Solutions Midwest and OHM to complete the 
upgrade.  The station has never had an upgrade since it was installed, 
and the equipment has become obsolete. 
 

• A water main break occurred in the 1700 block of Hamlet Drive between 
Buckingham and Glendale.  The break was repaired and services restored 
the same day.    
 

• Lead and copper sampling will begin at the end of March for distribution 
system two.  There will be 10 participants for this year’s sample pool. 
 

• A valve exercising schedule has been implemented and crews will begin 
this month.   

 
• A sewer back-up was reported on Heather Court, after maintenance 

crews were called out, it was discovered to be in the resident’s line.  



                                                  Utility Department Report                                           
2 

 

 
 

• Completion of endpoint installations throughout the township will be 
wrapping up soon.  There are less than 30 installations which are expected 
to be completed by next month. 
 

• Due to ongoing issues with network connectivity problems, the Utility 
Admin office has continued to open tickets with TAZ Tech Support.  
Resolving the problems have been problematic and response time has 
been unacceptable.   

 
• The Utility Department is happy to welcome its newest Field Service 

Technician, Raymond Wilson, to the maintenance crew. Raymond is a 
great addition to our team and will be studying for his S-4 license. 
 
 
 
 

 



 
JANUARY 2024 ASSESSING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

 
For the month of January, the assessing department has con�nued to collect data that will be used to set 
up the 2024 tax bills. The assessment no�ces will be mailed at the end of February to the taxpayers, and 
then the informa�on will be presented to the Board of Review members. The calcula�ons are 
con�nuously being worked on with spreadsheets by the assessor, to ensure that each taxpayer is 
properly assessed. There will be around 120 spreadsheets completed before the no�ces are mailed. 
 
The poverty guidelines were updated and then presented to the Clerk’s office for the 2024 resolu�on. 
 
The personal property statements were mailed out at the end of December. They are due back to the 
township by February 20th to be entered and processed. 
 
The appraisers are con�nuing their work which will assist with se�ng the values for the 2024 tax year. 
Some of the du�es that were completed by the appraisers (not a complete list): 
 

• In January and February, the appraisers will calculate the percentage of comple�on for each of 
the 312 new construc�on homes. They will then add each one individually to the BS&A so�ware 
and then calculate the 2024 taxable and assessed values.  

• 16 final building inspec�ons were completed, with interior inspec�ons and exterior 
measurements. They were entered in BS&A using blueprints and informa�on gathered by the 
appraisers. 

• Accepted 25 Property Transfer Affidavits, Principal Residence Exemp�ons, Rescinds and address 
changes and then entered them into BS&A.  

• Accepted 9 Veterans Exemp�ons at the counter.  
• Assisted numerous residents, realtors, and �tle companies with ques�ons or requests for 

informa�on via phone calls, e-mails, or in person. 
 
December through March are our terribly busy months. There is a lot to do to prepare the paperwork for 
the 2024 assessments. We are also preparing for the state to audit our informa�on for the 2024 tax year. 
This is done every 5 years and will be completed this year. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Paula Calopisis, Assessor 







































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 





From: Ramona Parker-Muhammad <ramonapm@comcast.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 10:05 AM 
To: Board <board@superior-twp.org> 
Subject: Formal Complaint - Supervisor Schwartz 
 
Good morning,  
   
I would like to make a formal complaint against Supervisor Schwartz per the email 
exchange below.  I would also like this complaint included in the Board packet.   At the 
January Board of Trustee meeting, I requested copies of the Management Letters from 
previous audits.  At that meeting, Supervisor Schwartz provided instructions publicly 
(email my request to him) of how to obtain those copies.  I followed those instructions. 
Please note: a timeline for my request to be submitted was never given.  
   
Per my emails below, I received a phone call from Supervisor Schwartz.  When asked 
how he obtained my phone number, he replied it was listed.  
   
I do not know what is meant by 'your number is listed'.  Where is it listed?  Why did you 
search for my phone number as that is the only way you could have obtained it?  I did 
not specifically provide my number to you which means I did not invite you to call 
me.  This behavior of entitlement to use resident information obtained in other ways is 
inappropriate and can be viewed as attempted intimidation (i.e. elected officials can find 
out any information pertaining to residents that they want therefore be careful what you 
question). To make those phone calls from the offices of the township, which means the 
calls are being made by a person in their role as an elected official of the township, can 
also be viewed as harassment.   I am also aware of other community members who 
have requested information at board meetings, been given the same instruction, and did 
not receive a phone call on their private/personal number.  Why me? I don't care if my 
number was written on a bathroom wall, that does not give you permission (which is 
required by me) to call me. And then to answer my question of his inappropriateness 
with a question in an attempt to place the burden of explanation on me is a gas lighting 
exercise of which I choose not to participate.  
   
Supervisor Schwartz is correct in his assessment that I reached out to him for the 
information. However, I reached out to him via email (as instructed) and asked for a 
response in the same manner. The fact that he did not read his email has absolutely 
nothing to do with me but is solely a reflection of his mismanagement of his duties and 
time.  
   
In regards to how to address me, I told Supervisor Schwartz how to address me at the 
first board meeting I attended. He has addressed me as requested since that time 
(check the video) at each meeting when I have made comments on the fraud of the 
Treasurer's Office, the lack of accountability for the Controller, payments made from the 
escrow account to the wrong developer, lawsuits, and other matters.  For him to now 
address me with such familiarity (again, uninvited) as if he isn't aware of how to address 
me is insulting, disrespectful and speaks to his dismissiveness of the value of his 
constituents (also known as his employers).   

mailto:ramonapm@comcast.net
mailto:board@superior-twp.org


   
Again, his comfortability in behaving with familiarity towards me is concerning and 
causes me to wonder how many other residents have experienced this.   
   
We CAN do better Superior Township.....and I KNOW that we will.  
   
Sincerely,  
   
Ramona Parker Hayden Muhammad  
Superior Township Resident  

  

On 01/23/2024 4:41 PM EST Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org> wrote:  
   
   

Ramona Parker-Muhammad, 

  

Your number is listed.  Why would it be inappropriate to call?  You reached out to me for information.  I 
just wanted to get it to you.     Please tell me how to address you and I will address you in that manner.  

  

Ken Schwartz 

  

From: Ramona Parker-Muhammad <ramonapm@comcast.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 3:45 PM 
To: Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org> 
Cc: Board <board@superior-twp.org> 
Subject: Re: FW: Attached Image 

  

Thank you Supervisor Schwartz for providing the information I asked for at the January 
2024 Board of Trustees meeting.  

   

At the meeting, you told me to send an email to you to acquire the information.  I sent 
that email to you on Thursday, January 18, 2024 at 11:09 a.m.  

  You don't often get email from ramonapm@comcast.net. Learn why this is important   

mailto:kenschwartz@superior-twp.org
mailto:ramonapm@comcast.net
mailto:kenschwartz@superior-twp.org
mailto:board@superior-twp.org
mailto:ramonapm@comcast.net
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


   

I was very surprised to receive a phone call from you on January 18, 2024 at 11:51 a.m. 
asking me for my email address in order to send the documents to me.  I shared that I 
had sent you an email already.  Your response was that you hadn't checked your emails 
which you did while on the phone with me.  You then gave me a verbal 
acknowledgement of receipt of the email and said you would send the documents to 
me.  

   

Based on this exchange, I have the following questions:  

   

1.  How did you get my phone number?  I never provided it.  

   

2.  Since you didn't get it from me, why did you think it appropriate to call me?  

   

3.  And lastly, why did you think it appropriate to address me by my first name (spelled 
incorrectly) in your response with the documents?   

   

Your behavior of familiarity is very concerning to me.  

   

~Ramona Parker Hayden Muhammad  

  

On 01/18/2024 11:55 AM EST Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org> wrote: 

  

  

Romona, 

  

mailto:kenschwartz@superior-twp.org


Please find attached the management letters you requested.  If I can be of any further assistance, please 
do not hesitate to call. 

  

Ken Schwartz 

Superior Township Supervisor 

(734) 482-6099 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE MIDDLE HURON PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2023-74 

DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 

  
  WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior has received the “Middle Huron 
Partnership” contract from the Huron River Watershed Council (HRWC); and 
 

WHEREAS, this contract begins on January 1, 2024, and ends on December 31, 2028. 
Either party may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement by giving the other party at 
least ninety (90) days advance written notice. The parties may, by written agreement, extend this 
Agreement for additional time periods; and 
 

WHEREAS, From January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2028, the Township will pay 
HRWC an amount not to exceed $36,513.00 over the five-year life of the contract, payable in 
five annual installments. Each installment shall be payable within 30 days from the date of the 
invoice; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Huron River Watershed Council supports partner municipalities and 
agencies like the Charter Township of Superior in the middle section (Washtenaw County) of the 
Huron River watershed to address stormwater and other pollution sources to the Huron River 
downstream to Ford and Belleville Lake; and 
 

WHEREAS, the HRWC performs the following tasks:  
• Coordinate and facilitate Partner meetings and implement the Public Participation Plan 

(PPP). 
• Prepare program reports for Partners. 
• Conduct water chemistry, macroinvertebrates, and flow monitoring. 
• Develop priority implementation projects. 
• Provide technical assistance to Partners on permit compliance and watershed 

management issues. 
• Continue to implement the Public Education Plans (PEP). 
• Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan Priority Activities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Charter Township of Superior 
approves the “Middle Huron Partnership Contract” from the Huron River Watershed Council and 
will accept the five-year work plan, budget, and will pay HRWC an amount not to exceed 
$36,513.00 over the five-year life of the contract, payable in five annual installments of 
$7,302.60.  



 
 
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
Project: Middle Huron Partnership 

1 

Agreement is made this sixth of November, 2023 by Superior Charter Township 
(Partner), whose address is 3040 N. Prospect Rd., Ypsilanti, MI  48198, and the Huron 
River Watershed Council (HRWC), whose address is 117 North First Street, Suite 
100, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 48104. 

In consideration of the promises below, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I – SCOPE OF SERVICES 

HRWC will provide services as described in the Statement of Work (Middle Huron 
Partners Work Plan). 

ARTICLE II – COMPENSATION 
From January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2028, the Partner will pay HRWC an 
amount not to exceed $36,513 over the five-year life of the contract, payable in five 
annual installments. Each installment shall be payable within 30 days from the date of the 
invoice.  

ARTICLE III – REPORTING OF CONSULTANT 

Section 1 - HRWC is to coordinate activities with the Partner and will cooperate and 
confer with individuals as necessary to ensure satisfactory work. 

Section 2 – When applicable, HRWC will submit quarterly reports to the Partner. 

ARTICLE IV – TERM 

This contract begins on January 1, 2024 and ends on December 31, 2028.  Either party 
may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement by giving the other party at least 
ninety (90) days advance written notice. The parties may, by written agreement, extend 
this Agreement for additional time periods. 

ARTICLE V – PERSONNEL 

The parties agree that HRWC is neither an employee nor an agent of the Partner for any 
purposes. It is the express intention of the parties that HRWC is an independent 
consultant and not an employee, agent, joint venture, or partner of the Partner. Nothing in 
this agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the 
relationship of employer and employee between HRWC and the Partner. Both parties 
acknowledge that HRWC is not an employee under the laws or regulations of any 
government or governmental agency, including but not limited to, any federal, state, or 
local taxing authority.  

ARTICLE VI – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

HRWC will maintain at its own expense during the term of this contract, the following 
insurance, proof of which will be submitted to the Partner upon request: 

1. Worker’s Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits and Employers
Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any employee. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT  
Project: Middle Huron Partnership 

 

2 
 

2. Comprehensive/Commercial General Liability/Professional Liability Insurance with 
a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage.   
3. HRWC will indemnify the Partner and its officers, employees and agents from all 
liability of any sort that may result from injury or death to any person or loss or damage 
to any property in the performance of any services funded in whole or in part under this 
Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE VII – COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 

HRWC will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations, including but 
not limited to all applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the American Disabilities 
Act. 
 

ARTICLE VIII EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 

If HRWC hires one or more employees, as regular employees or through subcontract, 
HRWC will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, 
height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion and political belief (except as it 
relates to a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal 
operation of business). 
 
HRWC will take affirmative action to eliminate discrimination based on sex, race, or a 
handicap in the hiring of applicant and the treatment of employees. Affirmative action 
will include, but not be limited to: Employment; upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment advertisement; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
 
HRWC agrees to post notices containing this policy against discrimination in 
conspicuous places available to applicants for employment and employees. All 
solicitations or advertisements for employees, placed by or on the behalf of HRWC, will 
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, 
age, height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion or political belief. 
 

ARTICLE IX – ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
 

This contract is binding on HRWC and the Partner, their successors and assigns. Neither 
HRWC nor the Partner will assign or transfer its interest in this contract without the 
written consent of the other. 
 

ARTICLE X – EQUAL ACCESS 
 

HRWC shall provide the services set forth in the Statement of Work without 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, 
marital status, physical handicap, or age. 
 
 
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT  
Project: Middle Huron Partnership 

 

3 
 

11/6/2023

ARTICLE XI – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND PUBLICATION 
 

All documents developed as a result of this contract will be freely available to the public, 
 other than those for which confidentiality is required, as jointly determined by HRWC 
 and the Partner. 
 

ARTICLE XII – CHANGES IN SCOPE OR SCHEDULE OR SERVICES 
 

Changes mutually agreed upon by HRWC and the Partner will be incorporated into this 
contract by written amendments signed by both parties. 
 
 

 
Superior Charter Township Huron River Watershed Council   
 
 
  
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Ken Schwartz, (date) Rebecca Esselman, (date) 
Supervisor Executive Director 
 
 



November 6, 2023 

Mr. Ken Schwartz 
Supervisor 
Superior Charter Township 
3040 N. Prospect Rd. 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 

RE:	2024‐28	Contracts	for	the	Middle	Huron	Partnership	

Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

For nearly 30 years, the Huron River Watershed Council (HRWC) has provided support to partner 
municipalities and agencies through the Middle Huron Partners to address stormwater and other 
pollution sources into the Huron River system. The Middle Huron Partners has been the forum for 
watershed partners to work together to meet state and federal requirements and reduce pollution 
in the middle Huron River and its tributaries. This effort has largely been funded by the partners 
themselves who value working collaboratively and demonstrate their commitment to the goals of 
the Partnership through financial support.  

In 2009, some of these partners came together to additionally form the Stormwater Advisory Group 
(SAG) to comply with requirements under the Stormwater Permits (Phase I and II) issued by the 
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE). HRWC now provides 
services for both efforts and refers to the entire effort as the Middle Huron Partnership. These 
services include preparation of regulatory compliance products, development and implementation 
of monitoring and education programs, group representation in discussions with EGLE, and 
implementation projects. A five-year work plan (see enclosed) covering the calendar years 2024 
through 2028 (the stormwater permit cycle) was developed and reviewed by partner 
representatives. Ongoing support from the partners is essential for continued pollution reduction 
efforts in the middle Huron River and its tributaries. 

In order to fulfill these services, HRWC is requesting the financial support of the Township in the 
amount of $36,513 for services to be performed over the five-year period. Other organizations 
also are being asked to contribute to this partnership (see enclosed budget allocation).  Included 
you will find a contract to support these services, the 5-year work plan, the work plan “not to 
exceed” budget, Partner budget allocation, and an invoice schedule. Your organization or agency 
will be invoiced in the spring of 2024 for the first year’s assessment.  



 

     

Please review and sign the enclosed service agreement and return a copy to me. If you have any 
questions or concerns, please contact me directly or your designated representative.  Thank you for 
your past support, as well as your efforts to improve the water quality of the Huron River and the 
wellbeing of our region.   
 
Sincerely, 

 
Andrea Paine 
Middle Huron Partnership Coordinator  
apaine@hrwc.org 
734-519-0354 
 
enclosures	
 
CC: Ms. Laura Bennett, Planning and Zoning Adiministrator
 
 



TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
DATE: 

Middle Huron Partners 
Andrea Paine, Program Coordinator 
Draft 2024-2028 Work Plan and Budget 
October 16, 2023 

HRWC provides joint services to municipalities and agencies within the Huron River Watershed in 
Washtenaw County to address watershed-wide compliance with state stormwater regulations and 
reduce phosphorus contributions to meet the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for Ford and Belleville 
Lakes. Collectively, the participating partners supporting these efforts are referred to as the Middle 
Huron Partners (Partners). The current services provided were agreed to under a 5-year work plan with 
contracts that expire on December 31, 2023.  

The Partners work cooperatively to save effort and minimize costs, to share lessons and ideas, and to 
more comprehensively meet the goals of stormwater permits and management. The proposed work 
plan includes activities that are essential to fulfilling the expectations set forth in the original 
Cooperative Agreement for the Partnership and Phase I or II Stormwater Permit regulations.  The work 
plan is for five years, which is consistent with a five-year permit cycle for stormwater regulations. 
However, most Partners are currently still operating on permits issued by the Michigan Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) in 2003 and waiting to hear back from EGLE on permit 
applications submitted in 2013. 

Timeline: This proposed work plan begins January 1, 2024 and ends December 31, 2028. 

Work Plan Tasks: 

Task 1: Coordinate and facilitate Partner meetings and implement the Public Participation 
Plan (PPP) 

Description: The Partners meet 3-6 times per year to report on progress toward meeting permit 
requirements, phosphorus reduction goals, and implement priority activities from the 
Middle Huron Watershed Management Plans. Subcommittee work groups may form 
and meet as needed. HRWC will prepare communications for the meetings including 
agenda, agenda item materials, and follow-up items; facilitate meetings; and coordinate 
with guest speakers. HRWC will also post and distribute materials for Partners in 
compliance with the Public Participation Plan. HRWC will develop a bi-monthly e-mail 
newsletter to provide Partners with relevant updates, Public Education Plan materials, 
news, funding opportunities, and learning/training opportunities. On a quarterly basis, 
usually in concert with Partner meetings, HRWC will prepare written progress reports to 
provide updates on completed and anticipated work plan and task activities. On an 
annual basis, HRWC will solicit Partner feedback on delivery of services and modify 
execution, as requested by Partners. 

Rationale: Public meetings are required for Partner stormwater permits and are necessary for 
planning and coordinating collaborative activities. 

Task 2:  Prepare program reports for Partners 
Description:  Currently, biennial progress reports are required for the stormwater permit. EGLE may 

move the frequency back to annually, however. HRWC will work with Partners to 



 

2 
 

 

develop a template for progress reports to EGLE. The template will be updated to 
remain compliant with changes to EGLE reporting requirements. HRWC will compile and 
summarize relevant information as needed for Partner stormwater reports. Some 
specific Partner information will need to be added to complete reports before submittal. 
All reporting materials will be published and distributed through email to Partners and 
via the HRWC website.  A broader report is being developed for efforts made to address 
the TMDL (see Task 7). HRWC will use an online framework to reporting TMDL progress 
and success. HRWC will continue updating it on an annual basis. 

Rationale: Biennial reports are required for Partner stormwater permits. Regular reporting of 
progress toward TMDL targets will help Partners justify expenditures and evaluate the 
impact of investments. The reports also provide the basis for measuring and reporting 
overall progress over time.  

 
Task 3: Conduct water chemistry, macroinvertebrates, and flow monitoring  
Description: Water quality monitoring is required to provide an overall assessment of the health of 

the watershed and identify areas of success and those in need of greater attention. 
HRWC will work with the Partners to plan and execute monitoring and stormwater 
investigation for the growing seasons (April to September). Macroinvertebrate 
collections will take place in January, April, and October. Macroinvertebrate monitoring 
will rotate among sites each year to minimize cost and maintain continuity of data. 
HRWC will work with Partners to integrate chemistry monitoring with Illicit Discharge 
Elimination Programs (IDEP). Work will generally include: maintain a network of water 
level/discharge sensors, including tracking USGS sensors; measuring stream discharge at 
8 long-term monitoring sites during dry and wet weather conditions; monitor key water 
quality parameters at 11 long-term sites and additional investigative sites during dry and 
wet weather conditions; collect a survey of macroinvertebrate diversity twice per year, 
with an additional winter stonefly target collection; collect targeted chemistry samples 
through rain events; obtain and maintain equipment; recruit volunteers; train 
volunteers; deliver water samples to a lab; obtain lab results and enter into database; 
analyze and synthesize data; communicate monitoring results in report form for a 
general audience; present results annually at a Partner meeting; incorporate results into 
progress reports and other promotional media; and disseminate monitoring reports to 
Partners and post on HRWC website.  

 Note: At this time, HRWC and Washtenaw County WRC are negotiating changes to the 
monitoring strategy requested by EGLE. The overall schedule and approach will likely 
change somewhat from the last cycle, but HRWC will endeavor to keep the monitoring 
budget similar to the previous budget. 

Rationale: Monitoring of TMDL areas is required by the stormwater permits. It is necessary to help 
determine pollutant hot spots and assess progress. The monitoring results are the 
primary indicators of success.  

 
Task 4: Develop priority implementation projects 
Description: Building on past successful grant projects, HRWC will work with Partners to secure 

funding for priority projects that are consistent with WMP and other Partners’ priorities.  
Funds for this task may also be used to participate in relevant implementation projects 
per guidance from the Partners. This may include advising or participating, upon 
request, in projects initiated by individual member organizations. 



 

3 
 

 

Rationale: Successful proposals will leverage the budget and keep overall costs down. Projects will 
help to achieve Partner goals and address permit commitments. 

 
Task 5: Provide technical assistance to Partners on permit compliance and watershed 

management issues 
Description: HRWC will provide support and technical assistance to Partners throughout the five-year 

contract period. HRWC will consult with Partners on an as-needed basis to provide 
advice, information, and assistance with all aspects of the stormwater permit. Further, 
HRWC will provide support to Partners on other non-stormwater, watershed 
management issues that may arise. If audited, HRWC staff will meet and communicate 
with EGLE auditors regarding permit-related watershed activities. It is anticipated that 
new applications will be required during this 5-year period. HRWC will facilitate 
discussion and development of permit application templates and other collaborative 
permit materials. HRWC will also represent Partners at statewide meetings or relevant 
watershed management discussions. 

Rationale: The Partners submitted jointly developed plans and documents as part of their 
stormwater permit applications. Joint planning can be more efficient, reduce costs, and 
meet overall goals more effectively. HRWC is regularly asked to provide Partner 
permittee support. 

 
Task 6: Continue to implement the Public Education Plans (PEP) 
Description: HRWC will develop and execute tasks to meet the PEP requirements. The PEP includes 

ten collaborative activities and strategies to address nine stormwater topics identified 
by EGLE. Tasks include regular development and distribution of an educational calendar 
(permit requires biennial distribution in even calendar years but the MHP has opted for 
voluntary annual distribution in the past), implementation of the Adopt-a-Storm-Drain 
program, development of digital and print advertising, representation at and 
participation in regional public events, development of other educational watershed 
management content for local distribution and use, and redevelopment and 
implementation of an evaluation survey. Details on specific task items can be found in 
the PEP.  

Rationale: PEP implementation is required by the stormwater permit and Partners submitted a 
joint PEP to EGLE. Joint watershed education is more consistent and effective at a lower 
overall cost. 

 
Task 7: Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan Priority Activities 
Description: Stormwater permits now require activities to address TMDLs within management 

areas. HRWC submitted a TMDL Implementation Plan on behalf of the partners 
(currently being negotiated with EGLE) that included a number of specific activities. 
HRWC will support development of a green stormwater infrastructure (GSI) strategy and 
program along with partners (TMDL Implementation Plan Priority Activity 1). Major 
tasks include developing a process to incorporate available geographic, aerial and other 
remotely collected information, to map and identify opportunities for GSI projects in the 
Middle Huron River watershed. HRWC will work with MS4s to identify target locations 
that combine TMDL critical areas and available opportunities for GSI retrofit designs 
along key roads or other publicly-owned properties, as well as large business properties. 
HRWC will also provide leadership in coordinating partner responses and 
communications regarding new phosphorus discharge permit applications in the Middle 



 

4 
 

 

Huron River watershed in an effort to limit any additional sources (TMDL 
Implementation Plan Priority Activity 2). Activities may include requesting and analyzing 
information from EGLE, attending public meetings, developing public comments on 
behalf of Partners, or verbal delivering public comments. Lastly, to support TMDL 
Implementation Plan Priority Activity 3 HRWC will work with Partners to conduct 
bacterial source identification in priority areas as determined by ambient annual 
monitoring efforts outlined in Task 3 as well as supplemental genetic analyses. Key 
activities include conducting microbial source tracking (MST) monitoring at targeted 
outfalls, analyzing data to evaluate priority areas for fecal indicator bacteria sourcing, 
identifying suspect stormwater outfalls, and communicating with Partners Illicit 
Discharge Elimination Programs (IDEP) for additional screening. As needed, HRWC will 
assist Partners in communicating with property owners to remediate any failing septic 
systems, and HRWC will seek funding to support remedial efforts. 

Rationale: To comply with stormwater permit requirements, HRWC and Partners developed a suite 
of Best Management Practices in spring 2023 as part of a revised TMDL Implementation 
Plan. The plan reflects a suite of 8 project priorities that will be implemented to 
collectively by MS4s and HRWC to make progress towards achieving TMDL pollutant 
load reduction targets for phosphorus, sediments, and bacteria, which is a key measure 
of success requested by EGLE.  
Note: EGLE recently requested significant additional effort beyond the initial draft plan. 
HRWC and Washtenaw County WRC are negotiating to clarify what will be required, so 
the plan is currently not finalized and a budget for this task is a rough estimate. 

 
Additional Proposed Tasks 
Following are potential additional activities that HRWC could engage to assist Partners in stormwater 
permit compliance or general watershed improvement. 
 

A. School Stormwater Program: Over the course of this contract HRWC would like to slowly 
expand our successful storm drain program. In 2024 we will add mapping functionality for 
residents to identify locations that need to be adopted. In addition, we will be piloting a school-
campus storm drain awareness and civic engagement program at 2 local schools in 2024. Based 
on an evaluation of this pilot, HRWC will approach the Middle Huron Partners to potentially 
augment the contract with options to expand this program, thus improving youth engagement 
in stormwater management.  

 
Budget: A task budget and budget allocation (appended) were prepared to accompany the 5-year work 
plan. The budget allocation is determined by jurisdictional area, population in the watershed, and 
specific Partner permit requirements.  



2024-2028 Middle Huron Partners Budget and Allocation Criteria Explanation 

A proposed work plan and budget for efforts to support the Middle Huron Partners was distributed prior 
to the August 17, 2023 meeting. An updated budget and proposed budget allocation based on feedback 
from Partners and new EGLE permit requirements were shared prior to the October 19, 2023 meeting. 
The complete budget includes a five-year period from 2024 through 2028 and totals $1,428,537 in effort 
and expenses. See the work plan and budget for details. 

The budget allocation table allocates the total budget to each participating municipality or agency 
according to several important characteristics: 

1. There are two types of Partner organizations: municipalities and agencies (including counties, 
school districts, and universities). 65% is allocated to municipalities and 35% is allocated to 
agencies. Municipal allocations were determined by the combined area and population 
percentages in the watershed. Agency allocations were based on general size and scope of the 
agency. 
 

2. The Partnership effort addresses a wide variety of watershed, stormwater, and point source 
pollution issues. 50% of the budget was allocated to Partners covered by stormwater 
regulations, given many of the tasks are particularly beneficial to stormwater improvement and 
compliance. Some of the work is generally beneficial to the watershed across the board. 40% of 
the budget is allocated across all Partners. There are also four point sources (wastewater 
treatment plants) that are addressed by Partnership efforts. 10% of the budget is allocated to 
Partners with point sources. The final budget allocations are compiled by adding the 
stormwater, general watershed, and point source allocations.  
 

3. The final allocation is divided into annual assessments, which will be used for invoicing starting 
in 2024.  

 
HRWC will make every effort to gather support and participation from all community partners in the 
Middle Huron watershed, including those not current participating in the Partnership. The current 
allocation only includes currently participating Partners. If new Partners opt into the next contract 
period, assessments would be reduced. Thus, the current allocation should be considered an estimate. 

 



Task No. Task Name Item 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 TOTAL
Staff $9,520.00 $9,805.60 $10,099.77 $10,402.76 $10,714.84 50,542.97$        

Direct ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                    
Total $9,520.00 $9,805.60 $10,099.77 $10,402.76 $10,714.84 50,542.97$        
Staff $5,440.00 $5,603.20 $5,771.30 $5,944.43 $6,122.77 28,881.70$        

Direct ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                    
Total $5,440.00 $5,603.20 $5,771.30 $5,944.43 $6,122.77 28,881.70$        
Staff $88,400.00 $91,052.00 $93,783.56 $96,597.07 $99,494.98 469,327.61$      

Direct 25,292.00$     25,306.00$     25,320.00$     25,334.00$     25,348.00$     126,600.00$      
Total $113,692.00 $116,358.00 $119,103.56 $121,931.07 $124,842.98 595,927.61$      
Staff $6,800.00 $7,004.00 $7,214.12 $7,430.54 $7,653.46 36,102.12$        

Direct ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                  ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                    
Total $6,800.00 $7,004.00 $7,214.12 $7,430.54 $7,653.46 36,102.12$        
Staff $4,760.00 $4,902.80 $5,049.88 $5,201.38 $5,357.42 25,271.49$        

Direct 52.80$            54.40$            56.00$            57.60$            59.20$            280.00$             
Total $4,812.80 $4,957.20 $5,105.88 $5,258.98 $5,416.62 25,551.49$        
Staff $57,800.00 $59,534.00 $61,320.02 $63,159.62 $65,054.41 306,868.05$      

Direct $60,000 $63,000 $66,150 $69,457 $72,929 $331,536
Total $117,800.00 $122,534.00 $127,470.02 $132,616.62 $137,983.41 638,404.05$      
Staff $6,800.00 $7,004.00 $7,214.12 $7,430.54 $7,653.46 36,102.12$        

Direct 3,399.00$       3,402.00$       3,405.00$       3,408.00$       3,411.00$       17,025.00$        
Total $10,199.00 $10,406.00 $10,619.12 $10,838.54 $11,064.46 53,127.12$        

TOTAL $268,263.80 $276,668.00 $285,383.77 $294,422.95 $303,798.54 $1,428,537.06

Technical assistance and 
permit compliance

TMDL implementation 
plan activities

5

6

7

Public education plan 
implementation

2024‐2028 Middle Huron Partners Budget Overview

1

2

4

Facilitation and 
coordination 

Progress reporting 

Water monitoring

Develop priority 
implementation projects

3



Total Budget 100% $1,428,537
Stormwater 50% $714,269 Municipal 65%
Point Sources 10% $142,854 Agencies 35%

General Watershed 40% $571,415

Municipal/Agency 
Name

Total Area 
(Acres)

Total 
Population

% Area in 
Middle 
Huron 

Watershed

Estimated 
Population in 
Middle Huron 
Watershed

Area in 
Middle 
Huron 

Watershed 
(Acres)

Estimated % 
Total Middle 

Huron 
Watershed 
Population

Estimated % 
Total Middle 

Huron 
Watershed 

Area

% Population 
and Land Area 

% General % Storm % Point
 General 

Assessment 
 Stormwater 
Assessment 

 Point Source 
Assessment 

Total Raw 
Assessment

Average Annual 
Assessment

Ann Arbor 17,490       121,367         99.6 120,902            17,423         57.6 22.1 39.8 25.9% 34.3% 50% 147,834$     245,233$       71,427$          464,494$       92,898.88$        
Ann Arbor Twp 11,398       4,527             99.5 4,506                11,344         2.1 14.4 8.3 5.4% 30,649$        ‐$               ‐$                30,649$         6,129.72$          
Barton Hills 500             306                100.0 306 500               0.1 0.6 0.4 0.3% 0.3% 1,446$          2,398$           ‐$                3,844$           768.84$              
Belleville 746             3,802             43.7 1,661                326               0.8 0.4 0.6 0.4% 0.5% 2,235$          3,708$           ‐$                5,943$           1,188.54$          
Chelsea 1,487          5,283             100               5,283                1,487           2.5 1.9 2.2 1.4% 20% 8,166$          ‐$               28,571$          36,736$         7,347.28$          
Dexter 931             4,605             100               4,605                931               2.2 1.2 1.7 1.1% 1.5% 20% 6,259$          10,383$         28,571$          45,213$         9,042.66$          
Pittsfield Twp 17,870       38,938           16                 6,095                2,797           2.9 3.5 3.2 2.1% 2.8% 11,962$        19,844$         ‐$                31,806$         6,361.22$          
Scio Twp 21,187       17,806           100               17,795             21,174         8.5 26.8 17.6 11.5% 10% 65,504$        ‐$               14,285$          79,789$         15,957.78$        
Superior Twp 22,734       14,976           55                 8,201                12,449         3.9 15.8 9.8 6.4% 36,513$        ‐$               ‐$                36,513$         7,302.54$          
Ypsilanti 3,027          21,472           91                 19,571             2,759           9.3 3.5 6.4 4.2% 5.5% 23,786$        39,458$         ‐$                63,244$         12,648.84$        
Ypsilanti Twp 20,187       54,642           38.7 21,151             7,814           10.1 9.9 10.0 6.5% 8.6% 37,066$        61,486$         ‐$                98,551$         19,710.26$        
Municipal Subtotal 117,557     287,724         210,075            79,004         100                  100                 100               
WCWRC 42.0 14.7% 19.5% 83,998$        139,339$       ‐$                223,337$       44,667.36$        
WCRC 42.0 14.7% 19.5% 83,998$        139,339$       ‐$                223,337$       44,667.36$        
Ann Arbor Schools 770               1.0 5.0 1.8% 2.3% 10,000$        16,588$         ‐$                26,588$         5,317.54$          
University of Michigan 3,178           4.0 10.0 3.5% 4.6% 20,000$        33,176$         ‐$                53,175$         10,635.09$        
VA Ann Arbor Health System 1.0 0.4% 0.5% 2,000$          3,318$           5,318$           1,063.51$          
Totals 100.0 100% 100% 100% 571,415$     714,269$       142,854$        1,428,537$   285,707.41$      

Sources:
Population estimates were provided by SEMCOG in 2022 and are based on the 2020 US Census
Areas are based on a GIS analysis of municipality and Middle Huron Watershed boundaries by the Huron River Watershed Council

2024‐2028 Middle Huron Partners Proposed Cost Allocation



About the  
Middle Huron Partners

The Huron River Watershed Council coordinates the Middle Huron Partner.  
For additional information contact Andrea Paine, apaine@hrwc.org;  
or go to www.HRWC.org/MiddleHuronPartners.

Participating Partners
City of Ann Arbor
Ann Arbor Public Schools
Ann Arbor Charter Township
Barton Hills Village
City of Belleville
City of Chelsea
City of Dexter
Eastern Michigan University
Pittsfield Charter Township
Scio Township
Superior Charter Township
University of Michigan
VA Ann Arbor Healthcare System
Washtenaw County Road Commission
Washtenaw County Water Resources 
Commissioner’s Office
City of Ypsilanti
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

The Middle Huron Partners are local governments and agencies 
cooperatively working together to reduce pollution and improve 
stormwater management in the middle section of the Huron  
River watershed from the Dexter area to Belleville Lake.  

Partner communities work together to:

•  Research and monitor the river’s water quality, with a focus on nutrient sources 

•  Educate residents on how to protect local water at home and in their communities

•  Assist landowners, businesses, and local governments in curbing the amount of 
phosphorus and other pollutants entering the river

• Advocate for stronger policies that reduce phosphorus 

•  Pilot innovative technology and stormwater management strategies

Washtenaw County

Wayne County

Huron River 
Watershed

Middle Huron
Watershed



Middle Huron Partners 
Accomplishments

Reducing Bacteria in Honey Creek: To address bacterial  
contamination within Honey Creek and reduce inputs from this  
tributary to the Huron River downstream, Partners conducted 
bacteria source tracking, local education, a pet waste reduction 
campaign, and homeowner outreach to identify and remedy 
failing septic systems. Certified sewage detection canines 
helped investigate pollution sources.

Educating the Public: Over the last ten years,  
the Middle Huron Partners have put  
330,000 stormwater  
pollution prevention  
calendars in the hands  
of watershed residents. 
Calendars feature  
photography and tips  
that inspire people to  
protect water quality.

Catching Stormwater: A 2018 project funded by 
the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, 
and Energy and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
installed large-scale green stormwater infrastructure (GSI) 
features on public and community properties and small-
scale GSI to capture and filter stormwater runoff near 
Swift Run. The GSI features annually capture and treat 
over 1.65 million gallons, resulting in an annual load 
reduction of 2.5 pounds of phosphorus, 10 pounds of 
nitrogen, and a half-ton of sediment.

Partnering with Farmers to Reduce Phosphorus: 
From 2017 to 2022, the Huron River Watershed Council 
(HRWC) in collaboration with the Washtenaw County  
Conservation District, and the Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commissioner’s Office worked with farmers in the 
Middle Huron watershed to reduce phosphorus runoff and 
soil erosion from agricul-
tural lands. The project 
enabled farmers to reduce 
fertilization rates and 
increase fertilizer cost 
savings while preventing 
nearly a ton of phosphorus 
from entering the Huron 
River annually.

Assessing Watershed Health and Planning for Restoration: 
Partners worked collaboratively to develop three new watershed 
management plans for the Middle Huron River watershed. The plans 
characterize watershed health, prescribe recommendations for future 
watershed protection and restoration, and provide the basis for  
securing state and federal project funding. 



The size and duration of algae blooms are declining in Ford and Belleville Lakes due to two 
factors: phosphorus levels in the Huron River at Ford Lake have been substantially reduced, 
and Ypsilanti Township has regulated bottom chemistry with their dam operation

Middle Huron  
by the Numbers

Rain gardens constructed in the Middle Huron River watershed, 
filtering over 10 million gallons of runoff water a year

20
Municipalities and 
agencies participating 
in the Middle Huron 
Partners

Years of intermunicipal, 
multiagency collaboration 
on stormwater and  
pollution reduction via  
the Middle Huron Partners 

7,000 

Reduction in 
phosphorus 

loading into the Middle  
Huron River since monitor-
ing began in 2003

Water samples collected in the Middle Huron 
watershed since monitoring began in 2003 

The Middle Huron Partners have invested significant resources to 
reduce pollution entering the Huron River. Since 1995 they have 
worked together to develop stronger soil erosion controls for  
construction projects, enact ordinances that protect shoreline plant 
buffers and that restrict the use of phosphorus fertilizer on lawns, 
restore eroding streambanks, protect wetlands and natural areas, 
and build stormwater systems using green stormwater infrastruc-
ture (GSI) techniques to catch and infiltrate polluted runoff.

500 
Residents who  
volunteered with  
HRWC’s Chemistry  
and Flow Monitoring 
Program to sample  
the Middle Huron  
since the program’s 
launch in 2003

9% = 

Reduction in E. coli bacteria in 
the Huron River since 2018.  
E. coli counts in the Middle 
Huron River through Ann 
Arbor are now meeting state 
water quality standards

OVER

Number of 
residents in 

the Middle Huron 
who took at least one 
action individually to 
protect water or the 
environment in the 
last 12 months, with 

78% avoiding the 
use of fertilizers and 
chemicals on their 
lawn and garden.   

99% 

29% 

850+ 

28



WE CELEBRATE OUR HOME WATERS WITH PASSION AND DEDICATION 

Autumn on the Huron River. Photo 
by John Lloyd 

For over 50 years, HRWC has played a vital role in securing statewide and federal legislation that 

protects water resources including the: 

• Inland Lakes and Streams Act 
• Clean Water Act and its reauthorization 
• Goermare‐Anderson Wetland Protection Act 
• Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act 
• Michigan Natural Rivers Act 
• River Basin Management Act 
• Septage Waste Haulers Act 
• Michigan Phosphorus Fertilizer Ban 

HRWC also played a significant role in having portions of the Huron designated as a Natural River by 

the State of Michigan in the 1970s. 

Other successes include: 

• implementing best practices to reduce excessive flows in urban tributaries to the Huron; 
• initiating and shaping statewide phosphorus legislation to reduce nuisance algal blooms; 
• advancing science and policy on issues such as innovative land use strategies, carrying 

capacity of creeks, and climate change resiliency for public sectors; and 
• spearheading public‐private partnerships to orient communities towards the River, helping 

to transform the Huron River corridor in to a premier destination. 

To further protect the River and its habitats, HRWC has created partnerships with local and regional 

parks systems, land conservancies, and local governments to provide technical information to 

https://www.hrwc.org/wp-content/uploads/J-Lloyd-Autumn-color-sky-water.jpg


prioritize critical lands for acquisition and develop strategies ensuring the long‐term protection of 

these regions. The result has been the protection of over 10,000 acres in the Watershed. 

HRWC coordinates an on‐going effort with 19 partners in the Middle Huron Initiative. Through this 

Initiative, the partners invested more than $10 million dollars over 11 years to reduce pollution 

entering the River, to meet the Clean Water Act regulations. The partners also worked with HRWC to 

develop stronger soil erosion controls for construction projects, enact ordinances to protect shoreline 

plant buffers, and build Green Infrastructure techniques to hold and infiltrate polluted runoff. 4,700 

water samples taken have demonstrated that more than six tons of total phosphorus was kept out of 

target waterbodies annually. 

In 2014, through the Climate Resilient Communities project, HRWC and project participants 

promoted use of revised storm definitions published by National Oceanic and Atmospheric 

Administration, which led to stronger county‐level stormwater management regulations. 

In 2012, in part because of HRWC’s leadership and advocacy, the State of Michigan implemented 

a statewide policy restricting phosphorus use, including increased education and information to the 

public about the impacts of fertilizers with phosphorus on water quality. The legislation has been 

effective and has resulted in reduced levels of the nutrient in local waters. 

HRWC conducted a 2011 survey of watershed residents, which showed remarkable improvements in 

attitudes over a similar 2004 study, and demonstrated that Watershed residents recognize behaviors 

that will improve the River and revealed that most are willing to engage in practices to help the River. 

In 2008, with HRWC leadership, the first dam was removed from the Huron River system in the 

Village of Dexter, stimulating a Main Street renaissance in that community. Dexter has reimagined 

itself as a waterfront community on free‐flowing Mill Creek, the Huron’s largest tributary, connecting 

downtown to the water through walking trails, public green spaces, and new canoe and kayak access. 

Dexter’s waterfront revival serves as a successful case study in how to leverage freshwater assets for 

local economic development and community enhancement. 



River Round up volunteers viewing a 
freshly collected sample. Photo by John Lloyd 

HRWC has developed the premier citizen river monitoring network with strong quality assurance 

and quality control mechanisms that allow state and federal agencies to confidently use these data to 

direct water protection programs and that direct watershed protection projects. 

In 2005, HRWC helped launch, and continues to run, the Michigan Clean Water Corps, working 

alongside the Great Lakes Commission to provide statewide trainings, mentorship, and funding for 

lake and stream volunteer monitoring programs. 

In 2015, HRWC lead the process to gain National Water Trail designation for the Huron River Water 

Trail, making it the eighteenth designated trail in the country. 

From 2014-2017 HRWC successfully worked with ten cities and townships in the watershed to ban 

toxic coal tar sealcoat products. Currently we are working with state legislators on a statewide ban 

while continuing to assist local municipalities with banning the substance and implementation of 

existing bans. 

 

https://www.hrwc.org/wp-content/uploads/Round-up-2019-by-John-Lloyd.jpg


From: Rhonda McGill <rmcgill@superior-twp.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 3:12 PM 
To: Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org>; Lynette Findley <lynettefindley@superior-
twp.org>; Lisa Lewis <llewis@superior-twp.org> 
Cc: Bernice Lindke <blindke@superior-twp.org>; Nancy Caviston <ncaviston@cavistonagency.com>; Bill 
Secrest <BSecrest@superior-twp.org> 
Subject: HR Director Salary 
 
Greetings Officials, 
 
I am following up as promised with the salary ranges for the hiring of a full time HR Director. Based on 
research done through MTA's salary research and looking at equivalent positions in other townships in 
the state. I have found the range of pay to be as follows: 
 
$76,500 - $101,600 
 
Please let me know if you have any further questions or want additional research completed. Otherwise, 
please advise on next steps for posting this much needed position.  
 
Thanks 
Trustee Rhonda McGill 
 

mailto:rmcgill@superior-twp.org
mailto:kenschwartz@superior-twp.org
mailto:lynettefindley@superior-twp.org
mailto:lynettefindley@superior-twp.org
mailto:llewis@superior-twp.org
mailto:blindke@superior-twp.org
mailto:ncaviston@cavistonagency.com
mailto:BSecrest@superior-twp.org


On Feb 1, 2024, at 3:51 PM, Juan Bradford <jbradford@superior-twp.org> wrote: 

 
Attached is Pay Application #1 from KAB Enterprises for the first portion of the drainage improvements 
to Fireman’s Park.  
  
Background: 
Resolution 2023-59 was passed at the Oct. 16, 2023 board meeting to accept the bid from KAB 
Enterprises to complete all aspects of the improvements to Fireman’s Park.  At that time, it was known 
to all involved that there was a gap in previously approved funding for the project, and the approved bid 
total. 
  
Approved bid from KAB-               $529,858.62 
Allocated funds-                              $318,000.00 
Gap in funding-                                $211,858.62                       
  
Of the $211,858.62 gap, $140,664.87 is for the drainage improvements. 
  
It is the desire of the Parks & Recreation Commission that the Township cover the $211,858,62 gap in 
funding, which includes paying the attached Pay Application in the amount of $81,207.10 for the first 
portion of the drainage improvements. 
  
If you would like any additional information or to discuss further please contact me at your convenience. 
  
Best, 
Juan 
 

mailto:jbradford@superior-twp.org


    

P:\0126_0165\0140220070_Firemans_Park_Drainage\_Construction\Pay Apps_CO\Pay 

Apps\PA #1\Pay App 1 cover letter.doc 

 

 

 

 

January 29, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Juan Bradford 
Superior Twp Parks and Recreation 
3040 North Prospect Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
Regarding: Fireman’s Park Improvements 
       OHM Job No. 0140-22-0070 
 
Dear Mr. Bradford: 
 
Enclosed is Construction Estimate No. 1, and a Contractor’s Declaration for the referenced project.     
 
KAB Enterprises, Inc. has completed the work shown on the attached construction estimate for the period 
ending January 23, 2024 and we would recommend payment to the Contractor in the amount of $81,207.10. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Claire Martin, PE 
Project Manager 
 
 
cc: Mariah Cummings, PE OHM 
 Jenna McCutchen, OHM 
 George Tsakoff, OHM 
 File 



��������

���	
�������������������

��������������
����	��
 �!����	
� �����"����
�
#"$�������	���%�&�'( !������"���
)��

������
������
���'���
�� ���*�����+��,��� �
����'��!��������������������

�
����'����������-��������

.��	/���	%�0&��*�1* 2�
����&/�%�0&��*��* �
����'�������	
�����

34��5�64-74-�1 ��	�����������1�����

!�8�9,
!�"�9!�

��

����

��	:	��/��
����'�
"�
����

;-�1%*6�(4* ���	�:����	�����	
�� ;1�%���(��

����:���������"�
���� ;�(�� ���	�:���
������ ;1�%���(��

���������
����'�
"�
����

;-�1%*6�(4* ���)	
�������	��:��"�
���� ;�(��

����	��:����	�����	
�� ;1%���(��

,�����
��/�����	�����
������ ;1%���(��

���������� ;*�%��4(��

���)	
������	�:�� ;�(��

����	��:�����<�
 ��
��/����	�:���
�-�<�
 ��
����'�%������-<�
 ��
����'� "�
���������
����'�
�� ;*�%��4(��

=����$��� 
���7�!����	
���������+��������'����	
��7��������
�
����	��
 �!����	
� ����

=�����0'���'���%��/	���������������	)� ����

34��5��667�-44 �807"�)	�
��('
�

�--�!(�>�����
��%�!�	���"

"���"��
�%�0&��*���



����������	
������������������������
����������������
��

������������
����������������
����  ���

!"#$%�$&&�$'"" ()��*+������,���

#''��,�-��.�/��+��������*

*

�*�.�������$012#



����������	
������������������������
����������������
��

� �����������
����� ��!" � !!#�$� � !! %&!�!!! !! ! '( ! !! %)!�!!! !! ! '( %)!�!!! !!

* +��,��-��.�
/ �*( !!�� �*( !! %*! �0 ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

) 1�����
���
�������������
,� '�! !!�� '�! !! %* ') '�! !! ! !! %��2)3 )! '�! !! %��2)3 )!

& +������,�������������4��- � !!1� � !! %���!& !! � !! ! !! %���!& !! � !! %���!& !!

( +������,������*&��
,��.�� � !!1� � !! %)�2)0 !! � !! ! !! %)�2)0 !! � !! %)�2)0 !!

0 $
.��.���
���
���������
����
,���0��
,� (2! !!�� (2! !! %'& 0� &�� !! ! !! %)!�00& '� &�� !! %)!�00& '�

' $
.��.���
���
���������
����
,���3��
,� *'( !!�� *'( !! %'* (0 *&* !! ! !! %�'�((2 (* *&* !! %�'�((2 (*

3 ��

�,�����1�����
/�������� � !!1� � !! %&�((( (! � !! ! !! %&�((( (! � !! %&�((( (!

2 $
.��.���
�����
��� 0 !!1� 0 !! %��3 !* & !! ! !! %&'* !3 & !! %&'* !3

�! �����1����������
� � !!#�$� � !! %���2)! 2' ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�� ��
��
/�
,4�5���	�
,� �!!!! !!+�� �!!!! !! %� !! ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�* ���/��.��$
.��,����
/���4���6����.����. ��3 !!�4. ��3 !! %��2 )0 ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�) 5//��/����7�����&��
,� �))! !!�4. �))! !! %�) &! ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�& ��.�	�������
,��0��
,� *(! !!��� *(! !! %�' �0 ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�( ��.�	�������
,��8��
���0��
,� ��(* !!��� ��(* !! %*� )3 ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�0 �����.�����������-��.�
/ �!(0 !!�� �!(0 !! %2 �& ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�' �����.�����������9�5 �(( !!��
 �(( !! %*�� !' ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�3 ��
,�������
�#�
���)0��
,���7��,��6�
4�
�����.

�!! !!�� �!! !! %3( �2 ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

�2 ���
����1:����
���5���;�������*�����
 � !!1� � !! %(�&!) !* ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

*! ���
����1:����
���������7�����&�����
 � !!1� � !! %0�0() 3* ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

*� ���
����1:����
���������#��������6����,��
�������*�����


� !!1� � !! %'�*'2 ** ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

** ���
����1:����
������������
��4������*�
����


� !!1� � !! %�&�)23 && ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

*) ���
����1:����
���8�	�
/���,��
� � !!1� � !! %2�)2( *& ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

*& ��,
�,������������������0��*&� � !!1� � !! %*3�(&� �* ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

*( ���4�����,�����<5/���(��*��=��=��> � !!1� � !! %*!!�!'! (� ! !! ! !! %! !! ! !! %! !!

<')&>�&00�&('' ?9��5.������ ,��

)((�� �@����8��.��������5

5

�5���������&3�!)



����������	
������������������������
����������������
��

�� �	�
���������
�������  !""#�  !"" $%�&'(!�) "!"" "!"" $"!"" "!"" $"!""

*&('+�'���'%&& ,-.�/0������!1��

(%%��!�2��3�4��0��������/

/

�/�3����.��'5 "(





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO HIRE CLERKS OFFICE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-04 

DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township has identified the need for a dedicated and 
proficient Administrative Assistant for the Clerk's Office to support its operations and 
services; and 

WHEREAS, Kristina Rankin has hired for the position of Administrative Assistant for 
the Clerk's Office, bringing over 25 years of administrative experience across a variety of 
business settings, including legal and health organizations, which are invaluable to the 
diverse needs of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, Kristina Rankin has demonstrated a high level of efficiency, organization, 
and attention to detail, along with excellent interpersonal skills essential for the role; and 

WHEREAS, Kristina Rankin possesses strong analytical and problem-solving skills, 
with a proven ability to make well-thought-out decisions, particularly in high-stress situations, 
thereby ensuring the smooth operation of the Clerk's Office; and 

WHEREAS, Kristina Rankin has served in Ann Arbor Township for over eight (8) 
years for their elections with progressive responsibilities including chairing a precinct. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township Board of 
Trustees hereby approves the hiring of Kristina Rankin as the Administrative Assistant for 
the Clerk's Office at a rate of $31.00 per hour. 

 



 
SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 

A RESOLUTION TO HIRE A FIELD SERVICE TECHNICIAN  
 

RESOLUTION 2024-05 
 

DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Utility Department (STUD) has a Field Service 
Technician vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, Raymond Wilson was selected to fulfill the Field Service Technician duties 
as set forth by the Utility Director and has performed the duties satisfactorily. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Superior Township Board hereby approves hiring Raymond 
Wilson as Field Service Technician at a wage of $26.75 per hour. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                                         

 

 
 

 

Memorandum 

To:  Superior Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Mary Burton, Utility Director 
Date:  February 20, 2024 
Re:          Field Service Technician  
 
Background 
The Field Service Technician position for Superior Township Utility Department has 
been open since 2023 and needs immediate fulfilment. The additional maintenance 
crew employee will help with the growing workload responsibilities and bring balance 
to the demands for the Utility Department. 
 
Therefore, I would like to recommend direct hiring be considered for Raymond 
Wilson. He is very qualified, has related experience as a Technician with Faurecia 
Auto Inc., where he was an outstanding employee for more than 12 years.  

   
Recommended Action 
Raymond Wilson is hired as Field Service Technician effective January 2, 2024 at 
$26.75 per hour.   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR MACARTHUR 

PATHWAY PROJECT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-07 

DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

WHEREAS, the county of Washtenaw is a recipient of federal financial assistance grant dollars 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) among other sources, for the 
purpose of aiding in community development and improvement projects within its geographical 
boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior has applied for and been deemed eligible to 
receive a subaward of federal financial assistance to support the construction of a pedestrian infill pathway 
along the north side of MacArthur Boulevard from Stamford Road to Harris Road, under the HUD 
Community Block Grant Entitlement Grant, with the total amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this 
Agreement being $133,766.00; and 

WHEREAS, the subaward agreement made on this 20th day of February 2024, between the 
County of Washtenaw and the Charter Township of Superior (the Subrecipient), outlines the flow of 
Federal Financial Assistance for the said project, with detailed requirements including, but not limited to, 
required data elements, scope of services, payment and cash management, reporting, and compliance 
with federal, state, and local regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement specifies the responsibilities of the Subrecipient to use the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) entitlement funds for the eligible costs of the 
MacArthur Pedestrian Pathway Project, with a detailed budget allocation as follows: CDBG (2018)-
$11,9 72.00, CDBG (2020)-$35,004.00, CDBG (2021)- $18,630.00, CDBG (2022)- $33,090.00, 
CDBG (2023)- $35,0 70.00, totaling the aforementioned amount of$133,766.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement further outlines the adherence to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 
CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013, by the Executive 
Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustees hereby approves the Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance between the 
County of Washtenaw and Superior Charter Township and authorizes the Township Supervisor and 
Township Clerk to execute and deliver the agreement and any documents.



 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior commits to 
fulfilling its obligations under the agreement, including the completion of the 
MacArthur Boulevard Pedestrian Pathway project in accordance with the project 
timeline, budget, and federal, state, and local regulations to ensure the effective use of 
the CDBG funds, totaling $133,766.00, for the benefit of the community. 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, MICHIGAN 
 

Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance 
  
 
           The COUNTY OF WASHTENAW is a recipient of federal financial assistance grant dollars.  
These funds are received directly from the federal government and indirectly from the State of 
Michigan and several local entities.  The County sometimes passes through a portion of this 
federal financial assistance to other organizations located within (or in the vicinity of) the 
geographical boundaries of the County to assist them in carrying out the objectives of the 
applicable federal grant or program. 
 
           AGREEMENT is made this 20th day of February, 2024, by the COUNTY OF 
WASHTENAW, a municipal corporation, with offices located in the County Administration 
Building, 220 North Main Street, Ann Arbor, Michigan, as the pass-through entity (hereinafter 
referred to as the County) and, Superior Charter Township located at 3040 North Prospect, 
Superior Township, MI 48198 (hereinafter often referred to as the Subrecipient). 
 
           This agreement is a subaward of federal financial assistance by the County to the 
Subrecipient intended to assist, stimulate, or support the Subrecipient in carrying out its allowable 
activities under the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Community Block Grant Entitlement Grant as requested by the Subrecipient in its application to 
the County for federal financial assistance. 
 

Flow of Federal Financial Assistance in this Subaward Agreement 
 

Federal Funds From:  Passed Through:  To: 

U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

    Washtenaw County 

 

Superior Charter 
Township   

   (Grantor)    (Pass-Through Entity)      (Subrecipient) 

 
ARTICLE I – REQUIRED DATA ELEMENTS 

 
(As detailed in Section 200.331 of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 
225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of 
Management and Budget, hereinafter referred to as the Uniform Guidance.) 
 

Subrecipient Name (must match 
registered name in DUNS) 

Superior Charter Township  

Subrecipient DUNS Number/UEI 143938327/ EZFLJ6Q8MNR7 

Federal Award Identification Number 
(FAIN) 

B-18-UC-26-0006 - $11,972.00 
B-20-UC-26-0006 - $35,004.00  
B-21-UC-26-0006 - $18,630.00 
B-22-UC-26-0006 - $33,090.00 
B-23-UC-26-0006 - $35,070.00 

 

Federal Award Date (the date when the 

federal award is signed by the authorized 
official of the federal awarding agency) 

B-18-UC-26-0006 – 09/19/2018 
B-20-UC-26-0006 – 07/09/2020 
B-21-UC-26-0006 – 07/30/2021  
B-22-UC-26-0006 – 08/22/2022 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

B-23-UC-26-0006 – 06/29/2023 

Subaward Period of Performance (start 
and end date) 

02/01/2024 – 01/31/2025 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by 
this Agreement 

$133,766.00 

Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated 
to the Subrecipient 

$133,766.00 

Total Amount of the Federal Award B-18-US-26-0006 - $2,109,235.00 
B-20-US-26-0006 - $2,155,094.00 
B-21-US-26-0006 - $2,228,571.00  
B-22-UC-26-0006 - $2,157,568.00 
B-23-UC-26-0006 - $2,186,185.00 

Federal Award Project Description (as 
required to be responsive to the Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency 
Act (FFATA) described in Title 2 Code of 
Federal Regulations  Part 170) 

This contract supports eligible activities for the construction 
of a pedestrian infill pathway that will run along the north 

side of MacArthur Boulevard from Stamford Road to Harris 
Road.  

 
Name of Federal Awarding Agency Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)  

Name of County (Pass-Through Entity) Washtenaw County  

Name and Contact Information for 
Awarding Official 

Gregory Dill  
220 N. Main  
PO Box 8645  

Ann Arbor, MI 48107 
Phone: 734-222-6850 

CFDA Number and Name 14.218 – Community Development Block Grant 

Is this Subaward for Research and 
Development? (answer Yes or No) 

No 

Indirect Cost Rate for the Federal 
Award (either an approved federally 

recognized indirect cost rate negotiated 
between the Subrecipient and the federal 
government or, if no such rate exists, either 
a rate negotiated between the County and 
Subrecipient or a de minimus indirect cost 
rate of 10% of modified total direct costs 
may be used).  Subrecipient may choose to 
charge only direct costs to this agreement. 

No indirect costs billed for this work.  

 
WHEREAS, the Grantee receives funds from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) pursuant to HUD’s Community Development Block Grant Entitlement 
Communities Grants (“CDBG”) and the Grantee is authorized to award CDBG funds pursuant to 
Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Public Law 93-383, as amended; 
42 U.S.C. 5301, et. seq.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee has been designated as an entitlement county for the CDBG Program and 
acts as the lead entity for the Washtenaw Urban County, which consists of Washtenaw County, City 
of Ann Arbor, City of Chelsea, City of Dexter, City of Saline, City of Ypsilanti, Ann Arbor Township, 
Augusta Township, Bridgewater Township, Dexter Township, Lima Township, Manchester 
Township, Northfield Township, Pittsfield Township, Salem Township, Saline Township, Scio 
Township, Superior Township, Sylvan Township, Webster Township, York Township, and Ypsilanti 
Township; and 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Subrecipient has agreed to collaborate with the Office of Community and Economic 
Development (OCED) to manage this public improvement project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 2, 2018, the Urban County Executive Committee approved Thirty thousand 
nine hundred fifty-five dollars and zero cents ($30,955.00) in 2018 Urban County CDBG Funding 
as a grant to the Subrecipient to support the Panama Avenue HMA road resurfacing project and 
MacArthur Boulevard Street Lighting Project, of which a balance of Eleven thousand nine 
hundred seventy-two dollars and zero cents ($11,972.00) has been re-programmed to support 
the eligible construction cost of the MacArthur Boulevard Pedestrian Pathway Infill within the Urban 
County boundaries, as specified in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 6, 2020, the Urban County Executive Committee approved Thirty-five thousand 
four dollars and zero cents ($35,004.00) in 2020 Urban County CDBG Funding as a grant to the 
Subrecipient to support the eligible construction cost of the MacArthur Boulevard Pedestrian 
Pathway Infill within the Urban County boundaries, as specified in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 5, 2021, the Urban County Executive Committee approved Thirty-five thousand 
four hundred fifty-six dollars and zero cent ($35,456.00) in 2021 Urban County CDBG Funding as 
a grant to the Subrecipient to support the eligible pedestrian improvements for the Community Park 
ADA - Compliant Sidewalk Installation Project and construction for the MacArthur Boulevard 
Pedestrian Pathway project, of which Eighteen thousand six hundred thirty dollars and zero 
cents ($18,630.00) has been allocated to support construction for the MacArthur Boulevard 
Pedestrian Pathway Infill within the Urban County boundaries, as specified in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 1, 2022, the Urban County Executive Committee approved Thirty-three 
thousand ninety dollars and zero cents (33,090.00) in 2022 Urban County CDBG Funding as a 
grant to the Subrecipient to support the eligible construction cost of the MacArthur Boulevard 
Pedestrian Pathway Infill within the Urban County boundaries, as specified in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 3, 2023, the Urban County Executive Committee approved Thirty-five thousand 
seventy dollars and zero cents ($35,070.00) in 2023 Urban County CDBG Funding as a grant to 
the Subrecipient to support the eligible construction cost of the MacArthur Boulevard Pedestrian 
Pathway Infill within the Urban County boundaries, as specified in this Agreement; and 

 
 

ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Subrecipient will agree to use Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
entitlement funds for the eligible cost of the MacArthur Pedestrian Pathway Project, specifically 
for the construction of a pedestrian infill pathway that will run along the north side of MacArthur 
Boulevard from Stamford Road to Harris Road. The pathway will be approximately 1300 linear 
feet. There will be approximately 2 feet below the existing grade of ground disturbance on the 
vertical impact and approximately 20 feet of ground disturbance on the horizontal impact for this 
pathway. This scope can also be found in Attachment A. The contract will be paid for with 2018, 
2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 Urban County CDBG funding in accordance with the budget in 
Attachment B, not to exceed One hundred thirty-three thousand seven hundred sixty-six 
($133,766) dollars.  
 

ARTICLE III - PAYMENT AND CASH MANAGEMENT 
 
            If the County is paid in advance by the federal awarding agency under the above named 
federal assistance award, the Subrecipient may also be paid in advance if it meets the 
requirements in Section 1 below. 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
            Section 1 - Cash Advances.  The Subrecipient may request an advance of funds under 
this agreement if it maintains or demonstrates the willingness to maintain both:  

1. written procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the 
County and the subsequent disbursement of the funds by the Subrecipient,  

2. financial management systems that meet the standards for fund control and accountability 
as defined in Section 200.305 of the Uniform Guidance. 
.   

            Requests for advance of funds must be limited to the minimum amount needed and must 
be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the Subrecipient in 
carrying out the terms of this agreement.  The timing and amount of the advance must be as close 
as is "administratively feasible" to the actual disbursement to be made by the Subrecipient. 
 
 Section 2 - Reimbursement.  If the Subrecipient does not meet the requirements in Section 
1 above, it shall submit periodic reimbursement requests to the County.  This may be done on a 
monthly or quarterly basis.  The reimbursement request shall be accompanied by the agreed upon 
financial and programmatic reports. The County shall pay the Subrecipient within 30 calendar 
days after the receipt of the reimbursement request and the agreed upon financial/programmatic 
reports, unless the County reasonably believes the reimbursement request to be improper.   
 

Section 3 – Program Income. The Subrecipient shall report monthly all program income (as 
defined at 24 CFR 570.500(a)) generated by activities carried out with CDBG funds made available 
under this contract, if program income is generated. The use of program income by the Subrecipient 
shall comply with the requirements set forth at 24 CFR 570.504. By way of further limitations, the 
Subrecipient may use such income during the contract period for activities permitted under this 
contract and shall reduce requests for additional funds by the amount of any such program income 
balances on hand. All unexpended program income shall be returned to the Grantee at the end of the 
contract period. Any interest earned on cash advances from the U.S. Treasury and from funds held in 
a revolving fund account is not program income and shall be remitted promptly to the Grantee.  
 

Section 4 – Use and Reversion of Assets. The use and disposition of real property and 
equipment under this Agreement shall be in compliance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 84 
and 24 CFR 570.502, 570.503, and 570.504, as applicable, which include but are not limited to the 
following:  

 
1. The Subrecipient shall transfer to the Grantee any CDBG funds on hand and any accounts 

receivable attributable to the use of funds under this Agreement at the time of expiration, 
cancellation, or termination. 
 

2. Real property under the Subrecipient’s control that was acquired or improved, in whole or in 
part, with funds under this Agreement in excess of $25,000 shall be used to meet one of the 
CDBG National Objectives pursuant to 24 CFR 570.208 until five (5) years after expiration of 
this Agreement [or such longer period of time as the Grantee deems appropriate]. If the 
Subrecipient fails to use CDBG-assisted real property in a manner that meets a CDBG 
National Objective for the prescribed period of time, the Subrecipient shall pay the Grantee an 
amount equal to the current fair market value of the property less any portion of the value 
attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for acquisition of, or improvement to, the 
property. Such payment shall constitute program income to the Grantee. The Subrecipient 
may retain real property acquired or improved under this Agreement after the expiration of the 
five-year period [or such longer period of time as the Grantee deems appropriate].  
  

3. In all cases in which equipment acquired, in whole or in part, with funds under this Agreement 
is sold, the proceeds shall be program income (prorated to reflect the extent to that funds 
received under this Agreement were used to acquire the equipment). Equipment not needed 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

by the Subrecipient for activities under this Agreement shall be (a) transferred to the Grantee 
for the CDBG program or (b) retained after compensating the Grantee [an amount equal to the 
current fair market value of the equipment less the percentage of non-CDBG funds used to 
acquire the equipment].  
 

4. Pursuant to 24 CFR 85.32 (d) (3) and 24 CFR 84.345 (f) (4)The Subrecipient shall ensure that 
all property and equipment that was acquired or improved, in whole or in part, with funds under 
this agreement is properly locked and secured when not in use for its intended purpose.  

 
ARTICLE IV - REPORTING OF SUBRECIPIENT 

 
 Section 1 - The Subrecipient is to report to Housing and Infrastructure Policy Specialist 
and will cooperate and confer with him/her as necessary to insure satisfactory work progress. 
 
 Section 2 - The Subrecipient shall submit financial reports as requested to OCED finance 
staff.  The Subrecipient shall submit programmatic reports as requested to Housing and 
Infrastructure Policy Specialist.    
 
 Section 3 - All reports, estimates, memoranda and documents submitted by the 
Subrecipient must be dated and bear the Subrecipient's name.  Financial reports shall be 
submitted in a timely manner to the County and shall be in agreement with the amounts shown in 
the Subrecipient’s financial system and shall be supported by appropriate documentation (payroll 
records, invoices, etc.).  Final financial and programmatic reports shall be submitted by the 
Subrecipient within 30 days of the end of this agreement unless an extension of time is granted 
in writing by the County. 
 
 Section 4 - The Subrecipient agrees to only incur costs under this agreement which are 
eligible under the Cost Principles detailed in Section 200.400-475 of the Uniform Guidance. 
 
            Section 5 - The Subrecipient shall retain all reports, records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to this agreement for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final 
expenditure report and shall make them available to the County and the federal awarding agency 
upon request. 
 
 Section 6 - All reports made in connection with these services are subject to review and 
final approval by the County Administrator. 
 
 Section 7 - The County may review and inspect the Subrecipient's activities during the 
term of this agreement. 
 
 Section 8 - When applicable, the Subrecipient will submit a final, written report to the 
County Administrator. 
 
 Section 9 - After reasonable notice to the Subrecipient, the County may review any of the 
Subrecipient’s internal records, reports, or insurance policies. 
 
 Section 10 - The Subrecipient and/or subcontractors shall disclose in writing to the County 
any potential conflict of interest it has related to the County or this agreement subject to the 
provisions 2 CFR 200.318. 
 
 Section 11 - The Subrecipient shall disclose in writing to the County in a timely manner all 
violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting 
this agreement. 
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 Section 12 - The Subrecipient shall report to the County in a timely manner if any adverse 
or problematic situations arise between reporting deadlines describing the nature of the problem 
and what is being done to address it. 
 
 

ARTICLE V - TERM 
This contract begins on the date of this agreement and ends on January 31, 2025 with an 

option to extend for one (1) additional one (1) year period. No costs eligible under this agreement 
shall be incurred by the Subrecipient before or after these dates, except with prior written approval 
of the County. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI- RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUBRECIPIENT 
 
           Section 1 - The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 
regulations including the Uniform Guidance. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the 
management systems standards (financial management (Sections 200.302-304), procurement 
(Sections 200.317-326), and property management (Sections 200.310-316)) of the Uniform 
Guidance. 
 
           Section 2 - The Subrecipient agrees to have performed a Single Audit of its federal 
expenditures if it reaches the Single Audit dollar threshold in federal expenditures during its fiscal 
year as detailed in Section 200.501 of the Uniform Guidance.  The County reserves the right to 
perform or cause to be performed additional audits if it deems such to be necessary to insure 
compliance with the terms of this agreement or to determine the eligibility of the reported 
expenditures for reimbursement. 
 
           Section 3 - The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of the Byrd Amendment 
(Public Law 101-121, Section 319 - 31 U.S. Code Section 1352) which prohibits the use of federal funds 
by the recipient or subrecipient of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to 
pay any person to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the federal funds awarded under this agreement. 
 
           Section 4 – The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of the Stevens 
Amendment (Section 8136 of the Department of Defense Appropriations Act – Public Law 100-463) which 
stipulates that when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, 
and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal 
money, all grantees receiving federal funds, including but not limited to state and local 
governments, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total cost of the program or project 
which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or 
program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program 
that will be funded by non-governmental sources. 
 
           Section 5 - In addition to this agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete, sign, and submit 
to the County the following documents which are attached as part of this agreement: 

1. Standard Assurances 
2. Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility 

Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
3. Audit Certification 

 
 

 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

ARTICLE VII – SUSPENSION OF FUNDING 
 
The County may suspend funding to the Subrecipient, in whole or in part, or other measures may 
be imposed for any of the following reasons: 

1. Failure to expend funds in a timely manner consistent with the agreement milestones, 
guidance, and assurances. 

2. Failure to comply with the requirements or statutory objectives of federal or state law. 
3. Failure to follow agreement requirements or special conditions. 
4. Proposal or implementation of substantial plan changes to the extent that, if originally 

submitted, the application would not have been approved for funding. 
5. Failure to submit required reports. 
6. Filing of a false certification on the application or other report or document. 
7. Failure to adequately manage, monitor or direct the activities of its subrecipients that are 

funded under this agreement. 
 
Before taking action, the County will provide the Subrecipient reasonable notice of intent to 
impose corrective measures and will make every effort to resolve the problem informally. 
 
The County reserves the right to recommend to the federal government that the Subrecipient be 
suspended or debarred in the case of sustained significant noncompliance by the Subrecipient 
with the award provisions. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII- PERSONNEL 
 
 Section 1 - The Subrecipient will provide the required services and will not subaward or 
assign the services without the County’s written approval. 
 
 Section 2 - The Subrecipient will not hire any County employee for any of the required 
services without the County’s written approval. 
 
 Section 3 -  The parties agree that all work done under this agreement shall be completed 
in the United States and that none of the work will be partially or fully completed by either an 
offshore entity or offshore business interest either owned or affiliated with the Subrecipient.  For 
purposes of this agreement, the term, “offshore” refers to any area outside the contiguous United 
States, Alaska or Hawaii. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX-INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

 Contractor and the County shall, at all times, be deemed to be independent contractors 
and nothing herein shall be construed to create or imply that there exists between the parties a 
partnership, joint venture or other business organization.  Contractor shall hold no authority, 
express or implied, to commit, obligate or make representations on behalf of the County and 
shall make no representation to others to the contrary.   
 
 Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed for any purpose as creating the 
relationship of employer and employee or agent and principal between the parties.  Except as 
otherwise specified in this contract, Contractor retains the sole right and obligation to direct, 
control or supervise the details and means by which the services under this contract are 
provided.   
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 Contractor shall not be eligible for, or participate in, any insurance, pension, workers’ 
compensation insurance, profit sharing or other plans established for the benefit of the County’s 
employees.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of all taxes arising out of the 
Contractor’s activities in connection with this Agreement, including, without limitation, federal 
and state income taxes, social security taxes, unemployment insurance taxes and any other tax 
or business license fees as required.  The County shall not be responsible for withholding any 
income or employment taxes whatsoever on behalf of the Contractor.   

 
ARTICLE X - INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 

 
 The Subrecipient will protect, defend and indemnify the County, its officers, agents, 
servants, volunteers and employees from any and all liabilities, claims, liens, fines, demands and 
costs, including legal fees, of whatsoever kind and nature which may result in injury or death to 
any persons, including the Subrecipient’s own employees, and for loss or damage to any property, 
including property owned or in the care, custody or control of the County in connection with or in 
any way incident to or arising out of the occupancy, use, service, operations, performance or 
non-performance of work in connection with this agreement resulting in whole or in part from 
negligent acts or omissions of Subrecipient, any subcontractor of the Subrecipient, or any 
employee, agent or representative of the Subrecipient or any subcontractor of the Subrecipient. 
 
 

ARTICLE XI- INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 The Subrecipient will maintain at its own expense during the term of this Agreement, the 
following insurance: 
 

1. Workers' Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits and Employers 
Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any 
employee. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 

each occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  The County shall be 
added as "additional insured" on general liability policy with respect to the services 
provided under this agreement. 

 
3. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles 

with Personal Protection Insurance and Property Protection Insurance to comply 
with the provisions of the Michigan No Fault Insurance Law, including residual 
liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. For transportation services 
contracts, the County shall be added as additional insured on automobile liability 
policy with respect to the services provided under this contract. 

  
 
 Insurance companies, named insureds and policy forms may be subject to the approval 
of the County Administrator, if requested by the County Administrator.  Such approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld.  Insurance policies shall not contain endorsements or policy conditions 
which reduce coverage provided to The County.  Subrecipient shall be responsible to the County 
or insurance companies insuring the County for all costs resulting from both financially unsound 
insurance companies selected by Subrecipient and their inadequate insurance coverage.  
Subrecipient shall furnish the County Administrator with satisfactory certificates of insurance or a 
certified copy of the policy, if requested by the County Administrator.   
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 No payments will be made to the Subrecipient until the current certificates of insurance 
have been received and approved by the Administrator.  If the insurance as evidenced by the 
certificates furnished by the Subrecipient expires or is canceled during the term of the agreement, 
services and related payments will be suspended. Subrecipient shall furnish certification of 
insurance evidencing such coverage and endorsements at least ten (10) working days prior to 
commencement of services under this agreement. Certificates shall be addressed to the County 
c/o:  Office of Community and Economic Development, 415 West Michigan Ave, Suite 2200, 
Ypsilanti, MI 4819, AND Contract #__________, and shall provide for written notice to the 
Certificate holder of cancellation of coverage.   
 
 

ARTICLE XII - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
 The Subrecipient will comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including but not 
limited to all applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
           The Subrecipient agrees to maintain the proper organizational status (such as 501 (c)(3) 
if needed) to be eligible to receive federal financial assistance under this grant, including proper 
licensure, registration, etc.  Subrecipient agrees to keep itself in the same legal position/mode of 
organization as when it entered into this agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIII - INTEREST OF SUBRECIPIENT AND COUNTY 
 
 The Subrecipient promises that it has no interest which would conflict with the 
performance of services required by this agreement.  The Subrecipient also promises that, in the 
performance of this agreement, no officer, agent, employee of the County, or member of its 
governing bodies, may participate in any decision relating to this agreement which affects his/her 
personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he/she is 
directly or indirectly interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest.  However, this paragraph 
does not apply if there has been compliance with the provisions of Section 3 of Act No. 317 of the 
Public Acts of 1968 and/or Section 30 of Act No. 156 of Public Acts of 1851, as amended by Act 
No. 51 of the Public Acts of 1978, whichever is applicable. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIV - CONTINGENT FEES 
 
 The Subrecipient promises that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than bona fide employees working solely for the Subrecipient, to solicit or secure this 
agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than bona fide 
employees working solely for the Subrecipient, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
agreement. For breach of this promise, the County may cancel this agreement without liability or, 
at its discretion, deduct the full amount of the fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or 
contingent fee from the compensation due the Subrecipient. 
 

 
ARTICLE XV - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

 
 The Subrecipient will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, 
height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion and political belief (except as it relates to a 
bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the 
business). 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
 The Subrecipient will take affirmative action to eliminate discrimination based on sex, race, 
or a handicap in the hiring of applicant and the treatment of employees. Affirmative action will 
include, but not be limited to: Employment; upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment 
advertisement; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. 
 
            The Subrecipient agrees to post notices containing this policy against discrimination in 
conspicuous places available to applicants for employment and employees. All solicitations or 
advertisements for employees, placed by or on the behalf of the Subrecipient, will state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, 
sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital status, 
veteran status, religion and political belief. 
 
 

ARTICLE XVI - LIVING WAGE 
 

The parties understand that the County has enacted a Living Wage Ordinance that 
requires covered vendors who execute a service or professional service agreement with the 
County to pay their employees under that agreement, a minimum of either $15.90 per hour with 
benefits or $17.73 per hour without benefits.  Subrecipient agrees to comply with this Ordinance 
in paying its employees.  The Subrecipient understands and agrees that an adjustment of the 
living wage amounts, based upon the Health and Human Services poverty guidelines, will be 
made on or before April 30, 2024 and annually thereafter which amount shall be automatically 
incorporated into this agreement.  County agrees to give the Subrecipient thirty (30) days written 
notice of such change.  The Subrecipient agrees to post a notice containing the County’s Living 
Wage requirements at a location at its place of business accessed by its employees. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVII - ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
 
 This agreement is binding on the County and the Subrecipient, their successors and 
assigns.  Neither the County nor the Subrecipient will assign or transfer its interest in this 
agreement without the written consent of the other. 
 
 

ARTICLE XVIII - TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate the agreement by giving thirty (30) 
days written notice to the other party.  Upon any such termination, the Subrecipient agrees to 
return to the County any funds not authorized for use, and the County shall have no further 
obligation to reimburse the Subrecipient.  Upon termination of the agreement, the Subrecipient 
shall submit documentation, in a format specified by the County, to formally end its participation 
in the agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE XIX - EQUAL ACCESS 
 
 The Subrecipient shall provide the services set forth in the Scope of Service section of this 
agreement without discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, marital status, physical handicap, or age. 

 
 
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

ARTICLE XX - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND PUBLICATION  
 
 All documents developed as a result of this agreement will be freely available to the public.  
None may be copyrighted by the Subrecipient.  During the performance of the services, the 
Subrecipient will be responsible for any loss of or damage to the documents while they are in its 
possession and must restore the loss or damage at its expense.  Any use of the information and 
results of this agreement by the Subrecipient must reference the project sponsorship by the 
County.  Any publication of the information or results must be co-authored by the County.   

 
ARTICLE XXI - PAYROLL TAXES 

 
 The Subrecipient is responsible for all applicable state and federal social security benefits 
and unemployment taxes for its employees and agrees to indemnify and protect the County 
against such liability. 

 
ARTICLE XXII - PRACTICE AND ETHICS 

 
 The parties will conform to the code of ethics of their respective national professional 
associations. 
 

ARTICLE XXIII - CHANGES IN SCOPE OR SCHEDULE OR SERVICES  
 
 Changes mutually agreed upon by the County and the Subrecipient, will be incorporated 
into this agreement by written amendments signed by both parties.   
 
            Unilateral modification of the agreement may take place by the County if the underlying 
programmatic legislation or regulations are changed by the federal government.  If this unilateral 
modification is objectionable to the Subrecipient, it may withdraw from receiving further federal 
financial assistance under this agreement by giving (thirty) 30 days written notice to the County. 
 
            The Subrecipient agrees to inform the County in writing concerning any proposed changes 
of dates, budget, or services indicated in this agreement, as well as changes of address or 
personnel affecting this agreement.  Changes in dates, budget, or services are subject to prior 
written approval of the County. 
 

ARTICLE XXIV – FEDERAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. The terms of this Agreement shall remain in effect during any period that the Subrecipient 

has control over CDBG funds or other assets, including program income.  
 

2. National Objectives: All activities funded with CDBG funds must meet one of the CDBG 
program’s National Objectives: benefit low- and moderate-income persons; aid in the 
prevention or elimination of slums or blight; or meet community development needs having a 
particular urgency, as defined in 24 CFR 570.208.  

 
3. The Subrecipient is prohibited from using CDBG funds for inherently religious activities (24 

CFR 570.200(j)). 
 
4. Documentation and Record Keeping  

a. Records to be Maintained  
The Subrecipient shall maintain all records required by the Federal regulations specified 
in 24 CFR 570.506, that are pertinent to the activities to be funded under this 
Agreement. Such records shall include but not be limited to:  

https://www.govregs.com/regulations/expand/title24_chapterV_part570_subpartC_section570.208#regulation_8


  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

i. Records providing a full description of each activity undertaken;  
ii. Records demonstrating that each activity undertaken meets one of the 

National Objectives of the CDBG program;  
iii. Records required to determine the eligibility of activities;  
iv. Records required to document the acquisition, improvement, use or 

disposition of real property acquired or improved with CDBG assistance;  
v. Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and equal opportunity 

components of the CDBG program;  
vi. Financial records as required by 24 CFR 570.502, and 24 CFR 84.21−28; 

and  
vii. Other records necessary to document compliance with Subpart K of 24 CFR 

Part 570.  
 

5. Employment Restrictions 
a. Labor Standards  

Subrecipient agrees that, except with respect to the rehabilitation or construction of 
residential property containing less than eight (8) units, all contractors engaged under 
contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction, renovation or repair work financed in 
whole or in part with assistance provided under this contract, shall comply with Federal 
requirements adopted by the Grantee pertaining to such contracts and with the 
applicable requirements of the regulations of the Department of Labor, under 29 CFR 
Parts 1, 3, 5 and 7 governing the payment of wages and ratio of apprentices and 
trainees to journey workers; provided that, if wage rates higher than those required 
under the regulations are imposed by state or local law, nothing hereunder is intended 
to relieve the Subrecipient of its obligation, if any, to require payment of the higher 
wage. The Subrecipient shall cause or require to be inserted in full, in all such contracts 
subject to such regulations, provisions meeting the requirements of this paragraph. 
 

b. “Section 3” Requirements  
“Section 3” Requirements:  The work to be performed under this contract is 
subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 
Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (“Section 3”). The purpose of Section 3 
is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 
HUD projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be 
directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are 
recipients of HUD assistance for housing.  

i. Certification of Compliance: The parties to this contract agree to comply with 
HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR 75, which implement Section 3. By executing 
this contract, the parties certify that they are under no contractual obligations 
or other impediments that would prevent them from complying with the 24 
CFR 74 regulations. 

ii. Contract Language Requirements: The subrecipient agrees to include this 
Section 3 Requirements clause in every subcontract subject to compliance 
with regulations in 24 CFR 75, and agrees to take appropriate action as 
outlined in the contract upon a finding that a subcontractor is in violation of 
regulations in 24 CFR 75. The subrecipient will not subcontract with any 
subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the 
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 75. On 
a periodic basis the Washtenaw County OCED may audit the subrecipient’s 
subcontractors for compliance with the minimum Section 3 requirements. 

iii. Contracting Requirements: To the greatest extent feasible, and consistent 
with Federal, state, and local laws and regulations, the subrecipient and 
subcontractors for the project shall ensure subcontracts for work awarded in 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

connection with the project are awarded in a manner that provides economic 
opportunities to Section 3 Workers. 

iv. The subrecipient agrees to send to each labor organization or representative 
of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or 
other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or 
workers’ representative of the subrecipient’s commitments under this Section 
3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work 
site where both employees and applications for training and employment 
positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 
preference, shall set forth minimum numbers and job titles subject to hire; 
availability of apprenticeship and training positions and the qualifications for 
each; the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of 
the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 

v. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR 75 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract, and/or debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts.  

vi. All subcontractors submitting bids or proposals to the subrecipient for work 
related to this contract shall be required to certify that they are Section 3 
compliant. Such certification shall be adequately supported with appropriate 
documentation. 

 
 

ARTICLE XXV - CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM 
 
 This agreement is to be interpreted by the laws of the State of Michigan.  The parties agree 
that the proper forum for any disputes or litigation arising out of this agreement is in Washtenaw 
County, Michigan. 

 
 

ARTICLE XXVI - EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 
 
 This written agreement, including any attachments thereto, represents the entire 
agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior representations, negotiations or 
agreements whether written or oral. 
 
 

ARTICLE XXVII – PRIVITY / THIRD PARTIES 
 
            This agreement is solely between the County and Subrecipient.  No other parties are part 
of this agreement.  This agreement is not intended to make any person or entity, not a party to 
this agreement, a third party beneficiary hereof or to confer on a third party any rights or 
obligations enforceable in their favor. 
 
 

ARTICLE XXVIII - SEVERABILITY 
 
            The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this agreement shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of any other provision of this agreement, which shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

ARTICLE XXIX - NOTICES 
 
            Communication notices for this agreement may be delivered via electronic mail, U.S. mail, 
hand delivery, or fax. 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
           The individual or officer signing this agreement certifies by his or her signature that he or 
she is authorized to sign this agreement on behalf of the organization he or she represents.  By 
signing this agreement, the County and the Subrecipient agree to comply with all of the 
requirements specified in this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO:    WASHTENAW  COUNTY (Pass-Through Entity) 
 
 
By:_______________________  By:__________________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum  (DATE)            Gregory Dill     (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register        County Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  Superior Charter Township (Subrecipient) 
 
 
By:_____________________________ BY:__________________________________ 
 Toni Kayumi                         (DATE)                    Ken Schwartz                             (DATE) 
 Director, Office of Community &                          Township Supervisor   
 Economic Development                                             
 
 
       

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
By:_____________________________                                     
     Michelle K. Billard     (DATE) 
     Office of Corporation Counsel 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

By:_____________________________ 
     Lynette Findley     (DATE) 
     Township Clerk 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

OMB Approval No. 0348-0042  
 
 

STANDARD ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized 
Representative 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Name of Subrecipient Organization 

  
 
_______________________________________ 
Title of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Date Submitted 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest. 
Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. 
Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 34 CFR Part 82, "New Restrictions 
on Lobbying," and 34 CFR Part 85, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and 
Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when Washtenaw County determines to award the covered 
transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement. 

 
1. LOBBYING 

 
As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 82, for persons 
entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over 
$100,000, as defined at 34 CFR Part 82, Sections 
82.105 and 82.110, the applicant certifies that: 
 
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 
will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of 
any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement; 
 
(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds 
have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions; 
 
(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of 
this certification be included in the award documents 
for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, 
contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, 
and subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 
 
As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, for 
prospective participants in primary covered 
transactions, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.105 and 85.110— 
 
A. The applicant certifies that it and its principals: 
 
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed 
for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

 
(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application been convicted of or had a civil judgment 
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a 
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public 
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 
(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally 
or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, 
State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (2)(b) of this certification; and 
 
(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application had one or more public transaction 
(Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default; and 
 
B. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the 
statements in this certification, he or she shall attach 
an explanation to this application. 
 
3. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
(GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) 
 
As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, Subpart F, for 
grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.605 and 85.610 – 
 
A. The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to 
provide a drug-free workplace by: 
 
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the 
unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying 
the actions that will be taken against employees for 
violation of such prohibition; 
 
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness 
program to inform employees about:  
 
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
 
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free 
workplace; 
 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and 
employee assistance programs; and 
 
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon 
employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the 
workplace; 
 
(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be 
engaged in the performance of the grant be given a 
copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
 
(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by 
paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under 
the grant, the employee will: 
 
(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
 
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction 
for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the 
workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; (e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within 
10 calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise 
receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers 
of convicted employees must provide notice, including 
position title, to: Washtenaw County Administrator’s 
Office, 220 N. Main, P.O. Box 8645, Ann Arbor, MI 
48107-8645. Notice shall include the identification 
number(s) of each affected grant; 
 
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 
calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so 
convicted: 
 
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such 
an employee, up to and including termination, 
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, as amended; or (2) Requiring such 
employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse 
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such 
purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 
 
(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a 
drug-free workplace through implementation of 
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).  
 
B. The grantee may insert in the space provided below 
the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant: 
 
Place of Performance (Street address. city, county, 
state, zip code) 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Check [ ] if there are workplaces on file that are not 
identified here. 
 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
(GRANTEES WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS) 
 
As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, Subpart F, for 
grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.605 and 85.610-  
 
A. As a condition of the grant, I certify that I will not 
engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 
substance in conducting any activity with the grant; and 
 
B. If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from 
a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant 
activity, I will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 
calendar days of the conviction, to: Washtenaw County 
Administrator’s Office, 220 N. Main, P.O. Box 8645, 
Ann Arbor, MI 48107-8645. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant. 
 
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, 
I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the 
above certifications. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Name of Subrecipient Organization 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title of Subrecipient’s Authorized 
Representative 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Date

 

 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

Subrecipient Audit Certification 
 

Federal Audit Requirements - Fiscal Years Beginning After December 26, 2014 
 
Non-federal organizations which expend $750,000 or more in federal funds during their fiscal year are 

required to have a Single Audit performed in accordance with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 

220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management 

and Budget.   Subrecipients must submit their audit report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the 

earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s report, or within 9 months after the end of the audit period for 

each year the Subrecipient meets the $750,000 federal expenditure threshold. 

 
 
Program:  _______________________________________   CFDA Number: _________________ 
 

Subrecipient Information: 
 

  Organization Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
  Street Address:  ________________________________________________________ 
 
  City, State, Zip Code: ________________________________________________________ 
   
  Independent Audit Firm: ________________________________________________________ 
 
  Certification for Fiscal Year Ending (mm/dd/yyyy): ____________________________________ 
   

 (Check appropriate box) : 

I certify that the Subrecipient shown above does not expect to expend $750,000 or more in federal 

funds during at least one fiscal year that funds are received for the above listed program and thus it will 

not be required to have a Single Audit performed under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 

215, 220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of 

Management and Budget, for the above listed program. 
 

I certify that the Subrecipient shown above expects it will expend $750,000 or more in federal funds 

during at least one fiscal year that funds are received for the above listed program and thus it will be 

required to have a Single Audit performed under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 

215, 220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of  

Management and Budget. 

 

 

__________________________________________  _________________________ 

Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative  Date 

 

 

For Washtenaw County Use Only 

 

 

Reviewed By:_______________________________  Date:_____________________ 

 

 



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
 
 

              ATTACHMENT A – SCOPE OF SERVICES & TIMELINE 
 
 
NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
WASHTENAW COUNTY will contract with Superior Charter Township for the eligible costs of 
construction for the MacArthur Boulevard Pedestrian Pathway in the Superior Charter Township. 
The contract will be paid for with 2018, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 Urban County CDBG funding in 
accordance with the budget in Attachment B.  
 
See Attachment C for the map showing the site for where the pedestrian pathway 
will be located.  
 
PROJECT TIMELINE:  
 
Activity Deadline 
Superior Township to approve the execution of CDBG Subrecipient Agreement   February 20, 2024 
Bid awarded to contractor selected through RFP   February 20, 2024 

Start of Construction  April 22, 2024 
OCED to carry out Davis Bacon wage interviews  April – June 2024 
Substantial Completion  June 14, 2024 
Township to submit request for reimbursement with supporting documentation July 2024 

Project Completion Date: July 12, 2024 
 
  



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B – PROJECT BUDGET 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF TERMS: 
 
 The COUNTY agrees to pay to or on behalf of the SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
an amount not to exceed One hundred thirty-three thousand seven hundred sixty-six 
dollars and zero cents ($133,766.00) in 2018, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 CDBG Funds 
according to the budget below. All project costs above $133,766.00 will be the responsibility of 
the Township.   
 
PROJECT BUDGET: 
 

2018/2020/2021/2022/2023 MACARTHUR BOULEVARD PEDESTRIAN 
PATHWAY:   

Construction Budget 

REVENUE SOURCE(S): TOTAL 

CDBG (2018) – Allocation  $11,972.00 

CDBG (2020) – Allocation $35,004.00 

CDBG (2021) – Allocation 
 

$18,630.00 

CDBG (2022) – Allocation $33,090.00 

CDBG (2023) – Allocation $35,070.00 

Local Funds (Township)  $109,189.00 

Total  Revenues $242,955.00 

 

PROGRAM EXPENSES TOTAL 

Construction $242,955.00 

Total Expenditures $242,955.00 

 
 
 
 
 
  



  Contract # __________ 
 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENT C – PROJECT LOCATION  

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO AWARD BID FOR MACARTHUR BLVD PEDESTRIAN 

PATHWAY PROJECT TO ALL STAR POWER EXCAVATION, LLC 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-08 

 
DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, Sealed bids for the MacArthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway project were 

received and publicly read aloud on Thursday, February 1, 2024, at 10:00 AM at the Township 
Hall of the Charter Township of Superior; and  

  
WHEREAS, the project scope consists of installing an 8' wide HMA pathway along the 

north side of MacArthur Blvd from Stamford Rd to Harris Rd and a 6' wide concrete sidewalk 
connection to Fireman's Park; and, 

WHEREAS, the work to be completed under this contract includes the furnishing of 
materials, equipment, and labor necessary to complete the proposed work, in accordance with the 
contract documents; and, 

WHEREAS, All Star Power Excavation, LLC. (herein referred to as the "Contractor"), 
located in Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan is the apparent low bidder. OHM Advisors has had 
prior experience working with this Contractor in various local communities on projects similar in 
scope to this work, and OHM have no major concerns with the Contractors ability to perform 
this work to the satisfaction of the contract requirements; and, 

WHEREAS, OHM also spoke with project references listed in the Contractors bid 
proposal and received positive feedback regarding this Contractors ability to perform similar 
work; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The Township's available funding of $133,591.00 from the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) program through Washtenaw County OCED is allocated 
towards construction of the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees hereby awards the MacArthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway project to All Star 
Power Excavation, LLC. for their bid in an estimated contract award amount of $246,735.00. 



OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

 

 
 

 
February 7, 2024 

 
 
Mr. Ken Schwartz 
Township Supervisor 
Superior Charter Township 
3040 N. Prospect Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 

 

RE: MacArthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway 
 Recommendation of Award 

 

 
Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

 
Sealed bids for the MacArthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway project were received and publicly read aloud on Thursday, 
February 1, 2024, at 10:00 AM at the Township Hall of Superior Charter Township. The Township received bids from 
two (2) bidders. The summary of bidders and their total bid amounts as read are listed below. Our Engineer’s Opinion of 
Construction Cost at the bidding stage of work was approximately $248,496. We have summarized the bid amounts of all 
work items from the bidders in the attached bid tabulation. 

 

 

Contractor Name Bid Amount 

All Star Power Excavation, LLC $246,735.00* 

Merlo Construction Co., Inc.  $287,793.00 

*Adjusted bid amount to correct bidder’s error. 

 
The project scope consists of installing an 8’ wide HMA pathway along the north side of MacArthur Blvd from 
Stamford Rd to Harris Rd and a 6’ wide concrete sidewalk connection to Fireman’s Park. The work to be completed 
under this contract includes the furnishing of materials, equipment, and labor necessary to complete the proposed 
work, in accordance with the contract documents. The Township’s available funding of $133,591 from the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program through Washtenaw County OCED is allocated towards 
construction of the project. 

 

All Star Power Excavation, LLC., located in Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan is the apparent low bidder. OHM 
Advisors has had prior experience working with this Contractor in various local communities on projects similar in 
scope to this work, and we have no major concerns with their ability to perform this work to the satisfaction of the 
contract requirements. We also spoke with project references listed in the Contractors bid proposal and received 
positive feedback regarding this Contractors ability to perform similar work. 

 

We therefore recommend that the Township Board award the MacArthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway project to 
All Star Power Excavation, LLC. for their bid in an estimated contract award amount of $246,735.00. 



 

Mr. Ken Schwartz 
February 7, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

We look forward to continuing to provide professional services on this project through the construction phase of work. 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (734) 466-4592. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
 

, 

Claire Martin, PE 
Project Manager 

Encl: Bid Tab 
 
cc: George Tsakoff, OHM Advisors 

 Mariah Cummings, OHM Advisors 

 

 



Unit Unit Unit

Item Description Price Amount Price Amount Price Amount

1 Digital Video Route Survey 1 LSUM $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

2 Mobilization, Max. 10% 1 LSUM $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

3 Contingency Allowance 15000 Dlr $1.00 $15,000.00 $1.00 $15,000.00 $1.00 $15,000.00

4 Pavt, Rem 123 Syd $12.00 $1,476.00 $25.00 $3,075.00 $12.00 $1,476.00

5 Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 150 Cyd $60.00 $9,000.00 $40.00 $6,000.00 $80.00 $12,000.00

6 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 7 Ea $200.00 $1,400.00 $175.00 $1,225.00 $200.00 $1,400.00

7 Erosion Control, Silt Fence 1400 Ft $3.00 $4,200.00 2 $3.00 $4,200.00 $3.00 $4,200.00

8 Aggregate Base, 8 inch 160 Syd $34.00 $5,440.00 $25.00 $4,000.00 $35.00 $5,600.00

9 Maintenance Gravel 50 Ton $25.00 $1,250.00 $25.00 $1,250.00 $50.00 $2,500.00

10 HMA Approach 45 Ton $300.00 $13,500.00 $300.00 $13,500.00 $250.00 $11,250.00

11 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 739 Sft $11.00 $8,129.00 $7.00 $5,173.00 $14.00 $10,346.00

12 Sidewalk, Conc, 8 inch 336 Sft $13.00 $4,368.00 $9.00 $3,024.00 $20.00 $6,720.00

13 Shared use Path, HMA 226 Ton $190.00 $42,940.00 $190.00 $42,940.00 $200.00 $45,200.00

14 Shared Use Path, Grading, Modified 1370 Ft $40.00 $54,800.00 $62.00 $84,940.00 $20.00 $27,400.00

15 Shared Use Path, Aggregate, 6 inch 1474 Syd $23.00 $33,902.00 $27.00 $39,798.00 $30.00 $44,220.00

16 Traffic Maintenance and Control 1 LSUM $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

17 Turf Establishment, Performance 1523 Syd $10.00 $15,230.00 $16.00 $24,368.00 $8.00 $12,184.00

18 Irrigation Head Replacement 4 Ea $150.00 $600.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 $250.00 $1,000.00

$246,735.00 1 $287,793.00 $248,496.00

CORRECTIONS

1 Total bid amount adjusted to reflect bidder's error

2 Line item adjusted to reflect bidder's error

\\ohm\dfs\Corporate\Projects\0126_0165\0140230060_Macarthur_Pathway\_Civil\_Bidding\Bids

Macarthur Blvd Pedestrian Pathway OHM Advisors833 North Brys Drive 4964 Technical Drive

Grosse Point Woods, MI 48236 Milford, MI 48381

Total Bid Amount:

Tabulation for Bids Received on 2/1/24 Engineer's EstimateAll Star Power Excavation, LLC

 Superior Charter Township, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan 34000 Plymouth Road

Quantity

 OHM Job Number: 0140-23-0060 Livonia, MI 48150

Estimated 

 734-522-6711  734-771-7064  248-714-5486 

Merlo Construction Co., Inc.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
 

RESOLUTION TO AWARD BID FOR PLYMOUTH RD PATHWAY PROJECT TO 
ALL STAR POWER EXCAVATION, LLC 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-08 

 
DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, sealed bids for the Plymouth Rd. Pathway project were received and publicly 

read aloud on Thursday, February 1, 2024, at 10:00 AM at the Township Hall of the Charter 
Township of Superior; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the project scope consists of installing an 8' wide HMA pathway with 

concrete ADA ramps, driveway replacement (as necessary for path installation), tree removal, 
existing concrete ramp removal, a boardwalk and complete project cleanup and restoration. The 
project is located along Plymouth Road from Dixboro Road to 1300 ft east of Cherry Hill Road; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the work to be completed under this contract includes the furnishing of 

materials, equipment, and labor necessary to complete the proposed work, in accordance with the 
contract documents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, All Star Power Excavation, LLC. (herein referred to as the "Contractor"), 

located in Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan is the apparent low bidder. OHM Advisors has had 
prior experience working with this Contractor in various local communities on projects similar in 
scope to this work, and OHM have no major concerns with the Contractors ability to perform 
this work to the satisfaction of the contract requirements; and, 

 
WHEREAS, OHM also spoke with project references listed in the Contractors bid 

proposal and received positive feedback regarding this Contractors ability to perform similar 
work; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the project has been awarded $250,000 for construction by the Washtenaw 

County Parks and Recreation Commission’s (WCPARC’s) Connecting Communities Program, as 
well as $300,000 for construction and engineering by the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund 
(MNRTF) Program through the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). MDNR 
requires that the project be awarded to the lowest qualified bidder. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustees hereby awards the Plymouth Rd. Pathway project to All Star Power Excavation, LLC. 
pending MDNR approval of the contract award, for their bid in an estimated contract award amount 
of $869,870.00. 



OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

 

 
 

 
February 7, 2024 

 
 
Mr. Ken Schwartz 
Township Supervisor 
Superior Charter Township 
3040 N. Prospect Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 

 

RE: Plymouth Rd Pathway 
 Recommendation of Award 

 

 
Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

 
Sealed bids for the Plymouth Rd Pathway project were received and publicly read aloud on Thursday, February 1, 2024, 
at 10:00 AM at the Township Hall of Superior Charter Township. The Township received bids from four (4) bidders.  
The summary of bidders and their total bid amounts as read are listed below. Our Engineer’s Opinion of Construction 
Cost at the bidding stage of work was approximately $847,790. We have summarized the bid amounts of all work items 
from the bidders in the attached bid tabulation. 

 

 

Contractor Name Bid Amount 

All Star Power Excavation, LLC $869,870.00 

Merlo Construction Co., Inc.  $881,735.50 

Fonson Company, Inc.  $1,024,997.50 

Erie Construction LLC $1,153,735.00 

 

 
The project scope consists of installing an 8’ wide HMA pathway with concrete ADA ramps, driveway replacement 
(as necessary for path installation), tree removal, existing concrete ramp removal, a boardwalk and complete project 
cleanup and restoration. The project is located along Plymouth Road from Dixboro Road to 1300 ft east of Cherry 
Hill Road. The work to be completed under this contract includes the furnishing of materials, equipment, and labor 
necessary to complete the proposed work, in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
The project has been awarded $250,000 for construction by the Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation 
Commission’s (WCPARC’s) Connecting Communities Program, as well as $300,000 for construction and engineering 
by the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) Program through the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources (MDNR). MDNR requires that the project be awarded to the lowest qualified bidder. 

 

All Star Power Excavation, LLC., located in Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan is the apparent low bidder. OHM 
Advisors has had prior experience working with this Contractor in various local communities on projects similar in 
scope to this work, and we have no major concerns with their ability to perform this work to the satisfaction of the 
contract requirements. We also spoke with project references listed in the Contractors bid proposal and received 
positive feedback regarding this Contractors ability to perform similar work. 

 

We therefore recommend that the Township Board award the Plymouth Road Pathway project to All Star  



 

Mr. Ken Schwartz 
February 7, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
Power Excavation, LLC., pending MDNR approval of the contract award, for their bid in an estimated contract award 
amount of $869,870.00. 
 

We look forward to continuing to provide professional services on this project through the construction phase of work. 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (734) 466-4592. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
 

, 

Claire Martin, PE 
Project Manager 

Encl: Bid Tab 
 
cc: George Tsakoff, OHM Advisors 

 Mariah Cummings, OHM Advisors 

 

 



Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit

Item Description Price Amount Price Amount Price Amount Price Amount Price Amount

1 Contingency Allowance 30000 Dlr $1.00 $30,000.00 $1.00 $30,000.00 $1.00 $30,000.00 $1.00 $30,000.00 $1.00 $30,000.00

2 Digital Video Recorded Survey 1 LSUM $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $3,700.00 $3,700.00 $1,050.00 $1,050.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

3 Mobilization, Max (10%) 1 LSUM $84,000.00 $84,000.00 $33,000.00 $33,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $115,000.00 $115,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

4 Traffic Maintenance and Control 1 LSUM $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $150,100.00 $150,100.00 $98,000.00 $98,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

5 Tree, Rem, 19 inch to 36 inch 7 Ea $2,200.00 $15,400.00 $2,215.00 $15,505.00 $2,300.00 $16,100.00 $300.00 $2,100.00 $1,500.00 $10,500.00

6 Tree, Rem, 6 inch to 18 inch 28 Ea $300.00 $8,400.00 $315.00 $8,820.00 $400.00 $11,200.00 $200.00 $5,600.00 $500.00 $14,000.00

7 Stump, Rem, 19 inch to 36 inch 1 Ea $250.00 $250.00 $165.00 $165.00 $150.00 $150.00 $400.00 $400.00 $300.00 $300.00

8 Culv, Rem, Less than 24 inch 9 Ea $700.00 $6,300.00 $185.00 $1,665.00 $750.00 $6,750.00 $700.00 $6,300.00 $300.00 $2,700.00

9 Utility Manhole, Adj 2 Ea $650.00 $1,300.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,025.00 $2,050.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $800.00 $1,600.00

10 Curb and Gutter, Rem 83 Ft $14.00 $1,162.00 $25.00 $2,075.00 $15.00 $1,245.00 $60.00 $4,980.00 $10.00 $830.00

11 Fence, Rem 50 Ft $5.00 $250.00 $6.00 $300.00 $13.00 $650.00 $14.00 $700.00 $10.00 $500.00

12 Pavt, Rem 1,004 Syd $14.00 $14,056.00 $25.00 $25,100.00 $15.00 $15,060.00 $18.00 $18,072.00 $12.00 $12,048.00

13 Sidewalk, Rem 40 Syd $14.00 $560.00 $14.00 $560.00 $27.00 $1,080.00 $16.00 $640.00 $12.00 $480.00

14 Lawn Ornament, Relocate 1 Ea $107.00 $107.00 $250.00 $250.00 $300.00 $300.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $500.00

15 Mailbox, Rem & Reset 6 Ea $175.00 $1,050.00 $200.00 $1,200.00 $85.00 $510.00 $380.00 $2,280.00 $100.00 $600.00

16 Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 200 Cyd $70.00 $14,000.00 $60.00 $12,000.00 $70.00 $14,000.00 $75.00 $15,000.00 $70.00 $14,000.00

17 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 1 Ea $150.00 $150.00 $175.00 $175.00 $100.00 $100.00 $220.00 $220.00 $200.00 $200.00

18 Erosion Control, Silt Fence 2,505 Ft $3.00 $7,515.00 $1.50 $3,757.50 $2.30 $5,761.50 $2.60 $6,513.00 $2.50 $6,262.50

19 Aggregate Base, 6 inch, Modified 2,878 Syd $29.00 $83,462.00 $21.00 $60,438.00 $19.00 $54,682.00 $30.00 $86,340.00 $18.00 $51,804.00

20 Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Modified 751 Syd $35.00 $26,285.00 $25.00 $18,775.00 $24.00 $18,024.00 $39.00 $29,289.00 $21.00 $15,771.00

21 Maintenance Gravel 100 Ton $30.00 $3,000.00 $26.00 $2,600.00 $38.00 $3,800.00 $60.00 $6,000.00 $25.00 $2,500.00

22 Infiltration Trench, Det B 755 Ft $33.00 $24,915.00 $33.00 $24,915.00 $28.00 $21,140.00 $42.00 $31,710.00 $80.00 $60,400.00

23 Culv End Sect, Conc, 12 inch 3 Ea $1,100.00 $3,300.00 $525.00 $1,575.00 $1,325.00 $3,975.00 $820.00 $2,460.00 $700.00 $2,100.00

24 Culv, Cl F, 12 inch 237 Ft $54.00 $12,798.00 $125.00 $29,625.00 $39.00 $9,243.00 $70.00 $16,590.00 $60.00 $14,220.00

25 Sewer, Cl A, 12 inch, Tr Det A 193 Ft $57.00 $11,001.00 $125.00 $24,125.00 $53.00 $10,229.00 $110.00 $21,230.00 $70.00 $13,510.00

26 Dr Structure Cover, Type G 4 Ea $800.00 $3,200.00 $800.00 $3,200.00 $570.00 $2,280.00 $700.00 $2,800.00 $800.00 $3,200.00

27 Dr Structure Cover, Type J 2 Ea $1,600.00 $3,200.00 $1,350.00 $2,700.00 $1,170.00 $2,340.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00

28 Dr Structure, 48 inch dia 6 Ea $2,800.00 $16,800.00 $4,200.00 $25,200.00 $1,250.00 $7,500.00 $4,400.00 $26,400.00 $3,500.00 $21,000.00

29 Dr Structure, 48 inch dia, Low Head 2 Ea $2,800.00 $5,600.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $2,100.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $8,400.00 $2,800.00 $5,600.00

30 Underdrain, Subgrade, 6 inch 720 Ft $28.00 $20,160.00 $20.00 $14,400.00 $18.00 $12,960.00 $25.00 $18,000.00 $35.00 $25,200.00

31 Underdrain, Infiltration Trench, 6 inch 655 Ft $34.00 $22,270.00 $22.00 $14,410.00 $7.50 $4,912.50 $15.00 $9,825.00 $20.00 $13,100.00

32 HMA Approach 155 Ton $300.00 $46,500.00 $300.00 $46,500.00 $180.00 $27,900.00 $184.00 $28,520.00 $250.00 $38,750.00

33 HMA, 4EML 48 Ton $325.00 $15,600.00 $325.00 $15,600.00 $180.00 $8,640.00 $196.00 $9,408.00 $210.00 $10,080.00

34 HMA, 5EML 33 Ton $325.00 $10,725.00 $325.00 $10,725.00 $180.00 $5,940.00 $184.00 $6,072.00 $210.00 $6,930.00

35 Hand Patching 10 Ton $350.00 $3,500.00 $350.00 $3,500.00 $180.00 $1,800.00 $184.00 $1,840.00 $300.00 $3,000.00

36 Helical Pier, Additional 7' Section 12 Ea $195.00 $2,340.00 $195.00 $2,340.00 $195.00 $2,340.00 $220.00 $2,640.00 $300.00 $3,600.00

37 Steel Helical Pier 12 Ea $1,375.00 $16,500.00 $1,375.00 $16,500.00 $1,375.00 $16,500.00 $1,600.00 $19,200.00 $1,200.00 $14,400.00

38 Reinforcement, Steel, Epoxy Coated 400 Lb $3.00 $1,200.00 $10.00 $4,000.00 $3.00 $1,200.00 $7.00 $2,800.00 $2.00 $800.00

39 Conc, Grade 3500 5 Cyd $500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $1,700.00 $8,500.00 $1,800.00 $9,000.00

40 Pressure Treated Boardwalk 75 Ft $407.00 $30,525.00 $800.00 $60,000.00 $774.00 $58,050.00 $850.00 $63,750.00 $850.00 $63,750.00

41 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det B2 720 Ft $50.00 $36,000.00 $33.00 $23,760.00 $50.00 $36,000.00 $40.00 $28,800.00 $40.00 $28,800.00

42 Spillway, Conc 6 Ft $100.00 $600.00 $125.00 $750.00 $100.00 $600.00 $105.00 $630.00 $100.00 $600.00

43 Detectable Warning Surface 31 Ft $75.00 $2,325.00 $48.00 $1,488.00 $75.00 $2,325.00 $63.00 $1,953.00 $100.00 $3,100.00

44 Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 103 Ft $50.00 $5,150.00 $38.00 $3,914.00 $50.00 $5,150.00 $40.00 $4,120.00 $60.00 $6,180.00

45 Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 605 Sft $7.00 $4,235.00 $8.00 $4,840.00 $7.00 $4,235.00 $18.00 $10,890.00 $10.00 $6,050.00

46 Sidewalk, Conc, 8 inch 407 Sft $9.00 $3,663.00 $9.00 $3,663.00 $9.00 $3,663.00 $20.00 $8,140.00 $14.00 $5,698.00

47 Curb Ramp, Conc, 6 inch 360 Sft $10.00 $3,600.00 $9.00 $3,240.00 $10.00 $3,600.00 $13.00 $4,680.00 $12.00 $4,320.00

48 Shared use Path, HMA 395 Ton $180.00 $71,100.00 $180.00 $71,100.00 $180.00 $71,100.00 $180.00 $71,100.00 $170.00 $67,150.00

49 Shared Use Path, Grading, Modified 2505 Ft $14.00 $35,070.00 $62.00 $155,310.00 $51.50 $129,007.50 $77.00 $192,885.00 $25.00 $62,625.00

50 Wood Safety Rail 60 Ft $150.00 $9,000.00 $50.00 $3,000.00 $175.00 $10,500.00 $195.00 $11,700.00 $60.00 $3,600.00

51 Post, Steel, 3 pound 212 Ft $10.00 $2,120.00 $15.00 $3,180.00 $30.00 $6,360.00 $10.00 $2,120.00 $50.00 $10,600.00

52 Sign, Type III, Rem 14 Ea $5.00 $70.00 $20.00 $280.00 $250.00 $3,500.00 $5.00 $70.00 $20.00 $280.00

53 Sign, Type IIIB 146 Sft $18.50 $2,701.00 $25.00 $3,650.00 $40.00 $5,840.00 $19.00 $2,774.00 $100.00 $14,600.00

Livonia, MI 48150

Fonson Company, Inc.

7644 Whitmore Lake Road

All Star Power Excavation, LLC

Grosse Point Woods, MI 48236

Merlo Construction Co., Inc.

4964 Technical Drive

Milford, MI 48381

 248-714-5486 

Engineer's Estimate

OHM Advisors

34000 Plymouth Road

 734-522-6711 

Estimated 

Quantity

Erie Construction LLC

Plymouth Rd (Dixboro) Pathway, MNRTF Grant No. TF21-0119 833 North Brys Drive 22051 Commerce Drive

Tabulation for Bids Received on 2/1/24

 734-676-8689 

 Superior Charter Township, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan Woodhaven, MI 48183

 OHM Job Number: 0140-21-0090 

Brighton, MI 48116

 810-231-5188  734-771-7064 



54 Connecting Communities Sign 1 Ea $100.00 $100.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $100.00 $100.00 $300.00 $300.00

55 MNRTF Sign 1 Ea $100.00 $100.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $150.00 $150.00 $164.00 $164.00 $300.00 $300.00

56 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 12 inch, Crosswalk 270 Ft $8.50 $2,295.00 $20.00 $5,400.00 $8.50 $2,295.00 $9.00 $2,430.00 $15.00 $4,050.00

57 Irrigation Head Replacement 20 Ea $180.00 $3,600.00 $175.00 $3,500.00 $75.00 $1,500.00 $55.00 $1,100.00 $250.00 $5,000.00

58 Turf Establishment, Performance 1 LSUM $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

59 Light Pole Relocation 1 Ea $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $3,150.00 $3,150.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

60 Conduit, DB, 1, 3 inch 50 Ft $80.00 $4,000.00 $80.00 $4,000.00 $80.00 $4,000.00 $50.00 $2,500.00 $60.00 $3,000.00

61 Hh, Adj 2 Ea $700.00 $1,400.00 $700.00 $1,400.00 $700.00 $1,400.00 $350.00 $700.00 $600.00 $1,200.00

62 Pedestal, Alum 2 Ea $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $2,050.00 $4,100.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00

63 Pedestal, Fdn 2 Ea $1,360.00 $2,720.00 $1,360.00 $2,720.00 $1,360.00 $2,720.00 $2,575.00 $5,150.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00

64 Pushbutton and Sign 2 Ea $1,070.00 $2,140.00 $1,070.00 $2,140.00 $1,070.00 $2,140.00 $1,850.00 $3,700.00 $650.00 $1,300.00

65 TS, Pedestrian, One Way Pedestal Mtd (LED) Countdown 2 Ea $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $2,250.00 $4,500.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00

$869,870.00 $881,735.50 $1,024,997.50 $1,153,735.00 $847,788.50

\\ohm\dfs\Corporate\Projects\0126_0165\0140210090_Plymouth_Rd_(Dixboro)_Pathway\_Civil\_Bidding\Bids

Total Bid Amount (ITEMS 1-65 incl.):



Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Province of Ontario, Esri Canada, Esri,
HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc., METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

888 .522 .67 1 1    |    ohm-adv i so r s .comP:\0126_0165\0140220010_Geddes_Rd_Pathway\_GIS\ArcLayouts\GeddesRoad\GeddesRoad.aprx

Source:  Data provided by State of  Michigan. OHM Advisors does not warrant
the accuracy of  the data and/or the map. This document is intended to depict the
approximate spatial location of  the mapped features within the Community and
all use is strictly at the user’s own risk.

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Published:  February 10, 2022

1" = 900'

0 900 1,800

Feet

³

Geddes Road
Pathway

Somerset Ln

Barrington Dr

Geddes Rd

Stamford Ct

B
rian C

t

Bazley Blvd

A
bbey

Ln

Wexford Dr

Ham
let

Dr
A

n
dover Dr

Knollwood Bnd

Th
am

es
 C

t

Wex
ford Blvd

E
verg

reen
Ln

Aspen Ln

Sh
effi

el
d

D
r

C
ar

lis
le

 C
t

EralCt Telford

Ct

Stamford Rd

Ridgeview

G
o

tf
re

d
so

n 
B

lv
d

E Avondale
Cir

Yo
rk

C
t

Buckingham Dr

B
ro

o
ks

id
e 

B
lv

d

Avon Ct

Arlington Dr

Durham
 Ct

Ascot Dr

Canterbury Ct

Gardner St

Man
ch

es
te

r Dr

W Avondale Cir

Br
id

ge
w

at
er

 D
r

Kingston Ct

Sherwood

N
W

arw
ick

Ct

Edgewood Ct

B
ee

ch
la

w
n P

arklaw
n

F
o

re
st

vi
ew

 D
r

N
 H

ar
ri

s 
R

d

S
W

arw
ick

Ct

Savanah
C

t

White Oak Ln

Preston Ct

Mulberry

Savannah Ln

Maplelawn

Ashley D
r Glenhill Dr

S
p

ru
ce

 L
n

High Meadow Dr

Ravenshire Dr

Be
rkshire

Dr

N Kenw
yck

D
r

Norfo
lk

Ave

Macarthur Blvd

G
o

tf
re

d
so

n 
R

d

Parcels

bbult
Line

bbult
Text Box
Proposed Pathway

bbult
PolyLine

bbult
Line

bbult
Text Box
Existing Pathways

bbult
Rectangle

bbult
PolyLine

bbult
PolyLine

bbult
PolyLine



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR THE PLYMOUTH ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-10 

DATE: FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

WHEREAS, OHM Advisors has submitted a proposal to the Charter Township of 
Superior for construction engineering services for the Plymouth Road Pathway project, 
anticipated to begin construction in Spring 2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed project consists of an 8-ft wide asphalt pathway along the 

south side of Plymouth Road from Dixboro Road to 1,300 ft east of Cherry Hill Road, 
including concrete ADA ramps, storm sewer, infiltration trenches, signal work, a boardwalk, 
and driveway replacement as necessary for path installation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the project construction is to be partially funded through a $300,000.00 

grant from the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) program and a 
$250,000.00 grant from the Washtenaw County Parks & Recreation (WCPARC) Connecting 
Communities program; and 

 
WHEREAS, bids for project construction were received on February 1, 2024, with a 

low bid of $869,870.00 received from All Start Power Excavation, LLC; and 
 

WHEREAS, OHM has outlined a comprehensive scope of services for construction 
administration, engineering/observation, and construction surveying with a total Not-to-
Exceed Fee of $118,000.00 for the completion of the project during the 2024 construction 
season· and 

 
WHEREAS, OHM has submitted the following anticipated schedule of construction: 

 
• Contract Award - February 20, 

2024 
• Notice to Proceed - March 29, 

2024 
• Substantial Completion – 

October 15, 2024 
• Final Completion – November 

15, 2024 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees accept the submitted proposal from OHM Advisors for the Plymouth Road 
Pathway project for a total Not-to-Exceed Fee of $118,000.00. 

' 



 
 
 

 

February 8, 2024 
 
 
Ken Schwartz  
Supervisor 
Charter Township of Superior 
7999 Ford Rd. 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
RE: Plymouth Road Pathway 

Proposal for Contract Administration & Construction Engineering Services 
 
 
Dear Mr. Schwartz: 
 

OHM Advisors (OHM) is pleased to submit this proposal to Superior Charter Township (Township) for 
construction engineering services for the Plymouth Road Pathway project designed by OHM. This project is 
anticipated to begin construction in Spring 2024.  
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
We understand the Township desires to move forward with the construction of the Plymouth Road Pathway 
project. The project consists of a proposed 8-ft wide asphalt pathway along the south side of Plymouth Road from 
Dixboro Road to 1,300 ft east of Cherry Hill Road. Construction is also proposed to include concrete ADA 
ramps, storm sewer, infiltration trenches, signal work, a boardwalk, and driveway replacement as necessary for 
path installation. The project construction would be partially funded through a $300,000 grant from the Michigan 
Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) program and a $250,000 grant from the Washtenaw County Parks & 
Recreation (WCPARC) Connecting Communities program.  
 
Bids for project construction were received on February 1, 2024. Four bids were received, with a low bid of 
$869,870.00 received from All Start Power Excavation, LLC.  
 
Construction administration and engineering services will begin immediately following the award of a contract to a 
contractor for the construction of the Plymouth Road Pathway. OHM will provide information to outline the 
progress of the project from contractor initiation to completion of final punch list items. We assume that 
construction will be completed during the 2024 construction season. 
 
Below is our scope of services, assumptions, schedule, and fee related to the scope of work. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
We propose the following tasks and associated work to complete the construction engineering phase for the 
Plymouth Road Pathway Project for the Township.  
 
Task 1 – Construction Administration  
The following outlines the sub-tasks OHM will perform as part of the Construction Administration task for this 
project:  

 



Ken Schwartz, Township Supervisor  
Plymouth Road Pathway 
February 8, 2024  
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

• Assist the Township in developing executed contract documents with the awarded Contractor. This may 
include coordination with Township Attorney to review contractor insurance requirements. 
 

• Schedule and host a pre-construction meeting with stakeholders which may include Township Officials, 
Contractor, Sub-contractors, Washtenaw County Road Commission and Water Resources Commission, 
etc. 
 

• Monitor, evaluate, and provide administrative action for submittals (shop drawings, certifications, samples, 
etc.) and maintain records of request for information, requested changes, and shop drawing submittals for 
future reference.  
 

• Prepare and submit construction pay estimates to the Township for processing. 

• Prepare and process contract modifications, if any.  

• Request and collect contractor obtained permits from other public agencies.   

• Prepare Project close out documentation. 
 

• Assist Township staff with grant reimbursement requests through MDNR’s MiGrants program and 
WCPARC’s Connecting Communities program. It should be noted both programs are reimbursement 
programs. The WCPARC Connecting Communities will reimburse $125,000 at 50% construction 
completion, and the remaining $125,000 at 100% construction completion. MNRTF funds will be 
reimbursed at a rate of 63% of funds expended until $300,000 have been reimbursed.  

 
Task 2 – Construction Engineering/Observation  
The following sub-tasks will be provided for the Construction Engineering and Observation of the construction 
effort. 

 

• Perform daily full-time observation of construction for pathway, sidewalk, helical piles, and storm sewer 
installation. Part-time observation of restoration and boardwalk superstructure construction activities is 
anticipated to be provided.  
 

• Produce daily field reports documenting construction methodology, maintenance of traffic control 
measures and pay item quantities.  
 

• Create Inspector Daily Reports using OHM Field Advisor software.  
 

• Address Contractor’s construction questions and resolve conflicts as required to complete the work. 
 

• Attend to resident concerns throughout the duration of the construction project.  
 

• Perform progress meetings every two weeks with Contractor, Sub-contractor(s), and Owner’s 
Representative to review and coordinate questions/issues and coordinate construction schedule.  
 

• Perform a final site walk-through, prepare, and distribute a final punch list after Contractor has identified 
substantial completion. Once the Contractor has notified us of completion of punch-list, we will meet at 
site to verify punch list items have been completed to the Township’s satisfaction. Once the project has 



Ken Schwartz, Township Supervisor  
Plymouth Road Pathway 
February 8, 2024  
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

been completed, we will issue a Final Project Completion Notice. We anticipate two (2) site visits to final 
out the construction project. 
 

• Perform soil density, compaction testing, HMA testing, and concrete testing. To complete this work, 
OHM has a continuing services agreement contract with G2 Consulting Geotechnical Group. 

 
Task 3 – Construction Surveying  
The following tasks are required for construction staking: 

 

• Establish on-site survey control to be utilized during the construction of the project.  
 

• Provide required construction staking for line and elevation of contract items to include new 8-ft wide 
pathway, boardwalk, storm sewer, and ADA compliant sidewalk ramps. Off-set stake locations will be 
coordinated with the Contractor. We have included effort required to provide one complete set of off-set 
stakes for these items. 
 

• Prepare cut sheets for proposed elevations.  
 
CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The following major assumptions have been made as a part of our scope of work, in addition to any assumptions 
noted within our scope of work section: 
 

• The project will be partially funded through the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund program and the 
Washtenaw Country Parks & Recreation Connecting Communities program that will require 
administrative work by OHM to be utilized. This effort is included in our proposal.  
 

• OHM will utilize our geotechnical design partner, G2, for geotechnical and material testing. G2 will 
perform their services, as needed, for subgrade, aggregate base, and concrete testing. The Contractor is to 
schedule and coordinate the geotechnical services through OHM; OHM will review reports for 
specification compliance.    

 
SCHEDULE 
 
We are available to begin work upon project authorization and award of the construction contract for the project.  
It’s anticipated that construction will be scheduled during the 2024 construction season between April and 
September.   
 
 Contract Award – February 20, 2024 
 Notice to Proceed – March 29, 2024 
 Substantial Completion – October 15, 2024 
 Final Completion – November 15, 2024 
 
FEE SCHEDULE 
 
We propose to perform the Construction Engineering Services as outlined above on an hourly basis, for a total 
Not-to-Exceed Fee of $118,000 (One-Hundred Eighteen Thousand Dollars).  
 



Ken Schwartz, Township Supervisor  
Plymouth Road Pathway 
February 8, 2024  
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

No additional services outside the scope of work provided above will proceed without receipt of written 
authorization by the Township. 
 
ACCEPTANCE 
 
If you find our proposal acceptable, please provide us written authorization to proceed based on our Scope of 
Services and OHM Advisors Terms and Conditions.  
 
We thank you for this opportunity to provide professional services to the Township and we look forward to assisting 
the Township in completing this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me at (734) 466-4439 if you have any 
questions or need any additional information. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
  
    
__________________________________   __________________________________  
  
Claire Martin, PE      George Tsakoff, PE     
Project Manager      Principal 
     
cc: Lynette Findley, Township Clerk 
  
Attachment:  OHM Terms and Conditions 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FOR SYSTEM UPDATE BY ENGINEERED 

SOLUTIONS MIDWEST (ESM) 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-11 

DATE: February 20, 2024 

WHEREAS, Engineered Solutions Midwest (ESM) has presented a proposal to the Charter 
Township of Superior for a significant system update aimed at enhancing the operational efficiency 
and reliability of the water and wastewater systems within the Township; and 
 

WHEREAS, ESM specializes in servicing the water and wastewater industry with a 
comprehensive portfolio that includes the manufacturing of pumping stations, designing and 
implementing Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems, and electromechanical 
troubleshooting and repair, thereby providing a single source solution for plant and pumping system 
needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed upgrade involves replacing the obsolete AB 5/05 PLC at the BPS 
location with a new MicroLogix 1400 PLC and a 15-inch Weintek touchscreen, including all 
necessary installation, programming, and material provisions to meet the new standards, with 
coordination for integration with Ken Wesley from UIS as advised by OHM Advisors; and 
 

WHEREAS, ESM commits to empowering Charter Township of Superior staff with the 
knowledge and skills to operate the upgraded system through comprehensive training, continued 
phone support, and on-site refresher courses, ensuring the Township's autonomy and confidence in 
emergency situations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the total cost for the system upgrade, including the PLC, input and output cards, 
Ethernet switch, and touchscreen HMI, is quoted at $35,053.00, with the assurance of a firm price if 
the order is placed within 30 days from the date of the proposal and a payment term of net 30 days 
post-installation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposal includes a necessary temporary shutdown of the station during the 
upgrade, with a commitment to minimize downtime and allow the Township to retain any leftover 
materials for spare or scrap purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, this proposal comes highly recommended by Mary Burton, Charter Township 
of Superior Utility Director, recognizing the critical need for system enhancements and the value 
presented by ESM's comprehensive service offering; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board of 
Trustees hereby accepts the proposal from Engineered Solutions Midwest (ESM) for the system 
update at the quoted total cost of $35,053.00, acknowledging the benefits of this investment in the 
Township's water and wastewater infrastructure and the expertise provided by ESM in ensuring the 
project's success. 



 
 



*Engineered Solutions Midwest, Inc is an authorized local sales and 

service center for Engineered Fluid, Inc. 

Page 1 of 4 

 
     
 
  
 
  

 PROPOSAL # 4182  DATE: 2/2/2024 

 TO: Superior Township  PROJECT LOC: Superior Township 

   Rickey Harding  PROJECT TITLE: PLC/HMI Upgrades 

              
 

Superior Township BPS, EFI#88646 Upgrade 

 

Engineered Solutions Midwest, (ESM) appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal to Superior 

Township for a system update. 

 

ESM specializes in servicing the water and wastewater industry.  Our portfolio ranges from manufacturing of 

pumping stations to designing/implementing SCADA systems to electromechanical troubleshooting and repair.  

We differentiate ourselves in the market by providing a single source for all of your plant and pumping system 

needs.  Our experience applying system hydraulic dynamics to the technological aspects of SCADA systems 

further separates us from others in our industry.  We troubleshoot and repair pumps, controls, valves, electrical 

systems, and telemetry systems.   

 

ESM is a 24/7 rapid response center, but recognizes and empowers the customer as the first line of defense in an 

emergency.  ESM will be there to help over the phone, or mobilize as expediently as the situation requires.   

 

Engineered Solutions Midwest, (ESM) proposes to upgrade the Superior Township BPS.  The existing AB 5/05 

PLC is obsolete at the BPS location.  ESM will upgrade the station to the new standards of a MicroLogix 1400 

PLC and a 15-inch Weintek touchscreen at the BPS location.  All logic will be controlled by an ESM 

programmed, Programmable Logic Controller (PLC).  ESM will provide all installation and programming labor 

as well as material as necessary to make this operational change. ESM will coordinate integration with Ken 

Wesley from UIS as requested by OHM Advisors. 

 

Please note that during and following the completion of any of the options below, ESM will train your staff to 

ensure they are comfortable with your upgraded system.  Staff education will continue with phone support, or 

additional training / refreshers on site as required when we are in the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposal Number 4182 
February 2, 2024 

 

Page 2 of 4 

BPS RTU parts list 

1. PLC – Allen Bradley (AB) MicroLogix 1400 Ethernet PLC (programmed by ESM) 

2. Analog Input Card 

3. Analog Output Card 

4. Digital Input Card 

5. Digital Output Card 

6. 10 port Ethernet switch 

7. HMI – Maple Systems/Weintek 15” touchscreen (programmed by ESM)  

 

Your TOTAL Cost, No Applicable Taxes Included …………………………………..$  35,053.00                     

 

NOTES: 

ESM will require a temporary shutdown of this station while work is being performed.  Shutdowns will be kept 

to a minimum.  The owner shall keep any leftover material for spare/scrap.   

 

 

PAYMENT TERMS:   

The price is firm if the order is placed within 30 days from date of proposal.  Net 30 days after installation. 

 

For additional information please contact: 

 

Tim Hovda 

Engineered Solutions Midwest, Inc. 

317-409-4116 

thovda@engineeredsolutions.com 

. 

 

Equipment Delivery & Installation:     TBD*     Weeks After Receipt of Signed Proposal. 

 *ESM will coordinate installation date with the owner. 

 

 

CONDITIONS OF SALE ACCOMPANYING THIS PROPOSAL ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS 

PROPOSAL. 

ACCEPTANCE CONSTITUTES ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TERMS. 

 

 

Accepted, Contingent Upon Contract Award and Receipt of Submittal Approval 

 

this   day of   20  

 

__________________________________________________________   

Company Name 

 

  

Authorized Signature 

 

By   



*Engineered Solutions Midwest, Inc is an authorized local sales and service 

center for Engineered Fluid, Inc. 

Page 3 of 4 

  

CONDITIONS OF SALE 

ALL PROPOSALS ARE BASED ON, AND ALL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES ARE SOLD ON THE 
FOLLOWING TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROCEDURES: 

1. THIS PROPOSAL PRICE is firm if order is placed within thirty (30) days from the date of the proposal. 

2. TERMS - Subject to approval of credit and as specifically stated on this proposal.  Account must be current, 
including late charges, before services are performed.  The price on this proposal is based upon these Conditions 
of Sale.  If different terms are desired by the purchaser the price will be adjusted to reflect the differences in 
terms.   

3. DELIVERY – Services and any parts delivered by ESM are f.o.b. the project site, or nearest passable road.  
Deliveries of the various units of this order may be made as completed.  Shipments via common carrier are f.o.b. 
point of shipment. 

4. DELIVERY TIME - The time of delivery stated on this proposal is Engineered Solutions Midwest Inc. (ESM) 
best estimate and begins with the date all information necessary to proceed with releasing materials is received 
by ESM.    While ESM will diligently attempt to meet the stated delivery, ESM shall not be liable for any delay 
in shipment from any cause whatsoever outside the direct control of ESM and Purchaser agrees not to make any 
such claim. 

Service will be scheduled within 7 to 10 days after materials are received.  Materials will be invoiced upon 
receipt if services are delayed by factors outside the control of ESM.  It shall be the Purchaser's responsibility to 
notify ESM prior to anticipated service if a delay is anticipated. 

5. TAXES - No Federal, State, or Local taxes have been included in the prices quoted on the proposal face.  All 
known and applicable taxes will be included on the invoice and are to be paid by the Purchaser. 

6. WARRANTY - ESM warrants, to the original Purchaser service labor to be free from defects in workmanship 
for the period of 90 DAYS from the date of service, provided the product is properly installed, maintained and 
operated under normal conditions according to the manufacturer's instructions. 

Replacement components or parts provided by ESM shall include the original component or part  manufacturer’s 

OEM warranty.  Assistance in administering the original component part manufacturer’s OEM warranty is the 

extent of ESM’s responsibility for replacement parts or components.  

The obligation of ESM under this warranty is limited to repair or replacement of any component or part f.o.b the 
manufacturer’s dock which shall upon examination disclose to the manufacturer's satisfaction to have been 
originally defective.   Correction of such defects by repair or replacement shall constitute fulfillment of all 
obligations.  ESM shall not be liable for loss, damage or expense directly or indirectly from the use of its products 
or from any other cause. 

Any products, components or parts not purchased by ESM are excluded from this warranty.  No services on 
these components are included in this proposal.  Expenses incurred by ESM attributable to the misapplication or 
malfunction of components not supplied by ESM will be the responsibility of the Purchaser. 

This warranty is conditional and does not apply to any of the following items: 

a) Items that must be replaced because of normal usage such as pump seals, packing, grease, oil, light bulbs, 
etc.  

b) Items that have been started up by person not authorized by ESM or that have been altered or repaired out-
side of the manufacturer's factory, without written authorization from ESM. 

c) Products that are not started, checked and adjusted by an authorized ESM technician within the warranty 
period of the original OEM manufacturer, unless special written instructions have been requested and 
received from ESM. 

d) Warranty claims made after the warranty term(s) have expired. 

ESM services are not subject to expressed, implied or statutory warranty other than herein set forth, and no agent, 
representative or distributor of ESM has any authority to alter the terms of this warranty. 



Proposal Number 4182 
February 2, 2024 

 

Page 4 of 4 

7. SITE CONDITIONS - It shall be the Purchaser's responsibility to have all site conditions (e.g., electrical 
installation, water connection, etc.) prepared for the ESM technician in advance.   Service charges are portal to 
portal and include wait time onsite.   Subsequent trips are not included in the purchase price if services cannot 
be performed due to inadequate preparation. 

8. CANCELLATION - Purchaser agrees to reimburse to ESM all costs incurred and associated with cancellation 
of order.  Charges will include, but not be limited to, expenses related to submittal design and assembly, 
procurement of material, restocking charges, and shipping and handling of material. 

9. ACCEPTANCE - Acceptance of this proposal whether by a separate purchase order or by other means shall 
constitute an acknowledgment of the quotation as written and an acceptance of the terms and conditions thereof.   
Any positive written response to this proposal shall be considered as an acceptance thereof.    Acceptance of any 
terms, provision or conditions in conflict with those stated herein shall be so stated in writing by an officer of 
ESM.  The acceptance of any goods or merchandise shipped to Purchaser as described herein shall constitute an 
agreement by the Purchaser to all the terms and conditions hereof. 

10. GOVERNING LAW - This transaction shall be governed by, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Indiana. 

11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION - Any and all lawsuits arising out of the terms and conditions of this agreement or 
concerning the goods sold hereunder shall be instituted and litigated in Boone County, Indiana and in no other 
forum unless the parties shall mutually agree in writing to a different forum.  Accordingly, the parties to this 
transaction submit to the jurisdiction of Boone County, Indiana with respect to any dispute or disagreement 
having to do with, or arising out of, this contract or the performance by either party hereunder. 

12. COSTS AND ATTORNEY’S FEES - In the event that Purchaser shall fail to comply with any of the terms and 
conditions hereof, then Purchaser shall reimburse ESM for all attorney’s fees and court costs which may be paid, 
or incurred, by ESM in an effort to enforce the terms and conditions hereof or to obtain damages on account of 
the breach hereof by Purchaser. 

 

 



                                                                        
 

 
 

 

Memorandum 

To:  Superior Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Mary Burton, Utility Director 
Date:  February 20, 2024 
Re:          Quote to Upgrade Booster Pump Station PLC/HMI  
 
Background 
The Booster Pump Station was completed and came online in 2006. The original PLC 
system that was installed that same year is no longer running at full potential and 
pressure setpoints are not holding. There has not been an upgrade to the PLC since 
its inception and it is long overdue. The equipment has become inaccurate, 
unreliable, and obsolete and needs an upgrade. 
 
A proposal for the upgrade has been provided by the original company, which is 
Engineered Solutions Midwest. The proposal is in collaboration with UIS Scada and 
OHM.   
   
Recommended Action 
I recommend the proposal be accepted and the upgrade be completed by 
Engineered Solutions Midwest. 
 



 
MEMO 

 

TO:  Superior Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: Laura Bennett, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  February 12, 2024 

SUBJECT: Planning Commission Reappointments 

 

The three-year term of Patrick McGill, who serves on the Planning Commission, will expire on 
February 28, 2024. Please reappoint Mr. McGill for an additional three-year term on the 
Planning Commission ending February 28, 2027.  

 

The three-year terms of Tom Brennan, who serves on the Planning Commission and Zoning 
Board of Appeals, will expire on February 28, 2024. Please reappoint Mr. Brennan for an 
additional three-year term on the Planning Commission as well as the Zoning Board of Appeals, 
ending February 28, 2027.  

 

The three-year term of Emily Dabish Yahkind, who serves on the Planning Commission, will 
expire on March 1, 2024. Please reappoint Ms. Dabish Yahkind for an additional three-year term 
on the Planning Commission ending March 01, 2027.  

 

 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 






















	1. February 20, 2024 Agenda TABBED
	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	8.A.1. MINUTES January 16, 2024 Draft with table
	January 16 2024 meh.pdf
	January 16, 2024 Draft with table_.pdf
	January 16, 2024 Draft with table.pdf
	Stephens Dr Petition Area.pdf
	Stephens Install Petition.pdf
	Stephens Dr_Layout.pdf
	0741_001.pdf
	0738_001.pdf



	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	8.B.2. Parks and Rec Liason report
	8.B.4.1. Building Reports with Memo
	Binder1.pdf
	Department report 2-12-2024

	Building Monthly Permit List_January 2024.pdf
	MonthEnd Report_January 2024.pdf
	Year to Date Report_January 2024.pdf

	8.B.4.2. Fire Department Run Report January 2024
	8.B.4.3. Ordinance Report
	8.B.4.4. ADOPTED P&R Comm minutes 12-18-23
	8.B.4.5. Sheriffs Report
	Superior Township January 2024 Executive Report.pdf
	Jan 2024 Superior Twp Monthly Data Report.pdf
	Jan 2024 Superior TWP Alarm Report.pdf
	By City
	By Alarm Type

	January 2024 Into SUT and Out of ANT SUT.pdf

	8.B.4.6. Planning and Zoning monthly report
	8.B.4.7. Utility Department Report Feb 20, 2024
	8.B.4.8. Assessing Department Monthly Report
	8.B.5. Controllers report
	8.B.6. Jan 2024 Balance sheets
	8.B.7. Qtr endind 12-31 financials (pre audit)
	8.B.8. Treasurers Investment Report
	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	8.C.1. C2PST Infographic February 2024
	8.C.2. Ramona Compaint
	From: Ramona Parker-Muhammad <ramonapm@comcast.net>  Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 10:05 AM To: Board <board@superior-twp.org> Subject: Formal Complaint - Supervisor Schwartz
	From: Ramona Parker-Muhammad <ramonapm@comcast.net>  Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 3:45 PM To: Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org> Cc: Board <board@superior-twp.org> Subject: Re: FW: Attached Image

	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	10.B.1. Resolution 2023-74, Resolution to approve middle huron partnership contract (HRWC)
	10.B.2. Huron River Water Shed (Middle Huron Partnership)(BACKGROUND)
	MHP Superior Township Contract
	MHP Superior Township Package
	Contract Package - MHP 2024-28.pdf
	Budget Allocation Criteria.pdf
	2024-2028 Middle Huron Partners Budget and Allocation Criteria Explanation



	Middle Huron Partners Fact Sheet

	10.B.3. Middle Huron Contract Backround (What they do) 
	WE CELEBRATE OUR HOME WATERS WITH PASSION AND DEDICATION

	10.F. Hurman Resources Director Update
	From: Rhonda McGill <rmcgill@superior-twp.org>  Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 3:12 PM To: Ken Schwartz <kenschwartz@superior-twp.org>; Lynette Findley <lynettefindley@superior-twp.org>; Lisa Lewis <llewis@superior-twp.org> Cc: Bernice Lindke <blindk...

	10.H.1. Firemans Park Updgrades Funding Juan email
	10.H.1. Pay Application #1 Fireman's Park
	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	11.A. 2024-04, Hire Clerks Office Administrative Assistant
	11.B.1. 2024-05, resolution to hire Field Service Tech
	11.B.2 Resolution Hire a Field Service Tech BACKGROUND MEMO
	11.C.1. 2024-07, Subrecipient agreement macarthur pathway
	11.C.2 MacArthur Path_ Subrecipient Agreement_Draft
	ARTICLE XV - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
	ARTICLE XVI - LIVING WAGE
	Federal Audit Requirements - Fiscal Years Beginning After December 26, 2014

	11.D.1. 2024-08, Award Bid for Macarthur Pathway (All Star)
	11.D.2. Macarthur Pathway_bid award recom_20240207
	11.E.1. 2024-09, Award Bid for Plymouth Pathway (All star)
	11.E.2. Plymouth Rd Dixboro Pathway Background
	11.E.3. Plymouth Rod Pathway BACKGROUND 2
	11.F.1. 2024-10, OHM proposal for engineering services Plymouth pathway
	11.F.2. 20240207_Plymouth_Rd_Pathway_CA_CE_Proposal
	11.f.3 2024-11, PLC Upgrade Pump Stations
	11.F.4 Resolution to approve Superior Twp  BPS 88646 PLC Upgrade  2.2.2024 (PUMP STATION)(Utility Department)
	11.F.4. Resolution Memo Upgrade PLC (Booster Station)BACKGROUND
	11.G. Motion to reappoint members to Boards and Commissions
	11.H. Three Brothers Payment
	11.L, Property Reveiew Background
	This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	12. Record of Disbursements



